
Town of Mount Desert 
Selectboard 

Agenda 
 

Regular Meeting 
Monday, May 20, 2024 

Location: Meeting Room, Town Hall, Northeast Harbor; Meetings will 
continue to be offered via Zoom see final page for connection details. Per 
Maine CDC, COVID transmission rate is LOW; masks are not required.  
 

The regular meeting will begin immediately following the Executive Session. 
 

I. Call to order at 6:00 p.m. 
Public please hold comments until the Selectboard Chairman opens the agenda items for 
public comment.  When addressing the Board, state your FULL NAME (both in person and on 
Zoom).  It is suggested that you enter your full name as your ID on Zoom. 
 

II. Executive Session 
Pursuant to 1 MRS§405(6)(A) Personnel Matters, concerning the Affordable Care Act. 
 

III. Public Hearing(s) 
A. Maude Kusserow d/b/a The Salt Market, 141 Main Street, Northeast Harbor request for 

Liquor License 
 
IV. Post Public Hearing 

A. Maude Kusserow d/b/a The Salt Market, 141 Main Street, Northeast Harbor request for 
Liquor License (action if necessary) 

 
V. Minutes 

A. Approval of minutes from May 1, 2024 meeting 
B. Approval of minutes from May 7, 2024 meeting 

 
VI. Appointments/Recognitions/Resignations 

A. Annual Employee Appointments 
B. Appointment of Seasonal Dock Hands and Boat Launch Operators presented in the 

Harbormaster’s memo dated May 13, 2024 
C. Appointment of Heidi Smallidge as Warden for the June 11, 2024 Primary and Special State 

Referendum Election 
D. Confirm reappointment of Karol Hagberg, Chairwoman to the Mount Desert Housing 

Authority Board of Commissioners for a five-year term beginning March 01, 2024 
E. Confirm reappointment of Patricia Dority, Tenant Commissioner to the Mount Desert 

Housing Authority Board of Commissioners for a four-year term beginning March 01, 2024 
F. Confirm reappointment of George Nickerson, Tenant Commissioner to the Mount Desert 

Housing Authority Board of Commissioners for a five-year term beginning March 01, 2024 
 

VII. Consent Agenda (These items are considered routine, and therefore, may be passed by the Selectmen in one blanket motion.  Board members 
may remove any item for discussion by requesting such action prior to consideration of that portion of the agenda.) 

A. Department Reports:  Highway, Buildings & Grounds, Solid Waste 
B. Memorandum from the Fire Chief regarding rule changes that allow reimbursement for non-

transport EMS services 
C. Thank you, information letter, from Families First Community Center 
D. Community Health Needs Assessment and Action Plan 2024; Mount Desert Island Hospital 

and Healthy Acadia 
E. USDA Disaster Assistance – Emergency Forest Restoration Program (EFRP) The deadline 

to apply for this assistance is May 24, 2024 



Selectboard Meeting Agenda May 20, 2024 
 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

VIII. Selectboard’s Reports 
 

IX. Unfinished Business 
A. Mount Desert Housing Authority Block Grant Submission 
B. Authorize Town Manager to sign contract with Spectrum Northeast LLC By: Charter 

Communications, its manager in the amount of $271,834 to complete high speed broadband 
coverage in the Town of Mount Desert. Funding to be provided By Hancock County and 
Town of Mount Desert ARPA awards 

 
X. New Business 

A. Resident Request for Seasonal Holding Tank; 24 County Road, Seal Harbor 
B. Public Space Special Event Application 5-2024 – Qigong Class for Seniors - Suminsby Park; 

Fridays, June through October 2024 9am – 10am; Susan Sassaman 
C. Public Space Special Event Application 8-2024 – Edith Mann; Celebration of Life - Suminsby 

Park; July 28,2024 12 pm – 4pm; Rodney Miller 
D. Maude Kusserow d/b/a The Salt Market, 141 Main Street, Northeast Harbor request for 

Liquor License 
E. Dawnland, LLC d/b/a Jordan Pond House 2928 Park Loop Rd, Seal Harbor request for 

Liquor License Renewal 
F. Winter Spring Inc. d/b/a Colonel’s Restaurant 143 Main Street, Northeast Harbor request for 

Liquor License Renewal 
G. Scott Cole/14 Sea Street. LLC/DBA The Docksider 14 Sea Street, Northeast Harbor request 

for Liquor License Renewal[ 
H. Mandy Fountaine/DBA Abel’s Lobster Pound (On The Shore, LLC) 13 Abels Lane Mount 

Desert request for Liquor License Renewal 
I. Request authorization to amend the public office hours for the clerks as presented in the 

Town Clerk’s memo dated May 16, 2024 
J. Request authorization to pay MCM Electric $5,870.00 for replacement of two power 

pedestals out of the Northeast Harbor Marina power Pedestals CIP # 6410100-24680 has a 
balance of $76,860.64 

K. Request approval to pay MCM Electric $2,200.00 for the for a temporary electrical hook up 
at the Seal Harbor Pier out of the Seal Harbor CIP reserve #6410200-24600 the account has 
a balance of $78,960.82 

L. Review and approve authorizing Public Works Superintendent, Ben Jacobs to contract with 
Maine Equipment for the purchase and installation of a refuse packer body and equipment to 
outfit the recently purchased 2025 Western Star truck cab and chassis 

M. Review and approve estimate from MCM Electric to install electrical service to the 
Maintenance Garage at the Northeast Harbor Wastewater Treatment Plant in an amount not 
to exceed $10,331.00 

N. Consider accepting a conditional monetary gift of $21,000.00 from the Northeast Harbor 
Ambulance Service to the Mount Desert Fire Department for the purpose of purchasing a 
Lund University Cardiopulmonary Assist System (LUCAS)  

O. Consider authorizing the sale of the surplus equipment on behalf of the Fire Department by 
the competitive bid process, as described in Fire Chief’s memo dated May 1, 2024  

P. Consider authorizing the Fire Chief to determine the acceptance or rejection of bids and 
disposal of items that do not sell on behalf of the Town, as described in Fire Chief’s memo 
dated May 1, 2024 

Q. Consider authorizing the Fire Chief to enter into an agreement with Warren’s Office Supplies 
to facilitate the purchase of office furniture for the Mount Desert fire station #1 project, in the 
amount not to exceed $15,000.00. Funding for the purchase will come from the fire station 
project account 



Selectboard Meeting Agenda May 20, 2024 
 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

XI. Other Business (Addendum items may be considered at the Selectboard’s discretion via majority vote to do so under Other Business or out of 
order.) 

A. Such other business as may be legally conducted 
 

XII. Treasurer’s Warrants 
A. Approve & Sign Treasurer’s Warrant as shown below: 

Town Invoices AP#2471 02/21/2024 $411,841.13 
Total   $411,841.13 

 
B. Approve Signed Treasurer’s Payroll, State Fees, & PR Benefit Warrants as shown below: 

State Fees & PR 
Benefits 

 
AP#2469 

 
05/08/2024 

 
$56,569.19 

 AP#2470 05/15/2024 $6,319.74 
Town Payroll PR#2426 05/10/2024 $158,930.38 
Total   $221,81931 

 
C. Acknowledge Treasurer’s Town Voided Disbursements & School Board AP/Payroll Warrants 

as shown below: 
School Invoices AP#   
School Payroll PR#23 05/10/2024 $114,131.81 
Voided Disbursements  

V#2406 
 

05/21/2024 
 

($144.00) 
Total   $113,987.81 

 
Grand Total    $747,648.25 

 
XIII. Adjournment 

 
The next regularly scheduled meeting is at 6:30 p.m., Monday, June 3, 2024 in the Meeting Room, Town 
Hall, Northeast Harbor 
 
  
The Town of Mount Desert is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting.  You can call in through any of 
the listed phone numbers or connect with a computer via the web link.  You will need to enter the meeting 
ID to get access to the meeting. 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/248566175?pwd=RmozZjBOVWhtUTQrRXR5QzFEZEEyQT09 

 
 

One tap mobile 
+13126266799,,248566175#,,,,0#,,919872# US (Chicago) 

+16468769923,,248566175#,,,,0#,,919872# US (New York) 
 
 
 

Dial by your location 
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
+1 646 876 9923 US (New York) 
+1 301 715 8592 US (Germantown) 
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 

+1 408 638 0968 US (San Jose) 
+1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 

 

Zoom security now requires a 
password on all zoom meetings, so the 
recurring Selectboard meeting now 
has a password. 

Meeting ID: 248 566 175 
Password: 919872 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/248566175?pwd=RmozZjBOVWhtUTQrRXR5QzFEZEEyQT09




PUBLIC HEARINGS 

  



























Town of
MOUNT DESERT
PUBLIC HEARING

The Board of Selectmen will hold a Public Hearing 
at its regular meeting which begins at 6:30 p.m., 
Monday, May 20, 2024 in the Meeting Room, 
Town Hall, 21 Sea Street, Northeast Harbor for the 
consideration of:

A new liquor license for Class I 
(malt liquor, wine, and spirits – Qualified Caterers)

Maude Kusserow 
D/B/A THE SALT MARKET, 

141 Main Street, Northeast Harbor, ME







MINUTES 

  





Town of Mount Desert Selectboard 
Special Meeting Minutes of May 1, 2024 
Page 1 
 

Town of Mount Desert 1 
 Selectboard Special Meeting Minutes 2 

May 1, 2024 3 

 4 
Selectboard members Present:  Wendy Littlefield, Geoff Wood, Chair John 5 
Macauley 6 
 7 
Members Martha Dudman and Rick Mooers were not in attendance. 8 
 9 
Department Heads and Elected Officials Present:  Town Manager Durlin 10 
Lunt, Finance Director Mae Wyler, Tax Collector Lisa Young 11 
 12 
Members of the public were also present. 13 
 14 

I. Call to order at 5:00 p.m. 15 
Chair Macauley called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 16 
 17 

II. New Business 18 
A. Review and approve annual audit report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 19 

2023, prepared by James W. Wadman, C.P.A. 20 
Auditors James Wadman and Kelly Bowden present.  They summarized the 21 
auditor’s report given to the Town.  Highlights included: 22 

 23 
- The Town received an unmodified opinion; the financial statements are a fair 24 

presentation of the Town’s operating results for the year. 25 
- The Town’s governmental funds totaled 16,814,852.00.  Of that amount 26 

3,773,701.00, representing approximately 17% of the funds, is General Unassigned 27 
balance.  Comparisons to other Towns were also provided.   28 

- A statement of net position shows a list of the Town’s liquid and capital assets, 29 
including infrastructure such as roads and sidewalks. 30 

- The Town increased their surplus by $133,551.00.  31 
- The Town spent $112,866.00 of federal funds, expended by the school department.  32 

This amount is well below the level at which an additional compliance audit is 33 
required.   34 

- The Town ended the year with $20.4 million in debt.  As a percentage of the Town’s 35 
state valuation, it’s .73%, well below the state statute limits. 36 

- No management letter regarding any weaknesses found was required. 37 

Mr. Wadman reported the superintendent’s office has not been audited.   38 
 39 
Chair Macauley asked about the assets for the marina, and a line item noting other assets 40 
due the marina.  Mr. Wadman believed it was an inter-fund receivable between the 41 
general operating fund and the marina.  This is interaction within the Town and common.  42 
The marina does not have their own checking account, meaning the marina fund’s cash is 43 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard 
Special Meeting Minutes of May 1, 2024 
Page 2 
 

in the Town’s checking account.  It’s a management decision on how such funds are held.   1 
 2 
MOTION:  Ms. Littlefield moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, approval of the audit as 3 
presented from James Wadman. 4 
Motion approved 3-0. 5 
 6 

III. Appointments 7 
A. Correction of Ballot and Election Clerk appointments 8 

This Item was tabled. 9 
 10 

IV. Other Business 11 
A. Such other business as may be legally conducted 12 

There was no Other Business. 13 
 14 

V. Adjournment 15 
MOTION:  Mr. Wood moved, with Ms. Littlefield seconding, to adjourn the 16 
Meeting. 17 
Motion approved 3-0. 18 
 19 
The Meeting adjourned at 5:32 p.m. 20 
 21 
 22 
 23 
Respectfully Submitted, 24 
 25 
 26 
 27 
Geoffrey Wood 28 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard 
Organizational Meeting Minutes of May 7, 2024 
Page 1 
 

Town of Mount Desert 
Selectboard Minutes 

TUESDAY, May 7, 2024 
 

Following the conclusion of Annual Town Meeting 
 

Selectboard members Present:  Wendy Littlefield, Geoff Wood, Chair John 
Macauley, and Martha Dudman 
 
Member Rick Mooers was not in attendance. 
 
Department Heads and Elected Officials Present:  Town Manager Durlin Lunt, 
Finance Director Mae Wyler, Town Clerk Claire Woolfolk, Harbormaster John 
Lemoine, Police Chief Dave Kerns, Fire Chief Mike Bender  
 
Members of the public were also present. 

 
I. Call to order immediately following Town Meeting  

Public please hold comments until the Selectboard Chairman opens the agenda items 
for public comment.  When addressing the Board, state your FULL NAME. 
 

II. Election of Officers 
A. Chair 
B. Vice Chair 
C. Secretary 

 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Ms. Littlefield seconding, election of the officers 
as the same slate as last year. 
Motion approved 4-0. 

 
III. Minutes 

A. Approval of minutes from April 1, 2024 meeting 
B. Approval of minutes from April 16, 2024 meeting 

 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, approval of the minutes as a 
slate. 
Motion approved 4-0. 

 
IV. Appointments/Recognitions/Resignations 

A. Appointment of Kevin Stradley as a part-time, seasonal employee in the Waste 
Management Division at an hourly rate of $25.00 per hour effective June 10, 2024 
ending on or before October 4, 2024 

MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Ms. Littlefield seconding, the appointment of 
Kevin Stradley as a part-time, seasonal employee in the Waste Management Division at 
an hourly rate of $25.00 per hour effective June 10, 2024 ending on or before October 4, 
2024. 
Motion approved 4-0. 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard 
Organizational Meeting Minutes of May 7, 2024 
Page 2 
 

Page 2 of 5 
 

V. Consent Agenda (These items are considered routine, and therefore, may be passed by the Selectmen in one blanket motion.  
Board members may remove any item for discussion by requesting such action prior to consideration of that portion of the agenda.) 
A. Boston Cane appreciation email from resident 
B. FEMA News Release:  Beware of Fraud and Scams; April 15, 2024 
C. FEMA News Release:  To Qualify for Federal Assistance, You Must Apply with 

FEMA; May 1, 2024 
D. FEMA Fact Sheet on Renters Assistance 
 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Ms. Littlefield seconding, acceptance of the 
Consent Agenda as presented. 
Motion approved 4-0. 

 
VI. Selectboard’s Reports 

None presented. 
 

VII. Unfinished Business 
None presented. 

 
VIII. New Business 

A. Selectboard Annual Policies: 
a. Annual Policy on Treasurer’s Disbursement Warrants for Employee Wages and 

Benefits 
b. Annual Policy on Treasurer’s Disbursement Warrants for State Fees 
c. Annual Policy on Disbursement of Municipal Education Costs 
d. Annual Policy on Application of Payments to Unpaid Taxes 
e. Annual Policy on Reimbursement (Code Enforcement Officer Permits) 
f. Annual Policy Authorizing Town Manager and his Designee to sign BYOB and 

Off-Premises Catering Liquor License Applications on behalf of the Municipal 
Officers 

g. Annual Approval of Town Counsel 
 

MOTION:  Mr. Wood moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, approval of the annual 
policies (a-g) as a slate. 
Motion approved 4-0. 

 
B. Public Space Special Event Application – MDIAA District 18 Community Cookout – 

Suminsby Park; May 27, 2024 
 

MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Ms. Littlefield seconding, approval of the MDIAA 
District 18 public space event application as presented. 
Motion approved 4-0. 
C. Public Space Special Event Application – Mount Desert Elementary School 8th 

Grade Promotion – June 6, 2024, Northeast Harbor Village Green 
 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, approval of the Elementary 
School 8th Grade Promotion on the Northeast Harbor Village Green, June 6, 2024. 
Motion approved 4-0. 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard 
Organizational Meeting Minutes of May 7, 2024 
Page 3 
 

Page 3 of 5 
 

D. Request Authorization to pay for repairs and realignment made to the Seal Harbor 
dock mooring chains by Alvah B. Barge Service LLC. for $14,306.10 from the Seal 
Harbor Mooring/Floats CIP 6410200-24601 which has a balance of $126,419.98 

 
MOTION:  Mr. Wood moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, approval to pay for repairs 
and realignment made to the Seal Harbor dock mooring chains by Alvah B. Barge 
Service LLC. for $14,306.10 from the Seal Harbor Mooring/Floats CIP 6410200-24601. 
Motion approved 4-0. 

 
E. Consideration of Replacement of the Seal Harbor Pier comfort station with portable 

toilets 
 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, approval to replace the Seal 
Harbor Pier comfort station with portable toilets. 
 
Comment by Howie Montenko and other members of the Harbor Committee to amend 
the motion to indicate that the porta potties would be temporary and include an accessible 
porta pottty. 
 
MOTION AMENDED:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, approval to 
replace the Seal Harbor Pier comfort station with temporary portable toilets, including 
and accessible unit, while an investigation for renovation and repairs can be made for a 
permanent solution. 
Motion approved 4-0. 
 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Ms. Littlefield seconding, to recommend that the 
Harbor Committee work with the Public Works Director Henkel for a solution to the 
repairs to the Seal Harbor Pier comfort station. 
Motion approved 4-0. 
 
Harbormaster Lemoine indicated that he would need a temporary electrical hook up at the 
Seal Harbor Pier.  He will investigate and present something for approval at the next 
meeting. 

 
F. Review and approve authorizing Public Works Superintendent, Ben Jacobs to 

purchase a Western Star cab and chassis from Freightliner of Maine in the amount 
not to exceed $127,399.00 

 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Ms. Littlefield seconding, to approve Public 
Works Superintendent, Ben Jacobs, to purchase a Western Star cab and chassis from 
Freightliner of Maine in the amount not to exceed $127,399.00. 
Motion approved 4-0. 
 
G. Request authorization to release PD Capital Reserve funds not to exceed $3,600.00 

from PD Capital Reserve account #4040100-24405 for the purchase and installation 
of a new antenna for Station #3 coverage of the Mount Desert Fire frequency which 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard 
Organizational Meeting Minutes of May 7, 2024 
Page 4 
 

Page 4 of 5 
 

will be tied in the existing PA System; The current unencumbered balance of PD 
Capital Reserve account #4040100-24405 is $112,768.99 

 
MOTION:  Mr. Wood moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, to authorize the release of 
PD Capital Reserve funds not to exceed $3,600.00 from PD Capital Reserve account 
#4040100-24405 for the purchase and installation of a new antenna for Station #3 
coverage of the Mount Desert Fire frequency. 
Motion approved 4-0. 
 

IX. Other Business (Addendum items may be considered at the Selectboard’s discretion via majority vote to do so under Other 
Business or out of order.) 
None presented. 

 
X. Treasurer’s Warrants 

(Tabled from April 16, 2024) 
A. Approve Signed Treasurer’s Payroll, State Fees, & PR Benefit Warrants as shown below: 

(Tabled from April 16, 2024) 

State Fees & PR 
Benefits 

 
AP#2462 

 
4/3/2024 

 
$5,762.45 

 AP#2463 4/10/2024 $78,458.90 
Town Payroll PR#2424 4/12/2024 $163,201.06 
Total   $247,422.41 

 

MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, approval and signature of 
Treasurer’s Warrant as shown above. 
Motion approved 3-0-1 (Littlefield abstained). 
 

B. Acknowledge Treasurer’s Town Voided Disbursements & School Board AP/Payroll 
Warrants as shown below: 

    (Tabled from April 16, 2024) 

School Invoices AP#11 4/2/2024 $61,969.66 
School Payroll PR#21 4/12/2024 $101,055.45 
Voided 
Disbursements 

 
V#2405 

 
4/11/2024 

 
-$891.00 

Total   $162,134.11 
MOTION:  Mr. Wood moved, with Ms. Littlefield seconding, acknowledgement of 
Treasurer’s Town Voided Disbursements & School Board AP/Payroll Warrants as shown 
above. 
Motion approved 3-0-1 (Littlefield abstained). 
 

C. Approve & Sign Treasurer’s Warrant as shown below: 
Town Invoices AP#2468 5/8/2024 $821,255.55 
Total   $821,255.55 

MOTION:  Mr. Wood moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, approval and signature of 
Treasurer’s Warrant as shown above. 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard 
Organizational Meeting Minutes of May 7, 2024 
Page 5 
 

Page 5 of 5 
 

Motion approved 4-0. 
D. Approve Signed Treasurer’s Payroll, State Fees, & PR Benefit Warrants as shown 

below: 
State Fees & PR 
Benefits 

 
AP#2465 

 
4/17/2024 

 
$5,686.45 

 AP#2466 4/24/2024 $111,242.00 
 AP#2467 5/1/2024 $8,807.54 
Town Payroll PR#2425 4/26/2024 $173,812.96 
Total   $299,548.95 

MOTION:  Mr. Wood moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, approval of Signed Treasurer’s 
Payroll, State Fees, & PR Benefit Warrants as shown above. 
Motion approved 3-0-1 (Littlefield abstained). 

 
E. Acknowledge Treasurer’s Town Voided Disbursements & School Board AP/Payroll 

Warrants as shown below: 
School Invoices AP#12 5/1/2024 $78,295.43 
School Payroll PR#22 4/26/2024 $180,945.91 
Voided 
Disbursements 

 
N/A 

 
 

 
$0 

Total   $259,241.34 
MOTION:  Mr. Wood moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, acknowledgement of Treasurer’s 
Town Voided Disbursements & School Board AP/Payroll Warrants as shown above. 
Motion approved 4-0. 

 
Grand Total  Includes tabled items 

from the 4/16/2024 
agenda. 

$1,789,602.36 

 
XI. Adjournment 

 
MOTION:  Mr. Wood moved, with Ms. Littlefield seconding, to adjourn the Meeting. 
Motion approved 4-0. 

 
The Meeting adjourned at 9:45 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
Geoffrey Wood 





APPOINTMENTS 

RECOGNITIONS 

RESIGNATIONS 

  





Page 1 of 2 
T:\Clerk\Appointments\2023\Employee\APPOINTMENTS - Employee.docx 

CERTIFICATE OF APPOINTMENT 

Municipality of MOUNT DESERT         County of HANCOCK         State of MAINE 

The Board of Selectmen of the Municipality of the Town of Mount Desert, in accordance with the 
provisions of the laws of the State of Maine, hereby appoints the following employees within and 
for the Municipality of Mount Desert for the positions and terms indicated: 
 
Name   Position    Term  
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Kyle Avila  Assessor    June 1, 2024 - May 31, 2025 
Kyle Avila  Addressing Officer   June 1, 2024 - May 31, 2025 
 
Michael Bender Fire Chief    June 1, 2024 - May 31, 2025 
Michael Bender Fire Warden    June 1, 2024 - May 31, 2025 
Michael Bender Emergency Management Dir June 1, 2024 - May 31, 2025 
 
Kevin Edgecomb Shellfish Warden   June 1, 2024 - May 31, 2025 
 
Leigh Guildford Shellfish Warden   June 1, 2024 - May 31, 2025 
 
Brian Henkel  Acting Town Manager  June 1, 2024 - May 31, 2025 
 
Kimberly Keene Code Enforcement Officer  June 1, 2024 - May 31, 2025 
Kimberly Keene Building Inspector   June 1, 2024 - May 31, 2025 
Kimberly Keene Local Plumbing Inspector  June 1, 2024 - May 31, 2025 
Kimberly Keene Deputy General Assistance June 1, 2024 - May 31, 2025 
 
David Kerns  Police Chief    June 1, 2024 - May 31, 2025 
 
John Lemoine Harbormaster   June 1, 2024 - May 31, 2025 
 
Durlin E. Lunt, Jr. Town Manager   June 1, 2024 - May 31, 2025 
Durlin E. Lunt, Jr. Overseer of the Poor  June 1, 2024 - May 31, 2025 
Durlin E. Lunt, Jr. Road Commissioner  June 1, 2024 - May 31, 2025 
Durlin E. Lunt, Jr. Public Access Officer  June 1, 2024 - May 31, 2025 
 
Mount Desert  General Assistance  
Selectmen Board Fair Hearing Authority  June 1, 2024 - May 31, 2025 
 
Scott Pinkham Animal Control Officer  June 1, 2024 - May 31, 2025 
 
Adam Thurston Deputy Harbormaster  June 1, 2024 - May 31, 2025 
Adam Thurston Shellfish Warden   June 1, 2024 - May 31, 2025 
 
Claire Woolfolk Town Clerk    June 1, 2024 - May 31, 2025 
 



Page 2 of 2 
T:\Clerk\Appointments\2023\Employee\APPOINTMENTS - Employee.docx 

 
Mae Wyler  Treasurer    June 1, 2024 - May 31, 2025 
 
Elizabeth Yeo Excise Tax Collector  June 1, 2024 - May 31, 2025 
Elizabeth Yeo BMV Excise Tax Collector  June 1, 2024 - May 31, 2025 
 
Lisa Young  Tax Collector    June 1, 2024 - May 31, 2025 
Lisa Young  Deputy Treasurer   June 1, 2024 - May 31, 2025 
 
 
 
 
 
Given under our hands this 20th day of May 2024 at Mount Desert, Maine: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Martha T. Dudman –       

 

Wendy H. Littlefield -       

 

John B. Macauley –        

 

James F. Mooers –        

 

Geoffrey Wood –        
 
 
A majority of the Municipal Officers of the Town of Mount Desert 



 

C:\Users\cwoolfolk\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\3V5OO35C\Marina Seasonal Employee_.docx  5/13/2024 

Town of Mount Desert 
John Lemoine, Harbormaster 

40 Harbor Drive, P.O. Box 237 
Northeast Harbor, ME  04662-0248 

Telephone     207-276-5737 Fax     207-276-5741 
E-mail Address harbormaster@mtdesert.org 

Web Address www.mtdesert.org 

 
 

MEMO    
 
To: Durlin Lunt, Town Manager and Board of Selectmen 
From: John Lemoine, Harbormaster 
Re: Summer Launch Captains  
Date: May 13, 2024 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
Durlin, 
 
I would like to recommend the individuals listed below for seasonal employment at the Northeast 
Harbor Marina this summer. Could you please place this on the May 20, 2024, Board of 
Selectmen’s agenda for their approval to work the 2024 season.  
 
George Adams               @ $23.00/hr Launch Captain 
Jim Shafer                      @ $22.00/hr Launch Captain 
Eric Roos                       @ $23.00/hr Launch Captain 
 
 
Thank you, 
 
John Lemoine 
Harbormaster   
 

mailto:harbormaster@mtdesert.org
http://www.mtdesert.org/


 

 
T:\Clerk\ELECTIONS\STATE Elections\2024\6-11-2024 State Primary\Warden, Election Clerks and Registrar\Warden\BOS warden approval 
memo.docx 
 

Town of Mount Desert 
Claire Woolfolk, Town Clerk 
21 Sea Street, P.O. Box 248 

Northeast Harbor, ME  04662-0248 
 

Telephone     207-276-5531 Fax     207-276-3232 
E-mail  townclerk@mtdesert.org  Web Address

 www.mtdesert.org 
  

 
MEMO 

 
DATE: May 10, 2024 
 
TO: Board of Selectmen 
 
FROM: Claire Woolfolk, Town Clerk 
 
RE: June 11, 2024 State Primary Election 
 
 
Pursuant to 21-A §501, I request that the Board of Selectmen, by recorded vote, approve the appointment 
made by the Town Clerk, of Heidi Smallidge as Warden for the June 11, 2024 State Primary Election. 

Thank you. 
 
 

mailto:townclerk@mtdesert.org
http://www.mtdesert.org/






CONSENT AGENDA 

  





Town of Mount Desert
21 Sea Street, P.O. Box 248

Northeast Harbor, ME 04662-0248 
Telephone 207-276-5744 Fax 207-276-5142
www.mtdesert.org highway@mtdesert.org

Otter Creek, Seal Harbor, Northeast Harbor, Somesville, 
Hall Quarry and Pretty Marsh

Page 1 of 2

MEMO

To: Brian Henkel, Public Works Director
From: Benjamin Jacobs, P.W. Superintendent
Re: March & April Monthly Reports
Date: May 06, 2024

Highway Crew

 Plowed and sanded roads during the snowstorms that we received.
 Completed our Bureau of Labor Standards inspections on, for example, fire extinguishers, 

secondary containment structures and eyewash stations.
 Removed plow gear from our trucks and equipment.
 Started sweeping sidewalks and roadways.
 Unposted our roads on April 12h.
 Cleaned the highway garage and bus garage.
 Put out benches, trash cans and picnic tables for the season.
 Performed maintenance and made repairs to our equipment and trucks in the public works 

department and other town departments.
 Cold patched potholes throughout the town’s villages.
 Repaired washouts at the marina in Northeast Harbor.
 Repaired a section of sidewalk in Seal Harbor.
 Repaired washouts on Dead End Road and South Shore Road.
 Had a successful clean up week.
 Trimmed trees on a section of Sargeant Drive.
 Installed and repaired signs.

Buildings & Grounds and Parks & Cemeteries

The crew:

 Cleaned the town office, dispatch area, police station and the public restrooms at the
marina daily.

 Shoveled snow from walkways and salted walkways around the outside of town office, police 
department, highway garage, bathroom entrances to the public restrooms at the marina, and the 
main entrances to all three of the fire station buildings when it snowed.

 Cleaned the highway garage office areas and bathrooms as needed.
 Serviced lawn mowing equipment in preparation for the upcoming mowing season.



Town of Mount Desert
21 Sea Street, P.O. Box 248

Northeast Harbor, ME 04662-0248 
Telephone 207-276-5744 Fax 207-276-5142
www.mtdesert.org highway@mtdesert.org

Otter Creek, Seal Harbor, Northeast Harbor, Somesville, 
Hall Quarry and Pretty Marsh

Page 2 of 2

Solid Waste

The crew:

 Continued to pick up trash on their daily routes.
 Continued to police the area around the dumpsters at the highway garage and recycling center 

before heading out to begin their daily collection. The area looks nice when they leave.
 Put out our seasonal dumpsters.

.

Cc. Claire Woolfolk, Town Clerk 
Durlin Lunt, Town Manager



 

Town of Mount Desert 
Michael Bender, Fire Chief 
21 Sea Street, P.O. Box 248 

Northeast Harbor, ME  04662-0248 
 

Telephone 207-276-5111  Fax 207-276-5732 
Web Address www.mtdesert.org 

firechief@mtdesert.org 
  

Memo 
To: Durlin Lunt, Town Manager  
From: Mike Bender, Fire Chief 
CC:  
Date: May 1, 2024 
Re: Request for a Consent Agenda Item 

 

I would like to request that this memo be included in the next Select Board agenda, please. 
Probably should go into the consent agenda. The Select Board may or may not elect to discuss.   

Deputy Chief John Lennon has brought to my attention that recent changes in State legislation 
now permit ambulance services to start billing for selected emergency calls that result in a non-
transport to a healthcare facility. I do not have data on how many types of these calls we have a 
year, but I am confident it is a fairly low number. Additionally, most of the non-transports are likely 
either seasonal or year-round residents, and not visitors. Unfortunately, laws prohibit EMS 
services from billing a select demographic.   

DC Lennon indicated that Bar Harbor has chosen not to bill for non-transport EMS calls. This 
was discussed between their Town Manager, Finance Director, Fire Chief and Deputy Fire Chief 
and the consensus was that local taxpayers should not be billed for these types of EMS calls as 
they already pay for this service. I believe Mount Desert should follow suit.  Although we do bring 
in some revenue from EMS transport, most of the funding to provide EMS services to the Town 
is paid from local taxes. Plus, the added expense for the additional billing may not be offset with 
any increase in revenue. It was for these reasons that the decision was made not to bill for these 
types of calls at this time.  

 

 

      Thank you.   

http://www.mtdesert.org/
mailto:manager@mtdesert.org






Community Health Needs
Assessment and Action Plan

2024

For the Mount Desert Island Region Local Service Area

Including Bar Harbor, Cranberry Isles, Frenchboro, Hancock, Lamoine,
Mount Desert, Southwest Harbor, Swan’s Island, Tremont, and Trenton

Prepared by Healthy Acadia and Mount Desert Island Hospital

Published May 1, 2024



Page left intentionally blank

2



Table of Contents

Acknowledgements……………………….…………………………………….……………...4

Executive Summary………………..…………………………………………..…..…………..5

Introduction…………………………………………………………….………….…………...7

Community Vision……………………………………………………………………..….........9

Work Plan and Timeline………………………………………………………….…..…….......9

Methodology: Our Assessment Processes…………………………………………..………..10

Findings: Strengths, Challenges, Goals, and Strategies .……………………….…..…….….13

Conclusions and Reflections……………………………………………………….…………37

Final Note……………………………………………………………………………….……38

References………………………………………………………………………………….…39

Appendices………………………………………………………………….………………...40

3



Acknowledgements
We would like to acknowledge and thank all community members who contributed to this process
whether through completing a survey, participating in discussions and meetings, providing input and data,
and/or cheering us on.

The Community Health Needs Assessment Core Planning Team, Steering Committee, and Theme
Working Group members are listed in Appendix A. Their commitment to the health of our communities is
inspiring and profound, even more so as we faced an unprecedented global pandemic in the time since our
last report was produced in June 2020. They truly are among our many unsung local heroes.

The over 400 generous residents who responded to our survey are not listed here out of respect for
confidentiality. Their contributions for the health of our communities are greatly appreciated. This report
would not be possible without their engagement and insights.

With sincere thanks,
Community Health Needs Assessment Core Planning Team

4



Executive Summary
This report follows the Community Health Needs Assessment (CHNA) published in 2020 by the Mount
Desert Island Hospital and Healthy Acadia. In keeping with previous versions, our 2023-2024 CHNA
process relied on the nationally-vetted Mobilizing for Action through Planning and Partnerships (MAPP)
process and tools developed and published by the National Association of County and City Health
Officers (NACCHO). MAPP outlines a four-step assessment process intended to take two years. We
modified the process in accordance with the characteristics and small population size of our rural region
and our six-month timeline.

To start, we convened a Steering Committee to help
guide and advise the project. The Steering Committee
was composed of leaders from organizations across the
MDI region who reflect various perspectives and sectors.
We drew heavily on, and greatly appreciate, their
expertise and guidance.

As part of the four-step MAPP process, we developed
and fielded two surveys:

1. Community Partner Survey
2. Community Health Survey

Over 60% of the 412 people who completed the
Community Health Survey identified “safe and
affordable housing” as a top concern in addressing
community health, the highest rating of all issues. The
next most highly rated concerns were “the cost of care
and prescriptions” with 50% and “mental health challenges” with nearly 47%. “Substance use” was a
separate category and appeared fourth with over 40% identifying it as a concern. Mental and behavioral
health and substance use have been combined in this report based on current best practices and the reality
of these topics’ interrelated nature. Recommended strategies address the continuum of prevention through
recovery as well as support for family members and others affected.

We also conducted a review of relevant literature and existing data, such as those published by the U.S.
Census Bureau and the Maine Center for Disease Control and Prevention. For example, we framed our
work within the context of 2023 U.S. Census Bureau data showing Maine is the oldest state in the nation
with an average age of 45.1 years compared to the national average of 39 years. Hancock County is the
third oldest county in Maine with an average age of 49. In other words, Hancock is the third oldest county
in the oldest state in the nation.

The combined process led to identifying six major themes and a working group was convened to address
each of these themes. People with expertise in these areas as well as members of the general public were
invited to join a working group to be sure the compositions included myriad perspectives and passions.
The six themes are 1) Access to Care; 2) Aging in Place; 3) Basic Needs; 4) Community Connectedness;
5) Housing; and 6) Mental and Behavioral Health, including Substance Use.

5



The working groups helped delineate strengths, challenges, goals and strategies within each theme.

A summary of key findings includes:

● Many valuable resources and programs exist that are not well understood by the public and not
well coordinated.

● Unmet housing and transportation needs underlie addressing many other needs.
● Limited workforce exists for nearly all types of health professionals and the scarcity of healthcare

workers and specialty providers has increased since the last report. Cost of living, particularly
housing, creates a major barrier to recruiting and retaining health professionals.

● The COVID-19 pandemic era escalated the need for mental and behavioral health services.
● The national opioid epidemic has an outsized impact in this region.
● The region has a strong network of non-profit organizations delivering quality services and an

unusually strong culture of collaboration and sharing resources.

A summary of key recommendations includes:

● Better publicizing of existing resources
● Improved coordination of existing resources
● Mounting multiple coordinated strategies to recruit and retain clinical providers
● Collaboration with leaders outside the health care sector to address the “housing crisis” as quickly

as possible
● Collaboration with leaders outside the health care sector to address transportation needs
● Increased focus on expanding access to mental and behavioral health, including substance use,

along the continuum of prevention through treatment and recovery programs and supports

This report’s recommendations are intended to be taken on by various stakeholders and with various
timetables. Some recommendations can be implemented more quickly than others and by a single entity.
Others, such as policy changes, require a much longer time frame and collaboration among multiple
stakeholders. The recommendations intentionally are not prioritized, as that is the prerogative of the local
entities who do this work.

This CHNA’s findings are consistent with the Town of Bar Harbor's current draft of a two-year
comprehensive planning process and report, notably that “housing” and “transportation” appear as major
concerns. Despite the fact that our planning process was framed around community health, the same
themes appeared as in the Town’s comprehensive plan. We saw alignment here and with other
assessments, reports, and initiatives.

The region’s culture of collaboration greatly assisted this process and represents a tremendous strength
and asset in implementing various pieces of the Action Plan and successfully meeting goals to achieve our
shared vision: Our area is home to vibrant communities where people thrive and healthful resources are
easily accessible.

6



Introduction
The Community Health Needs Assessment (CHNA) and Action Plan for the Mount Desert Island Service
Area serves as a framework and guide for Mount Desert Island Hospital (MDIH), Healthy Acadia (HA)
and partner organizations in developing and strengthening our programming and services to fulfill
community needs. Each organization prioritizes elements of the CHNA and Action Plan for
implementation. We encourage local organizations and citizens to use this plan in supporting efforts to
address and coordinate community health improvement.1

The Partners

MDIH, a 501(c)(3) non-profit, state-of-the-art rural healthcare organization, serves the close-knit Mount
Desert Island and surrounding communities. Formed in 1897, MDIH has grown into a premier rural
healthcare organization with a retirement community and nine regional health centers, including a
full-service behavioral health center and a dental clinic.

MDIH’s mission is to provide compassionate care and strengthen the health of the community by
embracing tomorrow’s methods and respecting time-honored values. MDIH is committed to providing the
continuum of care that community members need and expect close to their homes. MDIH fosters and
appreciates opportunities to hear from their community through bi-annual community forums and through
a community health needs assessment every three years.

HA is a 501(c)(3) non-profit organization dedicated to empowering people and organizations as they build
healthy communities together. They serve Washington and Hancock counties, and provide additional
community health support and leadership across Maine, with work across a broad range of collaborative
community health initiatives within seven areas of focus: Strong Beginnings, Healthy Food for All,
Active and Healthy Environments, Healthy Aging, Substance Prevention and Recovery, Health Promotion
and Management, and Basic Needs. Healthy Acadia envisions vibrant communities where people thrive
and healthful resources are easily accessible. HA prioritizes creative, collaborative efforts that respond
directly to community health needs which arise as priorities in a variety of regularly convening
community committees, and various community health needs assessments including this broader MDI
region assessment in collaboration with MDIH.

This Plan focuses on the ten-town service area of MDIH. These towns include Bar Harbor, Cranberry
Isles, Frenchboro, Hancock, Lamoine, Mount Desert, Southwest Harbor, Swan’s Island, Tremont, and
Trenton. It is referred to in this report as the “Local Service Area” (LSA).

Healthy Acadia and Mount Desert Island Hospital worked from the Fall of 2023 through the Spring of
2024 to develop this CHNA and Action Plan for the service area. From start to finish, the entire CHNA
Report and Action Plan process was conducted through collaborative efforts in partnership with dozens of
local organizations and a broad base of community members. Their leadership, input, and advice
supported this project from beginning to end, every step of the way.

1Dissemination efforts include traditional and social media outreach conducted by both Mount Desert Island Hospital (MDIH)
and Healthy Acadia, a presence on the websites of these and other Steering Committee member organizations, and dissemination
to area municipalities, chambers of commerce, and nonprofit organizations.

7



Throughout the CHNA process, partners largely followed the Mobilizing for Action through Planning and
Partnerships (MAPP) process developed by the National Association of County and City Health Officers
(NACCHO). MAPP is highly regarded as a nationally-vetted tool and framework for convening the broad
organizations, groups, and individuals that comprise the local public health system. We used the most
recent version of the tool, published in 2023, and adapted it for the realities of our service area and
timeline to create and implement this community health action plan.

Relevant County Demographics

In 2020, the population of Hancock County totaled 55,478, an
increase of 2 percent or 1,060 since 2010, according to U.S. Census
Bureau data. The population for the ten towns in the LSA was
approximately 15,000 in 2023. The LSA includes three
municipalities on unbridged islands: Cranberry Isles, Frenchboro,
and Swans Island.

Census Bureau 2020 data related to health status show Hancock
County with demographics that suggest complex and high-usage health-related needs. For example,
Maine has the oldest population in the United States and Hancock County has a greater than average
number of older adults compared to the overall population in Maine. The County’s median age is 48.9
years compared to 45.1 years for Maine. In other words, Maine has the oldest population in the nation and
Hancock County is the third oldest county in Maine. The percentage of Hancock County adults over age
65 is 25.7% compared to 22.6% in Maine.

Adults in Hancock County without health coverage total
10.2% compared to the statewide average of 6.6%. Hancock
County’s poverty rate of 10.9% is slightly higher than for all
of Maine at 10.8%. Household income parallels those
comparisons with a median of $64,149 in Hancock County
and $69,543 statewide.

Regarding access to services, 2020 Census data reveal
limitations on access compared to other areas in Maine. For
example, Hancock County has one primary care provider per
950 residents, while Maine overall has one provider per 930

residents. The results for dentists are more dramatic with one dentist per 2030 residents in Hancock
County and one for every 1401 residents statewide.

According to the Maine Department of Labor, Hancock County unemployment levels are higher than the
statewide average, 6% unemployment in Hancock County, compared to 4.5% statewide. Hancock County
has the third highest unemployment rate in the State, just below Washington and Piscatquis counties.
Seasonal fluctuations in employment are significant and complicate the County and local data because
two of the most substantial portions of the economy are highly seasonal - tourism and the fishing
industries.

8



Community Vision
Our area is home to vibrant communities where people thrive and healthful
resources are easily accessible.

During the needs assessment process of 2008-2009, committee members developed a vision statement to
reflect an ideal future for the LSA’s broad-based community health. This statement was used in the
2015-2016 and 2019-2020 processes. At the onset of the 2023-2024 CHNA process, our Core Planning
Team and Steering Committee reviewed this vision statement and agreed to continue using it for
2023-2024. We concluded that the statement remains relevant and accurate, and that continuing its use has
longitudinal advantages.

Work Plan and Timeline
The updated MAPP tools and framework published in 2023 assume an 18-24 month timeline and a
population size of over 500,000, orders of magnitude well beyond our LSA. Most examples in the MAPP
tool reference geographic areas with over one million residents. Our MDI region CHNA timeline was
modified to six months and the work plan reflects our population size of approximately 15,000 and our
rural nature.

TASK TIMELINE

Form a CHNA Steering Committee and collectively define
community

September 2023

Conduct interviews, group discussions, surveys (print and
electronic) to identify key themes, community strengths and
challenges

November 2023 - March 2024

Conduct Health Status Assessment by gathering, reviewing and
analyzing existing data, such as Maine CDC CHNA reports and
US Census data

October 2023 - March 2024

Conduct Forces of Change Assessment February 2024

Organize community data into themes, summarizing strengths
and challenges

February 2024

Hold Theme working group meetings March 2024

Share drafts with Steering Committee and solicit feedback March - April 2024

Core Planning Team/Steering Committee final review April 2020

9



Complete and publish “2024 Community Health Assessment and
Action Plan”

May 1, 2024

MDI Hospital and other organizations begin developing
implementation plans

May 2024

Publication and dissemination of “Community Health
Assessment and Action Plan”

May 2024

Methodology - Our Assessment Process
Our 2023-2024 CHNA, based on the MAPP framework, includes completion of the four assessments
prescribed by the most recent version published in 2023:

● Community Themes and Strengths Assessment2
● Community Health Status Assessment
● Community Partner Assessment
● Forces of Change Assessment

The processes for conducting these assessments are outlined below. Data from the Community Themes
and Strengths, Community Health Status, Community Partner, and Forces of Change assessments were3

aggregated into six key themes. We organized working groups to delve into those issues. The process for
conducting the Theme Working Groups is also outlined below.

Community Themes and Strengths Assessment
The Community Themes and Strengths Assessment
provides quantitative and qualitative data about current
community health strengths, challenges, unmet needs,
and opportunities. For this assessment, CHNA
coordinators created a “Community Health Survey”
and spent two months collecting broad input through
electronic and paper surveys available in both English
and Spanish. Thousands of community members were
invited to answer questions and share their personal
perceptions about the health of the community. Dozens of community partners, including Steering
Committee members helped publicize and disseminate the survey widely in the region through various
modalities, including social media sites, organization’s electronic and print newsletters, and posters with a
QR code and phone number to request a paper survey at locations including town offices, libraries, gyms,
community centers and faith organizations. The survey instrument and results appear in Appendices B
and C.

We received 412 completed surveys from community members living, working, playing, and/or receiving

3 All data available upon request by contacting info@healthyacadia.org.

2 This is formally titled “Community Context Assessment” within the 2023 MAPP framework. We opted to use language familiar
from previous MDI region CHNA processes.

10

mailto:info@healthyacadia.org


services in the LSA. The resulting data were analyzed, organized, and used to identify and frame our six
themes.

Through the survey process, significant efforts were made to ensure that respondents matched the LSA
population and recognized data collection norms. This was fulfilled through a diverse survey
dissemination effort and frequent evaluation of respondent demographics. Data on town, gender, age, race
and ethnicity, household income, and healthcare payment methods were collected. In response to
recommendations in the 2020 CHNA report, special considerations and strategic outreach was focused to
ensure participation among community members who are traditionally underrepresented in these types of
surveys, including people who have low incomes, identify as Black, Indigenous, and people of color
(BIPOC), identify as lesbian, gay, bisexual, pansexual, transgender, genderqueer, queer, intersexed,
agender, asexual (LGBTQIA+), disabled or having disabilities, essential workers, unemployed and
underemployed individuals, and seasonal residents.

In response to recommendations in the 2020 CHNA Report, we added features to the demographic data
collection: (1) income data; (2) actual name of the town rather than zip code for greater specificity; and
(3) expansion of the question “How do you pay for healthcare?” to clarify data on employer-provided,
personally purchased, and various types of government-sponsored insurance.

A high number of survey responses is always desirable, of course. CHNA Coordinators and Steering
Committee Members are pleased that with a population of 15,000 in our LSA, we heard from a large and
representative group of community members with varied interests and opinions regarding the health of
their communities, where strengths and challenges exist, and what priorities they would like addressed.

Community Health Status Assessment
The Community Health Status assessment included review of existing data, both quantitative and
qualitative, such as demographics and health indicators, that are significant in assessing the current
landscape as well as well-met and unmet community health needs. These data were used in several ways,
such as helping to draft the “Community Health Survey” described above and comparing our results to
published county, state, and national data, and were shared with the Steering Committee and Theme
Working Groups as context for our local focus.

References on page 39 detail the full list of sources used for this analytic portion of our assessment. Key
resources included the Maine Center for Disease Control and Prevention, specifically data from the past
and the most recent Hancock County Health Profile and theMaine Shared Community Health Needs
Assessment. Other State and Federal data used include the U.S. Census Bureau as well as the Maine
Departments of Education, Health and Human Services, and Labor. We also relied heavily on the most
recent and past versions of theMaine Kids Count Data Book published by the Maine Children’s Alliance.

Forces of Change Assessment
As the MAPP tool notes,“Forces of Change” (events, trends, and factors in the broader environment)
occur or might occur that affect the community's health. These forces are beyond local control, yet may
require awareness and response. Our Forces of Change Assessment explored relevant externalities and
possible threats or opportunities since publication of the 2020 CHNA report.

This assessment was completed by the Steering Committee through group discussion. These forces, as
well as their associated threats and opportunities, were shared with the Theme Working groups to inform

11



their preparation and thinking in developing a cadre of strengths, challenges, goals, and strategies, and
contribute to the final content of this report. Not surprisingly, the results of this exercise closely parallel
issues and priorities that surfaced in the other assessments. See Appendix E for the Forces of Change
Assessment summary.

Community Partner Assessment
This portion of the CHNA process was designed to help identify the organizations involved in supporting
the health and well-being of our community, whom they serve, what they do, and their capacities and
skills in building community health. The primary goal of this assessment was to better understand how

various organizations contribute to our local public health
system and to achieve a clearer picture of how to improve
our community’s health collaboratively. The Community
Partner Assessment was initiated with the underlying
philosophy that myriad entities are vital to and contribute to
our community’s local public health system, even if they are
outside the traditional public health or healthcare sectors.
To complete the Community Partner Assessment, Steering
Committee members received an online survey to gather
information about their organization’s mission, focus, type of
work, range of services, populations served, strengths,
resources, assets, challenges, and wishes for the future. They
were also asked what type of data their organization uses and

collects, their ability to share those data, how their organization might contribute to the 2023-2024 CHNA
overall, including follow-up planning and implementation. Broad input was sought to understand the
collective strengths and opportunities as context for the current health ecosystem.

The introduction to the survey explained our philosophy that public health is more than healthcare and
that health outcomes are shaped by behaviors, ability to access care, living and working conditions, and
the institutions, policies, systems, cultural norms, social inequities, and environment that shape our
community. For example, organizations working to improve the well-being of individuals, families, and
communities through improving housing, education, childcare, or workforce development impact the
public’s health.

The data from this survey were used initially to help frame the “Community Health Survey” described
above. Later, the findings were added to the information gathered through the other three assessments to
design the process and composition for the Theme Working Group meetings described below.

Theme Working Groups
Through the combined findings of the four assessments outlined above, six key themes were identified:
Access to Care, Aging in Place, Basic Needs, Community Connectedness, Housing, and Mental and
Behavioral Health, including Substance Use.

Working groups were convened to discuss these six themes through a selection process that included
invitations to Steering Committee members, leaders in the community with expertise on the given topics,
and survey respondents who indicated interest in involvement in the broader assessment. Steering
Committee members were able to self-select the working group(s) they wanted to join. Others were
invited to participate in specific themes related to their expertise and interest, as well as to keep the groups

12



balanced in size and relevant demographics, as recommended in the 2020 report.

Working group meetings were ninety minutes each and held virtually to maximize convenience and
participation, and to avoid potential winter weather travel complications. In preparation for the meetings,
participants received background information about the project, a copy of the 2020 CHNA report, a
detailed meeting agenda, and highlights drawn from qualitative and quantitative data.

After the six initial working group meetings, CHNA staff conducted follow-on phone calls and an
additional group meeting to capture specific diverse and important perspectives on key issues that arose
and warranted further exploration.

Findings: Strengths, Challenges, Goals and Strategies
The four assessments and Theme Working Groups provide
a detailed picture of the current community health
landscape. The cumulative results were critical in
identifying the six themes. Those assessments framed the
foundation of the 2023-2024 CHNA processes outlined
above, led to the six themes, and constitute the findings and
recommendations for action outlined below.

Over 60% of respondents to the Community Health Survey
ranked “safe and affordable housing” as a top concern in
addressing community health, the highest rating of all
issues. The next most highly rated concerns were “the cost
of care and prescriptions” with 50% and “mental health
challenges” with nearly 47%. “Substance use” appeared

fourth
with over
40%.
Cost of
care (or affordability) is an important component of
access to care and is addressed within that theme. With
the overlap in addressing mental health and substance
use, we combined those to be addressed in the same
theme.

All six themes reflect analyses of the data we collected
and referenced: Access to Care, Aging in Place, Basic
Needs, Community Connectedness, Housing, and
Mental and Behavioral Health.

Many survey respondents added compelling open-text
comments to expand on their multiple choice answers. We were struck by the emotion and intensity of
these additions. Sample quotes that provide an indication of what we learned include (note these are
direct, unedited quotes transcribed from survey responses):

13



“So much is done by neighbors helping neighbors and non-profit organizations.”

“In general, the healthcare offered in the MDI area is pretty impressive considering our area's rural
nature, but it is far too difficult to find and receive good dental care. Lots of dental offices book half a
year in advance or are not accepting new patients.”

“It feels like there aren't enough providers here. The wait times for some providers are very long and it
can be discouraging to seek treatment/help and then not be able to get an appointment for many months.”

“We have a large disparity between the have and have nots. Unless one has a job with good insurance
coverage, most are going to go without healthcare. It comes down to a choice of am I going to eat, stay
warm, have lights, buy my meds? What can I manage to go without for a while? Affordable housing would
be a plus. I have a good job with awesome benefits, yet must live with a family member since I bring home
$1500 a month.”

“Home health care! Sadly lacking and very needed by many.”

“If you don’t drive or have family available, it is hard to get to appointments and activities.”

“There are likely a lot of programs available, but I don't know about them.”

“There is no nursing home or rehabilitation facility on MDI anymore except Birch Bay, which is great but
only for the well-off.”

“Having a child in daycare, paying $200/week for health insurance, and living costs keep us living
paycheck to paycheck despite having well-paying jobs and not living above our means.”

“Obviously, safe and affordable housing is one of the main issues in the area and something many people
are working on, but it's still something that affects many and makes living a healthy and happy life
extremely difficult.”

“We are fortunate to live in a close knit small community. Good people are everywhere. We help each
other when tragedy strikes. When locals who have lived here a long for generations are being driven off
island because they cannot afford the real estate taxes or their family homestead, there is a problem.”

Strengths and Challenges

Both the Community Health Survey and Theme Working Group meetings asked participants to identify
the top “strengths” and “challenges” related to health in our region. We found great consensus on what
were viewed as the LSA’s strengths and challenges. Many of the same strengths and challenges were
mentioned regardless of which theme was being discussed. Rather than repeat those findings under each
theme heading, the more universal topics are listed here. Interestingly, some issues were considered both a
“strength” and a “challenge” using slightly different language and framing.

14



Commonly Mentioned Challenges:

● Housings costs, availability, and quality of rentals
● Lack of coordination among available resources
● Limited public awareness of available resources
● Transportation, including increased price of the ferry to the unbridged islands
● Many impacts of COVID-19, especially on finances, mental health, loneliness, youth, and

complex issues related to in-migration
● Limited clinical providers of all types
● Competing for clinical staff with for-profits and others who are not reliant on Medicare and

Medicaid reimbursement limits
● No nursing home in Hancock County
● Stigma of asking for and/or receiving help
● Impact of isolation and loneliness on physical and mental health, particularly for older people and

families with young children, exacerbated by the COVID-19 pandemic
● Access and availability of health and social services for unbridged island residents
● Seasonal fluctuations in population size, composition, and needs
● Many services concentrated in Bar Harbor, with more limitations in other towns in the region
● Limited winter time social activities
● Limited after-school options for children
● Seasonal economy
● High proportion of people who are uninsured, underinsured , and/or have high deductibles and

copays
● Northern Light Healthcare’s decreased home-based services in the LSA
● Lack of awareness of available financial assistance programs and other resources and supports
● Difficulty in applying for or enrolling in available programs, such as MaineCare and low income

heating assistance
● Inadequate rehabilitation and long-term care options for both at-home and residential services
● Access challenges cause long waits and/or require travel to Bangor and beyond for specialty

healthcare services
● Limited employment and economic opportunities in the LSA
● High cost of nutritious food
● Limited year-round affordable physical and social activity opportunities
● Cost of childcare and elder care
● Bimodal nature of Hancock County income and other data limits the ability to fully understand

the needs and solutions for our LSA

Commonly Mentioned Strengths:

● Natural beauty of the area
● Access to the outdoors, Acadia National Park and other green spaces that promote physical and

mental health and wellness
● Caring community culture
● Strong sense of place and community connectedness
● Lots of high quality non-profit organizations
● Lots of free or low-cost services and resources throughout the region, such as community meals,

food pantries, and social clubs
● MDIH, an independent, non-profit community hospital providing a wide variety of high-quality

programs, services, and care, with clinical sites throughout the region

15



● Maine Seacoast Mission’s work to support and provide access to unbridged island residents
● Strong culture of philanthropy, civic participation, and volunteerism
● First responders and criminal justice professionals who are community minded and eager to

collaborate with the health sector
● Wellness and prevention programs offered through many area organizations
● Telemedicine services became more prevalent during the pandemic, particularly helpful to

connect with residents of the outer islands, help address transportation and mobility challenges,
and expand access in general

● Low or no cost transportation services, including the Island Explorer, Downeast Transportation,
Island Connections, and Friends in Action

● Health education and health resources in the public schools

Goals and Strategies

Similar to what we learned while investigating challenges and strengths, in working group meetings
when asked to identify goals and strategies to address that specific theme, many ideas and
recommendations were mentioned consistently across the themes. For brevity, common goals and
strategies are listed below and will not be repeated under each theme.

Our findings from this CHNA focused on health, yielded very consistent results to those in a
two-year comprehensive planning process underway by the Town of Bar Harbor. Both identified
“housing” and “transportation” as top concerns. While the CHNA work covers a broader geographic
area than Bar Harbor, the consistent themes are noteworthy. Moreover, solutions identified by this
CHNA and the comprehensive plan will involve many of the same actions and actors, particularly
because the health sector cannot address major issues, primarily housing and transportation needs,
without many other partners.

The Town of Bar Harbor’s final report is scheduled
to be published in summer 2024. A February 2024
draft of that report identifies major “Themes and
Actions” with “ Housing Solutions” as the first
theme. Four broad “solutions” are listed followed by
dozens of specific recommended strategies. The
third theme is “People-Centered Transportation”
with seven broad “solutions” followed by dozens of
recommended strategies and actions. This is one of a
number of local area improvement reports. We
strongly support and recommend considering
proposed strategies and working together on next
steps in regional implementation.

In keeping with our philosophy that many and various entities are vital to and contribute to our
community’s local public health system, our hope and expectation is that various community
members, and non-profit, for-profit, and municipal organizations will contribute to and collaborate
on implementation of the goals and strategies included below and throughout this report.

16



Five Overarching Goals

Across the six themes, multiple goals and strategies arose that are relevant in all areas:

Goal 1: Improve knowledge of and communication about existing resources and services

Strategies:
● Connect with local websites and social media platforms such as the local Facebook

group Bar Harbor Barter & Swap
● Conduct public talks and/or community forums
● Use traditional and social media, including newspapers, newsletters, flyers, television,

radio, podcasts, Facebook, Twitter, and Instagram to increase awareness
● Leverage or create community bulletin boards at locations frequented by many people in

regular travels, such as food shops, banks and restaurants, post offices, libraries, schools,
banks, laundromats, and gyms

● Coordinate with 211 to maximize the effectiveness of that tool for finding services in the
LSA

● Promote use of 211 as a resource
● Explore the “Bundle” smart phone app that Heart of Maine United Way developed for

Piscataquis County as a model

Goal 2: Offer free support to access and enroll in existing services and programs

Strategies:
● Expand and better coordinate navigator programs
● Design programs and recruit volunteers to help people understand and apply for existing

programs
● Coordinate to promote and publicize existing programs and services
● Engage those outside the health and social services sectors, such as the business

community, schools, faith-based organizations, libraries, and first-responders, to help
publicize options and where to find help in accessing services

● Expand online and social media avenues for learning about and accessing services

Goal 3: Improve coordination of existing services

Strategies:
● Hold monthly breakfasts or informal meetings for non-profit staff and other interested

parties to network, share information, and plan ways of coordinating activities and
improving ability to refer people to other options

● Create systems for a “warm hand-off” between services, both clinical and social
● Leverage town office staff and connect with town select boards and comprehensive

planning efforts to promote LSA-wide ongoing communication and joint planning
● Explore Washington County’s “The Connection Initiative” sponsored by the Community

Caring Collaborative

Goal 4: Improve wireless and telecommunication services and expand broadband capacity in ways
that will support telehealth, help attract and retain employees, and foster overall economic growth
and remote work opportunities in the LSA

17



Strategies:
● Investigate opportunities through Connectivity Maine
● Engage the business community in solutions
● Research state, federal, and philanthropic grant opportunities
● Leverage the services offered by libraries and schools
● Design systems and options for affordable access for low and limited income residents
● Collaborate with libraries and other community centers to offer computer literacy

programs and trainings

Goal 5: Improve transportation options

Strategies:
● Focus on connectivity and coordination with services and social/community engagement

opportunities
● Promote and publicize existing public transportation services, such as Island

Connections, the Island Explorer, and transportation resources through MDIH and
insurance designed to access health care

● Encourage existing transportation resources to collaborate to promote easy access, such
as publicity and coordinating their trip schedules

● Prioritize needs of people without access to a motor vehicle, including older residents,
low-income residents, and children

● Explore creating a “water taxi” program to the unbridged islands as a lower cost
alternative to the ferries; perhaps identify someone willing to donate a used lobster boat
that can be retrofitted for passenger seating as the vehicle

● Improve pedestrian and bicycle lanes for transportation and physical activity options
● Encourage car-pooling and other alternative modes of transportation
● Leverage the opening of the new Acadia Gateway Center for proactive work that will

increase public transportation, rideshare, and parking options

Theme Overviews and Goals and Strategies

Theme One: Access to Care
Strategic Question:What can we do to maximize the likelihood that all community members
have access to quality affordable health care, including primary, specialty, and dental care?

Key Data and Findings: Numerous strengths and challenges impact access to high quality, affordable
healthcare for community members in the LSA, including wait times, affordability, and range of services.
Significant challenges impede ideal staffing levels for most, if not all, types of clinical providers.

One example of extremely limited access to health care providers - 2020 U.S. Census data reveal that
Hancock County has one primary care provider per 950 residents, while Maine overall has one provider
per 930 residents. The results for dentists are more dramatic with one dentist per 2030 residents in
Hancock County and one for every 1401 residents statewide.

Related Survey Respondent Quotes:
In general, the healthcare offered in the MDI area is pretty impressive considering our area's rural

18



nature, but it is far too difficult to find and receive good dental care. Lots of dental offices book half a
year in advance or are not accepting new patients.

As with every industry right now there needs to be more staff. The infrastructure of the healthcare system
cannot keep up with the influx of people who have moved to MDI.

More easily accessible meetings/phone communication/appointments

I have no health insurance so I don’t get services unless I can afford them which I cannot.

More urgent care services. It takes forever to be seen in the ER, and urgent care is sorely needed as an
alternative.

Access to dentists, mental health and PCP providers. The waiting lists are extremely long.

It feels like there aren't enough providers here. The wait times for
some providers are very long and it can be discouraging to seek
treatment/help and then not be able to get an appointment for many
months.

I did not seek health care treatment due to the high cost of
deductibles.

We don't have an open pharmacy on the weekend, so we sometimes
go without medication until Monday!

Challenges in our community in this theme area:

● “Crisis situation” for dental services; no capacity to accept new patients; at one practice 200-250
people per week were turned away in 2023

● Long waiting times for most appointments
● Wait times experienced even for acute needs
● Very limited specialty care
● Months of waiting to access referrals from primary care providers
● MDIH does not have influence or control over when/how specialty referrals are completed
● Shortage of mental health providers, especially for children
● Neurology services are particularly acutely limited, and cannot be done by telehealth
● No weekend retail pharmacy
● Most dentists do not take MaineCare and reimbursement rates are significantly too low
● Open positions extremely difficult to fill at the behavioral health center
● Lack of insurance for many in the LSA
● Housing is a major obstacle in recruiting providers and other staff
● Cannot compete with salaries offered by local franchises of national for-profit entities
● Loss of providers during COVID-19 who have not returned to field in this region
● Cost of getting from islands to mainland, especially with ferry rate increase (now $70 roundtrip

for an adult to Swans or the Cranberry Islands without a car)
● Older patients often require lengthy appointments (and LSA has an unusually high proportion of

older residents)

19



● Long wait times increase intensity and acuity of services, especially for mental and behavioral
health, including Substance Use Disorder (SUD)

● Long wait times suggest to patients they do not matter
● Wait times and lack of providers means more people go to ER and/or into crisis
● Limited choice of providers
● Limited access creates anxiety about services being available when needed
● Travel distances, especially for specialty care or when multiple days/appointments are needed
● Complicated reimbursement for telehealth services
● No skilled nursing facilities in the area
● Staffing for nursing homes and other settings is a big challenge related to salaries and vaccine

requirements

Strengths in our community in this theme area:

● MDIH screens for social determinants of health (for in-patient and out-patient care) and follows
up actively

● Warm hand-offs and connecting to resources (both specialty services and appointments generally)
● Many MDIH leaders have leadership positions at the Maine Hospital Association, positioning

MDIH to help with advocacy and prioritizing acute needs
● MDIH is an independent community access hospital, which allows them to be nimble and

patient-centered
● The MDIH care management team, including coaches and diabetic educators, has a collaborative

spirit and preventive focus, including special supports for the most vulnerable community
members

● Maine Seacoast Mission visits to unbridged islands; with telehealth and vaccines on islands
● Continuity of care at MDIH is exceptional
● Caring providers, with a welcoming and personal feel
● MDIH patient portal
● Resources and programs are available to help overcome obstacles of cost-related access
● Area philanthropy supports health related needs
● Multiple centers located in smaller communities promotes decentralized local access
● Patients can reach a real person, not just a consolidated call center
● Long tenure of MDIH staff
● Carroll Drug store services and advice, such as prescription delivery service
● Increased use and availability of telehealth
● Local providers participate and invest in health professional education, hosting students and

trainees on clinical rotations with an eye toward recruiting staff

Goal 1: Increase the number of health care providers to expand range and timely access to services.

Strategies:
● Send an alarm that dental service access is in crisis to policymakers and others who can help

create immediate solutions
● Expand use of telehealth for specialty services, including behavioral health
● Coordinate and increase advocacy efforts at State level to increase MaineCare rates generally,

especially for dental services
● Identify ways to expand reimbursement for dental and other services
● Re-negotiate contracts with insurance companies to more realistically reflect living wages

and costs of delivering services

20



● Investigate licensure, reimbursement and liability insurance issues to be able to recruit
out-of-state providers to work remotely using telehealth

● Collaborate with Maine Seacoast Mission to expand and coordinate services for unbridged
islands, including transportation obstacles

● Pursue philanthropic support to help bridge gaps between costs of delivering services and
reimbursement

● Explore telehealth options that only require a cell phone, not a computer, for accessing
services

● Explore transitional care models to improve aging in place to prevent needs requiring acute
services and hospitalization

● Coordinate and expand community efforts with partners such as employers and the chambers
of commerce to create financial incentives and other programs to help recruit and retain
providers

● Expand and focus advocacy at the State level for creative solutions around licensure (e.g.
inter-state licenses, licenses for foreign grads, retirees and others willing to volunteer)

● Engage federal representatives to address visa issues that hinder employment mobility and
options

● Advocate to create “dental assistant” category of professional, as exists in 42 other states
● Work with community colleges to expand various health professional training programs
● Work with realtors, schools, chambers, etc. to create “welcome” program for people who

come to area for clinical rotations as well as peer and social supports for new providers
● Organize outreach to retired providers for re-engagement on a part-time and perhaps

volunteer basis
● Work to better understand how to reduce staff turnover and increase staff efficiency
● Explore strategies and regulation modifications implemented during pandemic to see if they

can be reimplemented or expanded

Goal 2: Continue to emphasize patient-centered care.

Strategies:
● Continue improving communication with patients to better explain specialist referral process

and timeline and related access and timing processes
● Expand retail pharmacy hours and access on MDI
● Continue focus on seamless transitions between various levels of care and needs for people

through case management and other personalized supports
● Develop flexibility in schedule to facilitate timely follow up appointments
● Increase the number of available swing beds
● Offer support for home-based and family caregivers,
● Design health education and social services materials and tools with a focus on level of health

literacy
● Continue to collaborate with the school system to promote and provide care in school settings
● Coordinate with College of the Atlantic to improve access to counseling on campus and

referrals for higher level needs
● Continue to educate providers to appropriately support patients who identify as LGBTQ+
● Work with employers to understand and address health needs of seasonal workforce

21



Goal 3: Expand health supports outside of traditional healthcare settings.

Strategies:
● Offer more community-based support groups for specific issues and needs (e.g. new parents,

children of elderly parents, caregivers, nutrition counseling, exercise groups)
● Help people with managing expenses of care by applying for available programs
● Bring federal and state representatives to the LSA for multi-site visits to better understand

issues and needs, and the impact of health care issues on the economy and community overall
● Expand and coordinate, multi-prong advocacy work at local, state, and national levels
● Increase education and awareness about what to expect and what resources exist related to

major life transitions (graduations, new parenthood, aging, etc.)

Theme Two: Aging in Place
Strategic Question:What can we do to maximize the likelihood that all community members have the
necessary physical, social, and health supports to promote aging in place?

Key Data and Findings: Fewer than half of survey respondents agreed with the statement,“This
community is a good place to grow old (considering elder-friendly housing, transportation, shopping,
elder day care, community activities, social supports for the elderly living alone, meals on wheels, etc.)”.
More people agreed with the statement, “This community is a good, safe place to raise children
(considering schools, child care options, community activities and resources, housing, and employment
opportunities, etc.)”.

According to 2023 U.S. Census Bureau data, Maine is the oldest state in the nation with an average age of
45.1 years compared to the national average of 39 years. Hancock County is the third oldest county in
Maine with an average age of 49. In other words, Hancock is the third oldest county in the oldest state in
the nation.

Related Survey Respondent Quote:
We're losing, or never had enough, services for our aging population. There are not enough places or
people to help for all the different needs. AND what there is, is hard to access, has a long waiting list or
isn't all that helpful in real life.

Challenges in our community in this theme area:

● All nursing homes in Hancock County have closed
● Group housing needs for aging residents, especially those with mental health concerns are limited
● Loneliness - people are eager for company and conversation
● Needs are increasing as Northern Light has curtailed services in the LSA
● Limited hospice capacity
● Lack of coordination/consolidation among organizations “each doing a small piece”
● Not enough respite care beds or home-based respite care staff
● Lack of support for people (through professionals, volunteers, and family) who want to be able to

die at home
● Staffing challenges for home health care and hospice care
● Fewer volunteers since COVID-19, as many volunteers were older residents
● Unique needs and issues exist for unbridged island residents, who also tend to be older

22



● Caregiver support is needed
● Long-term care insurance is too expensive and benefits are limited
● Shortage of ways to engage people mentally and physically in the community as they age

Strengths in our community in this theme area:

● Many year-round and seasonal retirees with great skills, passion, and interest in volunteering
● Hospice program, albeit with limited capacity to meet need
● Strong and active faith-based community, although also with limited capacity
● Lots of organizations involved and wanting to help
● Strong, caring and committed community spirit and culture
● Lots of people and organizations have expertise and already working in this arena in this region
● Intense and broad awareness of issues and unmet needs
● Pockets of affluence
● AARP programs and supports
● Eastern Agency on Aging programs and supports

Goal 1: Older people will thrive, live comfortably and safely age in place in our LSA.

Strategies:
● Engage older people in community to help maintain mental and emotional wellbeing
● Assure immediate access for older residents to address acute symptoms, both physical and

mental health needs
● Connect people with home delivery services such as through Walmart, Hannaford, and

Walgreens, and support their ability to complete orders online for items including groceries,
prescriptions, and household and medical care products

● Restart the Hancock County Healthy Aging Network or a similar model of inter-organization
coordination

● Develop or build on the Downeast Community Partner program to retrofit and remodel
homes to make them safer and more accessible for people who are older or disabled

● Contact the Eastern Agency on Aging for additional information about respite care and other
support programs

● Create coordinated focus to help families and caregivers support loved ones as they age,
especially when recovering after acute events

● Build on partnerships that exist through Island Connections for transportation to community
events

● Explore and potentially expand “At Home” services through Downeast Community Partners
● Train and coordinate volunteers to help older people confidently use telehealth
● Explore resources or ideas available through AARP
● Consider replication of Downeast Community Partner’s Friendship Cottage for adult day care
● Coordinate with first responders and law enforcement to help create strategies to address and

triage non-criminal emergencies involving physical safety
● Explore Friends in Action services that could be promoted or replicated in the LSA
● Coordinate and promote ways for youth and young adults to help older neighbors, perhaps

through the high school’s community service program, Rotary, or Eagle Scouts
● Increase and promote multigenerational interactions and activities
● Increase awareness of opportunities for volunteerism and civic engagement, with a special

focus on engaging retirees
● Promote wellness checks by police

23



● Encourage more community outreach to isolated seniors.

Theme Three: Basic Needs
Strategic Question:What can we do to maximize the likelihood that all community members
have their basic needs met?

Key Data and Findings: Numerous strengths and challenges exist in the LSA that impact positive social,
economic, and environmental conditions that encourage health and general well-being for all. Many
“social determinants of health” pose significant challenges in the region, largely stemming from economic
conditions. For example, fewer than three-quarters of survey respondents said “yes” when asked, “Do you
feel as though every community member has equal access to high-quality health-promoting services and
supports?”.

Adults in Hancock County without health coverage total
10.2% compared to the statewide average of 6.6%.
Hancock County’s poverty rate of 10.9% is slightly higher
than for all of Maine at 10.8%. Household income parallels
those comparisons with a median rate of $64,149 in
Hancock County and $69,543 statewide.

Related Survey Respondent Quotes:
We have a large disparity between the have and have nots.

Unless one has a job with good insurance coverage, most
are going to go without healthcare. It comes down to a

choice of am I going to eat, stay warm, have lights, buy my meds? What can I manage to go without for a
while? Affordable housing would be a plus. I have a good job with awesome benefits, yet must live with a
family member since I bring home $1500 a month.

Jobs don't pay enough to afford a family and to house and feed them.

I have to move in March. Housing insecurity and food insecurity annually are a problem

I did not seek health care treatment due to the high cost of deductibles.

There are likely a lot of programs available, but I don't know about them.

We have a lot of services considering the size of the community.

Having a child in daycare, paying $200/week for health insurance, and living costs keep us living
paycheck to paycheck despite having well-paying jobs and not living above our means.

We have great resources for food insecurity in our area, between the food pantry and Open Table.

Transportation, especially from outer islands, is challenging for families. Childcare is a challenge, and
families would benefit from access to resources, services and spaces outside of work day hours in order to

24



not miss work.

Challenges in our community in this theme area:

● Highly seasonal economy
● People need the help of staff or volunteers to complete applications
● “Paperwork” and burden of applying, as well as knowing where and how to apply for programs
● Maine Care denials
● Learning and medical disabilities, and literacy issues
● No warming center in LSA
● More resource navigators needed
● Limited transportation
● Low paying jobs and the high cost of living
● Community support systems are changing as the population ages and young people move away
● Elimination of Raising Readers program will disproportionately impact young families,

particularly those with limited incomes

Strengths in our community in this theme area:

● Low crime
● Collaborative nonprofits and social service agencies
● Food pantries
● Strong culture of community involvement, philanthropy, and volunteering
● Bar Harbor Barter & Swap
● Some flex funds exist, including through YMCA, Shaw Fund for Mariners, and Healthy Acadia
● Pockets of great affluence
● Local farms
● Law enforcement's awareness and help with de-escalation and mental health
● Mount Desert Nursing Association, which provides in-home services and assessments
● Schools working to address mental health needs of youth
● Supportive and closer-knit communities (especially year-round)
● Willingness of community and groups to talk about and address challenges

Goal 1: All persons in our community will have their basic needs met.

Strategies:
● Add and coordinate ways to help people access the resources that they are entitled to and do

not know about, such as through Facebook spotlights, bulletin boards, and in-person
connections where people naturally go, such as community centers, laundromats and libraries

● Increase the number of patient care navigator and others who can help people learn about and
apply for available programs

● Coordinate advocacy to increase public and philanthropic funding
● Define and highlight the role of resource coordinators and case managers
● Involve houses of worship more fully in outreach and creating solutions
● Increase communication and knowledge among health providers regarding available

resources
● Expand INSPIRE center and/or replicate model on MDI
● Expand mobile services, e.g. dentist going to outer islands - bring services to people in their

community

25



● Incentivize and support worksite wellness programs and practices
● Continue to develop and promote food recovery efforts such as gleaning
● Prioritize monitoring of and efforts to directly address health disparities
● Prioritize including diverse perspectives in strategic brainstorming, planning, and evaluation

projects
● Look into bringing Dolly Parton’s or another reading program for your children to the LSA;

identify and coordinate with other non-profits in Hancock County who have done so already

Theme Four: Community Connectedness
Strategic Question:What can we do to maximize the likelihood that all community members
have age-appropriate access to positive social environments that facilitate a sense of
connectedness and well-being?

Key Data and Findings: Numerous strengths and challenges exist in the LSA that impact positive social
environments to facilitate a sense of connectedness for all. The messages here are complicated and mixed.
For example, many survey respondents voluntarily added free-text comments related to loneliness and
fractured social connections resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic that persist to date. Nonetheless, the
strength of community connection both to the place and to other people was evident in the data. Nearly 70
percent of respondents agreed or strongly agreed with the statement, “I am satisfied with the quality of
life in our community (considering my sense of well-being and safety).” And when asked to identify the
“most significant health strengths in our community,” 49 percent of respondents listed “close knit
community,” second only to the number of respondents choosing the natural beauty of the area.

Related Survey Respondent Quotes:
[We need a] community center with social activities, exercise classes, meeting spaces.

Community outreach to families with young children for consistent support, social opportunities and
parenting education.

[We need] things to engage winter community

There are many groups here that are closely knit,
but finding them or joining them can be a difficult
effort.

We are fortunate to live in a close knit small
community. Good people are everywhere. We help
each other when tragedy strikes. When locals who
have lived here a long for generations are being
driven off island because they cannot afford the real
estate taxes or their family homestead, there is a
problem.

Love the small town mentality and the truth of neighbors helping neighbors, particularly in the off season
when the tourists disappear. I moved here after years of coming as one of those tourists. And I am happy
that the off season is EXACTLY what I hoped it would be.

26



So much is done by neighbors helping neighbors and non-profit organizations.

Our environment is our greatest asset here as are the close knit communities

Living on MDI is a dream, Acadia National Park on the island offers unique opportunities to explore
nature, there are many volunteers that help run this island.

Challenges in our community in this theme area:

● Expensive to live here and taxes are high
● Employment opportunities are limited
● Shortage of year-round gathering places, e.g. coffee shops, that are convenient, welcoming and

affordable to meet
● Digital divide - some generational differences
● Aging community
● Seasonal economy
● Transportation shortages
● Shortage of assisted and long-term living and support as people age
● Loneliness
● Since COVID-19 people are not gathering/meeting through places of worship in same way as in

the past
● Phone use and social media use, especially amongst teens
● Limited safe and healthy social opportunities for youth

Strengths in our community in this theme area:

● Community meals, such as Neighborhood House community cafes, Common Good, and Open
Table MDI

● Faith-based community
● Business community is involved in community meals and aware of these needs
● Libraries
● Schools
● Hospital “walk and talks” (e.g. former “walk with doc” and organized Acadia walks)
● YMCA programs that involved talks, exercise, and time to meet/socialize
● Bar Harbor Barter & Swap as community platform

Goal 1: Increase access to safe, positive social opportunities, engagement and spaces for all ages in all
regions of the LSA.

Strategies:
● Increase social check-ins with elders who live alone
● Create opportunities for people to connect with each other, in both organized and loosely

organized ways
● Reestablish mentoring programs for kids, such as Big Brothers Big Sisters
● Leverage and create partnerships between non-profit organizations, businesses, and faith

organizations
● Identify ways to reach people who do not use social media or other digital platforms to ensure

that they can learn about resources and options

27



● Conduct a survey to identify what programs/needs are most needed by different populations.
e.g. older people, families with preschool aged children, school children, young/middle-aged
single people etc

● Create multi-generational interactions and bridges, regardless of family status
● Expand the Neighborhood House community cafe model to other areas of the LSAs
● Create a platform like Bar Harbor Barter & Swap specifically for volunteer needs and

activities
● Engage libraries to help with publicizing activities and resources, especially for those not

comfortable with digital options and/or with limited access
● Engage health providers to help identify community members experiencing loneliness who

might benefit from services or support
● Build on the follow-up call program for patients discharged from MDIH or who have MDIH

primary care providers
● Ask towns to send information about community services and engagement with tax bills to be

sure everyone receives it, regardless of computer access
● Expand the Mount Desert 365 model for available jobs
● Create a pen pal program
● Coordinate with the police department to understand and expand their daily wellness check

program to involve more people and perhaps longer conversations
● Establish play groups, perhaps using the La Leche model, for parents of newborns to gather

weekly
● Identify ways to reproduce community activities and events (like the Lions Club ice fest or

cross country ski race) that were discontinued with climate shifts and the pandemic, perhaps
with hiking or rock climbing

● Engage Acadia Senior College in identifying and offering socialization opportunities
● Look into models for safe intergenerational cohousing
● Build or coordinate with visiting nurses and/or transportation programs to expand options for

in home visiting
● Increase and promote multigenerational interactions and activities
● Increase awareness of opportunities for volunteerism and civic engagement, with a special

focus on engaging retirees to bring their time, energy, and expertise to building community
health

● Increase opportunities for afterschool and summer activities for children and youth, and for
evening and weekend events for working parents

● Increase physical activity opportunities for working community members, including through
daytime worksite wellness programs

● Prioritize community spaces for indoor activities in the winter
● Engage retirees and seasonal residents to contribute their time, energy, and expertise as

volunteers
● Coordinate activities to promote and facilitate volunteerism throughout the area, such as

through volunteer days or fairs, fundraising for volunteer programs, and resource sharing
● Increase access to programming that helps community members to prepare for aging and end

of life transitions
● Increase and promote multigenerational interactions and activities
● Increase opportunities for afterschool and summer activities for youth, for evening and

weekend events for working parents, and seniors
● Promote public spaces designed for and accessible to individuals with physical disabilities

28



Theme Five: Housing
Strategic Question: What can we do to maximize the likelihood that all community members can
secure safe, affordable housing in our region?

Key Data and Findings: Safe and affordable housing was cited by 60 percent of survey respondents as
the top concern related to community health and wellness in our LSA, more than two-thirds more
mentions than the next two most highly ranked concerns: (1) access to care and (2) mental and behavioral
health, including substance use. Additionally, every Theme Working Group focused on housing as a
critical factor contributing to challenges in the majority of other topic areas.

Related Survey Respondent Quotes:
Obviously, safe and affordable housing is one of the main issues in the area and something many people
are working on, but it's still something that affects many and makes living a healthy and happy life
extremely difficult.

housing housing housing!

Affordable and safe housing for those at all income levels.

A safe way to find housing year round for people who live here. It would make
the community feel safer and more welcoming.

Affordable housing is our biggest challenge to keep a year round community
sustainable.

Housing availability for both our seasonal workers and year around workers.

I have had housing struggles, and at points been worried that I would have to sacrifice food for rent. I
would never have been able to afford housing without external help which had an impact on my mental
health.

There is such a need for affordable, year-round housing. I know some kids are pulled out of MDI schools
and transferred to off-island schools mid-spring because their parents are unable to afford year-round
housing. Complex challenges that need to be addressed.

People who work to ensure our communities economic success live in housing you wouldn't dream of
living in.

Challenges in our community in this theme area:

● Weekly rentals/Airbnb taking year-round housing off the market
● Stigma around unhoused community members
● Town ordinances that limit solutions
● Seasonal rentals driving up costs and limiting year-round rental stock
● Thinking about property/houses as “commodity” or income producer rather than community

resource or “home”
● High taxes and property maintenance costs

29



● Difficulty of finding the balance between tourism as an income generator for the economy and
having an affordable cost of living for year-round community members

● Limited governmental infrastructure for economic and community development
● Lack of safe, affordable housing is a cost to the whole community and increases stress, mental

health challenges, and ability to access other basic needs
● Many landlords are not inclined or incentivized to accept housing vouchers
● Rental prices outpace housing vouchers
● In many instances, the quality of housing is poor and landlords do not know how to manage their

rentals
● Solutions can pit neighbors against each other, especially summer versus year-round residents
● Financing to develop workforce housing
● Children needing to shift schools at the end of the school year due to transitioning housing

Strengths in our community in this theme area:

● People are trying to come up with creative solutions
● Local housing solutions committee and coordinated initiative exists
● MDI/Ellsworth has a Housing Authority with units in good shape
● Towns aware of these challenges and trying to come up with solutions
● People who provide year-round rentals and ensure that their rentals are good, safe, and affordable
● YWCA’s newly purchased 27 acres of land at Hamilton Station and their plans to develop 50

units with a focus on housing for middle-income, year-round workforce
● Area banks sometimes willing to work with creative financing to help get people housed and

make projects happen
● Collaborative work of nonprofits
● Jackson Laboratory’s model of employee housing
● Housing and Wellbeing Survey underway through the Downeast Housing Collaborative survey

could be a good tool to help understand issues
● This is a beautiful place to live
● Many people would not want to live anywhere else
● Cranberry Island Housing Trust

Goal 1: Increase access to affordable housing.

Strategies:
● Create, increase, and/or publicize incentives for landlords to accept housing vouchers
● Identify or create housing for MDIH employees, who need to be within 25 minutes of MDIH
● Advocate to expand government-owned public housing
● Create housing for rental or purchase with a stipulation that the person must work on the

island and demonstrate income threshold, such as through the Island Housing Trust model
● Encourage employers and the business community to participate in housing solutions,

increasing strategies for employee housing
● Develop affordable senior housing that enables people to stay in the community while aging
● Identify ways to connect people for shared rentals such as through year-round group houses

or by renting rooms
● Design incentives for landlords for year-round rentals and for homeowners to sell to

year-round buyers
● Create a web-based rental unit availability site, perhaps in collaboration with local chambers

of commerce or rotary organizations

30



● Allowing non-profit organizations to use their endowments as equity/collateral for creative
financing in developing workforce housing

● Look at how the State collects and uses real estate taxes to help address housing needs and
costs

● Increase work with area banks for creative financing solutions
● Involve philanthropy in creative financing solutions
● Contact the Musson Group in Southwest Harbor, which has been doing a lot of work with

realtors, builders, towns, on housing solutions
● Increase independent living options and area aging in place solutions
● Expand access to free and subsidized aging in place home assessments and modifications
● Organize and advocate for the passage of public policy at the state and federal levels to

increase access to affordable housing
● Bring local, state, and federal officials to the region to educate them about the severe needs
● Work to obtain grants for affordable assisted-living and long-term care

Goal 2: Encourage and support area towns to prioritize and incentivize affordable housing, and preserve,
protect, and expand both year-round and seasonal housing options.

Strategies:
● Work with towns and others on incentives or standards to prevent further current year-round

housing from being converted to seasonal or short-term
● Work with the MDI League of Towns to take a housing assessment as a regional approach

and reach out to the Maine Department of Economic and Community Development for
eligibility and project development of housing units, using Community Development Block
Grants funds

● Work with the towns to incentivize year-round rentals
● Identify ways to use tourism dollars and attraction to support housing
● Identify “right number” of year-round houses, perhaps by town

Goal 3: Identify and research existing successful models.

Strategies:
● Identify models and partners to work toward pathways to homeownership
● Research the “Housing First” model
● Consider the model in Philadelphia of providing cash instead of housing vouchers
● Support expansion of Habitat for Humanity activity
● Research “rent to buy” programs for first time home owners (such as Mano en Mano’s

program) to update old buildings, rebuild communities, and house people
● Increase use of Mount Desert 365 model of purchasing homes
● Expand Island Housing Trust’s purchase assistance program with financing to support

expansion

Goal 4: Increase access to safe housing.

Strategies:
● Work toward measurable objectives outlined in 2030 Healthy People

1. Increase the proportion of homes that have an entrance without steps
2. Reduce blood lead levels in children aged 1 to 5 years
3. Increase % of people whose water systems have recommended amount of fluoride

31



4. Increase the proportion of smoke-free homes
● Work with the MaineCDC to increase awareness of potential home health hazards including

lead, arsenic, radon, pesticides, and mold; promote and expand existing testing and mitigation
methods

The Town of Bar Harbor’s Comprehensive Plan has very detailed goals and strategies around housing, as
well as the authority and resources to take significant action. The most important recommendation within
this theme area is to collaborate with the towns and other entities in the LSA who can advance housing
solutions more effectively than the public health community and the non-profit sector are able to
accomplish independently. Some of the recommendations included in The Town of Bar Harbor’s
Comprehensive Plan’s interim findings are:

● Work with the Acadia Region partners to develop a region-wide approach to identify, assess, and
develop solutions to housing, transportation, workforce development, economic diversity, and
sustainable visitation/tourism. This should include representatives of the Acadia Region (Mount
Desert, Southwest Harbor, Tremont, Trenton, Ellsworth, and Lamoine), Hancock County
Planning Commission, Mount Desert Island & Ellsworth Housing Authority, Island Housing
Trust, Maine Coast Heritage Trust, Downeast Partners, and others.

● Create a housing webpage so the public can easily access information on the town’s housing
efforts along with other housing related information.

● Promote and expand existing programs and uses to encourage businesses to build new units for
their seasonal workforce rather than buying year-round dwelling units.

● Work with businesses and institutions to create seasonal and year-round housing. This may
require expanding existing programs, developing new programs, and promoting housing
opportunities to businesses (new uses, ordinance amendments, etc.). Major employers and
developers will benefit from easy access to relevant information, targeted incentives, and local
funding resources tailored to meet community needs.

● Encourage the creation of year-round rental units through regulatory and non-regulatory
approaches.

● Educate the public on home sharing opportunities and programs.
● Create a land acquisition fund that could acquire properties, deed restrict them, and sell or turn

them over to a non-profit, housing trust, or private developer to operate and manage. Potentially
partner with the Housing Authority, Island Housing Trust, or a private developer to manage these
new units.

● Take a leadership role in the development of the Acadia National Park (ANP) Town Hill parcel.
● Assist the YWCA with the development of the Hamilton Station parcel.
● Identify ways to stimulate the creation of housing on vacant, underutilized, and town-owned

parcels.
● Establish a local tax on hotel rooms/short term rentals to be dedicated to an affordable housing

trust.

Theme Six: Mental and Behavioral Health, Including Substance Use
Strategic Question: What can we do to maximize the likelihood that all community members
have age-appropriate access to quality mental and behavioral health services and resources,
including supports related to substance misuse prevention, treatment, and recovery?

32



Key Data and Findings: Numerous strengths and challenges exist in the LSA to reduce stigma and
promote and increase access to quality mental health, behavioral health, and substance use prevention,
treatment, and recovery resources. Youth mental health is of particular concern. The Maine Department of
Education reported that in 2023, 17 percent of Hancock County high school students responded “yes”to
the question, “During the past 12 months did you ever seriously consider attempting suicide?”. In 2023,
36.9 percent of high school students in Hancock County reported they had felt “sad or hopeless almost
every day for the past two weeks,” compared to 36.2 percent of students statewide, and increased from
35.9 percent in Hancock County in 2019.

Related Survey Respondent Quotes:
More and better access to all kinds of mental health
services, and a system that allows patients to see
service providers more quickly.

It should be less stigmatized and more accessible.

Mental health help is extremely hard to get. There are
not enough people to take care of issues like
counseling and medication management for people
who are either struggling or are newly diagnosed.

For a small critical care hospital there are a lot of options provided to keep you healthy or that the
community has access to but the behavioral health department needs to double if not triple in size to
ensure that the demographic of this island has access to it when they need it before it becomes an
emergent situation.

In MDI a drop in center for people with mental health challenges/illnesses; a clubhouse model, possibly
like INSPIRE in Ellsworth.

More support for substance abuse, especially alcohol.

Mental Health for the younger generation; lots of anxiety, suicide.

Mental health services, the waiting is too long for those in crisis.

Strengths in our community in this theme area:

● MDIH Behavioral Health Center
● Recovery coaches
● INSPIRE Center
● Possibility of state dollars through Governor’s focused initiatives
● Hancock County Drug Treatment Court
● Great advocacy and support from the State
● Community support from donors and private philanthropy
● Outdoor access (Acadia National Park and other natural areas) helps with mental health
● Medical detox care in MDIH emergency department
● Strong partner consortium
● Hub & spoke model at AMHC for treating SUD

33



● Decentralized provision of Medication Assisted Treatment (MAT)
● Supportive school system with social workers to support students and teachers
● Involvement and training of law enforcement and first responders to help with mental health calls
● Less stigma and efforts to decriminalize SUD
● MDI Opiate Task Force
● Warm line and crisis lines
● Acadia Family Center
● Alcoholics Anonymous (AA) and Narcotics Anonymous (NA) meetings available daily
● Maine Alliance for Recovery Coaching
● Maine Seacoast Mission facilitates Substance Use Disorder services and other behavioral health

counseling appointments on outer islands through telemedicine
● Many tobacco-free community locations
● Numerous prevention and education activities and resources are available through the schools
● Political will and availability of public funding
● Private counselors
● Wide recognition of and willingness to talk about opioid epidemic
● Bar Harbor and Mount Desert Police Departments now have every squad car equipped with

Narcan
● Strong, active, and tight-knit recovery community

Challenges in our community in this theme area:

● Scarce resources across all types of providers
● Long wait lists
● Community members experience chronic stress and chronic pain, as well as related depression,

anxiety, Substance Use Disorders
● A natural resource based economy and lots of outdoor activity leads to high rates of injuries and

complicated pain management needs
● Despite the strength and size of the recovery community, those in recovery can feel very isolated

from the community at large
● Obstacles such as transportation, cost, awareness, stigma, low health literacy, and others exist for

community members to access resources
● Involvement of police in mental health responses is complicated
● Recovery supports in jails are increasing, but access is still limited
● Some community members are not ready to seek treatment
● Culture of independence and resistance to accepting help
● Work related injuries and economic instability related to seasonal employment contribute to

substance use
● Legalized recreational marijuana
● A limited number of inpatient beds for substance treatment services
● Reimbursement for mental health services is lower than for physical health services
● Stigma for mental health generally, particularly Substance Use Disorder
● Co-occurring diagnoses and needs
● People end up in crises because of wait times and limited access to services
● Limited aging-related services puts added pressure on families and can lead to mental health

challenges

34



Goal 1: Make all types of mental and behavioral healthcare more easily accessible and affordable.

Strategies:
● Continue to embed mental health services in primary care settings
● Support primary care providers in activities to provide appropriate mental health services,

such as MAT
● Continue to support collaboration and coordination of resources and knowledge, such as the

monthly Downeast Substance Use Network for providers
● Increase use of telemedicine or phone appointments to expand timely and convenient access

to mental healthcare
● Advocate for more inpatient access for mental and behavioral health treatment throughout the

state
● Increase availability of case management and home visiting services
● Raise awareness of alcoholism and misuse
● Address fear and stigma by sharing promotional materials in trusted locations and promoting

public discussion, such as articles in the local news about prevention and available services
● Promote better understanding and support for people with high Adverse Childhood

Experience (ACE) scores
● Build resources for acute mental and behavioral health to address lack of pediatric beds, crisis

beds, and residential care and treatment
● Address gap that exists with closure of Augusta and other state mental health inpatient beds
● Involve police/first responders in promoting trauma therapy and other resources after a crisis

event, such as the New Hampshire and Washington County “rapid response” programs
● Involve the Bar Harbor Police Department's social worker/health liaison in solutions
● Utilize trained community members to offer conversation and general support, such as 7

Angels model in Sorrento
● Explore Big Brother-Big Sister and/or Foster Grandparent programs to offer low impact and

low cost support
● Celebrate the great work already happening; publicize and explain its value
● Build ways to effectively engage the seasonal community in strategies, especially to raise

awareness

Goal 2: Achieve an “instant response” - no wrong door, no wrong time - to access services and supports

Strategies:
● Develop a walk-in clinic
● Continue to increase mental health services and supports in the schools, including

social/emotional education programming
● Expand and promote evening and weekend hours of mental health services
● Explore potential for additional mobile mental health opportunities
● Recruit more mental health specialists and providers to the area
● Streamline mental health services between schools and other service providers
● Increase school-based mental and behavioral health appointments
● Promote recovery coaches more broadly
● Expand “recovery coaches” beyond SUD, for example resource brokering support, etc.
● Expand low-barrier spaces for people with behavioral health needs, such as INSPIRE in

Ellsworth, to support a variety of needs; support Acadia Family Center’s efforts to replicate
Inspire Center model

● Better integrate mental and physical health services and handoffs

35



● Advocate for co-located care, including physical, dental, behavioral and mental health, and
lab work

● Expand availability of medical detox services beyond the emergency department
● Engage clergy and faith community to expand access to supports
● Replicate “mental health court” model that exists in Washington County
● Involve ArtWaves and others to offer art therapy
● Increase resource navigation services
● Increase access to barrier removal funds, such as You’ve Got a Friend Fund through HA
● Conduct an inventory or survey of who is doing what to identify and address specific unmet

needs and improve coordination

Goal 3: Create or identify group or individual housing options with support for people with
mental/behavioral health diagnoses

Strategies:
● Explore existing models, such as:

○ CHOM model: https://www.chomhousing.org
○ Families First in Ellsworth
○ Safe Harbor in Machias
○ Freedom Place in Portland
○ Friendship Cottage in Blue Hill (adult day care)

● With lack of nursing homes, find ways to connect patients and families who require
geri-psychiatric support

● Expand domestic violence shelter options
● Create intentional multi-generational housing options
● Establish a recovery residence in the LSA
● Establish mental health respite housing

36

https://www.chomhousing.org


Conclusions and Reflections
Our process and findings emphasize the impressive breadth and depth of assets in the LSA. The strong
culture of civic-mindedness, collaboration, and caring for others and for this place strongly stood out as
what residents love, contribute to, and rely on as part of the daily experience as well as in times of need.
The COVID-19 pandemic shone a light on the fragility of the health and social service systems
nationwide. Despite the many challenges, the impact of the pandemic with the many economic and social
implications also highlighted the strength and resilience of the region.

Differences between the 2020 CHNA findings and this cycle are palpable, much more stress around
housing, mental health, and unmet workforce needs, for example. Yet our findings also surfaced creative,
hard work to understand and address the community’s needs and wishes.

Theme-Related

Among the most-commonly cited themes were the number of organizations and programs offering
high-quality and much needed services. Nonetheless, awareness of and access to those resources appears
to be very complicated for many residents. Particularly in a rural area, communications and coordination
solutions will leverage existing assets and
strengths, as well as cost-efficient solutions.
This LSA has an unusually strong and broad
culture of collaboration and sharing
information and resources, two critical
success factors to achieve improved
communications and inter-organizational
coordination. This infrastructure of existing
community connectedness and a spirit of
collaboration positions the LSA well to work
together on implementation and achieve their
shared goals.

Among the strongest signals we heard:
● Housing is at a crisis point and

complicates solutions to many other
community health issues,
particularly staffing to expand access to care and to decrease wait times. Without housing
solutions, access to care will continue to be challenged by the ability to recruit and retain staff.

● COVID-19 has had an outsized impact on mental health, particularly for youth.
● Substance use, including alcohol, are major concerns and more options are needed for timely

access to various types of support for individuals and families.
● No nursing home in Hancock County is a major concern.
● Employers play an important role in community health, particularly related to providing health

insurance and living wages. It would be useful to identify ways to coordinate opportunities to
include their voice and collaboration in implementation of strategies and other action plans.

37



● Many of the issues and potential solutions will require policy change at the local, state, and
federal levels. Some solutions will require legislative action, others will require regulatory
change. Coordinated advocacy efforts focused by issue as well as place-based will strengthen and
potentially accelerate attention and action.

Process-Related

We appreciated and learned from suggestions included in the 2020 report in approaching our work for this
CHNA process. In that spirit we note some ideas that might be considered in future CHNA efforts:

● We strove to include first responders and criminal justice perspectives but were not as successful
as we hoped. In the future, it might be helpful at the outset to identify a specific process to include
members of those communities.

● Having the public survey available online and in paper was important. Offering a QR code was
very helpful in increasing awareness and responses.

● Offering a shorter version of the Community Health survey might further increase the response
rate, particularly for completion by older community members and those with limited online
access.

● As our timeline overlapped with residual COVID-19 concerns and the winter months, we met by
Zoom exclusively. This had great advantages for convenience and increased participation. That
said, organizing some in-person focus groups might be considered in the future. In person
meetings could be open to all community members or by invitation (to focus on select cohorts or
perspectives) at locations convenient for those groups, such as assisted living homes, community
meals or food pantries, laundromats, schools, or first responder work sites.

● Including more detailed demographic questions on the “Community Health Survey” was helpful,
especially related to income, insurance status, and age. In future versions, it might be helpful to
add questions about respondents’ housing situation, for example rent, own, full or part-time
resident, and number of people in the household.

● It was very useful for the Theme Working Groups to include a combination of Steering
Committee members, people who volunteered through the Community Health survey, and
specific invitations to community leaders with content expertise.

A Final Note
Community health is multifaceted, hard to measure, dynamic, and ever changing. This 2023-2024 MDI
region CHNA and Action plan is a snapshot of the LSA and provides a framework for Mount Desert
Island Hospital, Healthy Acadia, and partners to collectively address health concerns and bring to life our
vision statement, an area that is “...home to vibrant communities where people thrive and healthful
resources are easily accessible.” It is the sincere hope of the CHNA Coordinators and Steering Committee
members that this tool is used in many creative ways to better the community. We welcome you, the
reader, to use this tool in the way it aligns best with your individual or organizational goals, needs, and
resources. We also welcome you to contact Healthy Acadia at info@healthyacadia.org or by calling
207-667-7171 to schedule a presentation on this report, request further information, or to learn how to get
involved. We invite you to join in efforts to build healthy communities together. Thank you for all you
contribute to our communities.

38

mailto:info@healthyacadia.org


References
County Health Rankings (website), 2024. Hancock County Health Rankings.
https://www.countyhealthrankings.org/health-data/maine/hancock?year=2024

Maine Department of Education, 2021. % Free and Reduced School Lunch Report by County.
https://neo.maine.gov/doe/neo/nutrition//Public/PublicReport.aspx?reportPath=ED534byCounty

Maine Department of Health and Human Services and Maine Department of Education.Maine Integrated
Youth Health Survey, Downeast Region High School Report, 2023.
https://www.maine.gov/miyhs/sites/default/files/2023_Reports/Core_Reports/HS/MIYHS2023_Core_Rep
orts_HS_PHD/Downeast%20PHD_2023_MIYHS_High_School_Report.pdf

Maine Department of Health and Human Services and Maine Department of Education.Maine Integrated
Youth Health Survey 2023.
https://www.maine.gov/miyhs/2023-results

Maine Department of Health and Human Services and Maine Department of Education. Maine Integrated
Youth Health Survey 2019.
https://www.maine.gov/miyhs/2019-fact-sheets

Maine Economic Growth Council, 2023.Measures of Growth: Performance Measures and Benchmarks
to Achieve a Vibrant and Sustainable Economy for Maine.
https://www.mdf.org/economic-policy-research/measures-of-growth-report/

Maine Children’s Alliance, 2023Maine KIDS COUNT Data Book
https://mainechildrensalliance.org/data/

Maine Center for Disease Control and Prevention, 2018. Hancock County Health Profile 2018: Maine
Shared Community Health Needs Assessment.
https://www.maine.gov/dhhs/mecdc/phdata/MaineCHNA/documents/Hancock-County-Health-Profile-20
18.pdf

Maine Center for Disease Control and Prevention, 2021. Hancock County Health Profile: Maine Shared
Community Health Needs Assessment.
https://www.maine.gov/dhhs/mecdc/phdata/MaineCHNA/documents/Hancock%20County%20Health%20
Profile%204.8.2022.pdf

Maine Center for Disease Control and Prevention, 2019.Maine Shared Community Health Needs
Assessment Reports by County.
https://www.maine.gov/dhhs/mecdc/phdata/MaineCHNA/documents/county-reports/2019/Hancock-Repo
rt-Web.pdf

Maine Center for Disease Control and Prevention, 2022.Maine Shared Community Health Needs
Assessment Reports by County.
https://www.maine.gov/dhhs/mecdc/phdata/MaineCHNA/final-CHNA-reports.shtml

39

https://www.maine.gov/dhhs/mecdc/phdata/MaineCHNA/documents/Hancock-County-Health-Profile-2018.pdf
https://www.maine.gov/dhhs/mecdc/phdata/MaineCHNA/documents/Hancock-County-Health-Profile-2018.pdf
https://www.maine.gov/dhhs/mecdc/phdata/MaineCHNA/documents/county-reports/2019/Hancock-Report-Web.pdf
https://www.maine.gov/dhhs/mecdc/phdata/MaineCHNA/documents/county-reports/2019/Hancock-Report-Web.pdf
https://www.maine.gov/dhhs/mecdc/phdata/MaineCHNA/final-CHNA-reports.shtml


Maine Department of Labor, 2024. Center for Workforce Research and Information Economic Snapshot.
https://www.maine.gov/labor/cwri/

National Association of County and City Health Officials, 2023.Mobilizing for Action through Planning
and Partnerships (MAPP).
https://www.naccho.org/programs/public-health-infrastructure/performance-improvement/community-hea
lth-assessment/mapp

Town of Bar Harbor, 2024. Bar Harbor Comprehensive Planning Themes and Actions.

United States Census Bureau, 2020. Decennial Census Data.
https://data.census.gov/all?g=050XX00US23009

Appendices
- Appendix A - List of Core Planning Team, Steering Committee and Working Group members

- Appendix B - Community Themes and Strengths Survey instrument (“Community Health
Survey”)

- Appendix C - Community Themes and Strengths / Community Health Survey data summary

- Appendix D - Community Partner Assessment Survey instrument

- Appendix E - Forces of Change summary

40

https://www.naccho.org/programs/public-health-infrastructure/performance-improvement/community-health-assessment/mapp
https://www.naccho.org/programs/public-health-infrastructure/performance-improvement/community-health-assessment/mapp
https://data.census.gov/all?g=050XX00US23009


Appendix A - A List of Core Planning Team, Steering Committee and
Working Group members

Core Planning Team
Healthy Acadia: Caroline Bloss, Maria Donahue, Elsie Flemings, Leslie Goode, Shoshona Smith
MDI Hospital: Morgan Mackenzie, Chrissi Maguire, Michelle Smith

Steering Committee Members
Caroline Bloss, Recovery Projects Director, Healthy Acadia
Mariah Cormier, Public Affairs Officer, MDI Hospital
Barbara Conry, Director of Student Support and Wellness, College of the Atlantic
Maria Donahue, Community Health & Prevention Director, Healthy Acadia
Elsie Flemings, Executive Director, Healthy Acadia
Sam Foss, VP, Nursing Services, MDI Hospital
Leslie Goode, MDI CHNA Program Manager, Healthy Acadia
Rob Hemenway, Executive Director, Birch Bay Retirement Village
Oka Hutchins, Director of Advancement, MDI Hospital
Rota Knott, Executive Director, Acadia Family Center
John Lindquist, Executive Director, Friends in Action
Morgan Mackenzie, MDI Hospital
Christina Maguire, President and CEO, MDI Hospital
Mike McKernan, Director of Government & Community Relations, Jackson Laboratory
Amy McVety, Executive Director, Mount Desert Nursing Association
Kathleen Miller, Executive Director, Mount Desert 365
Tom Reeve, Executive Director, Bar Harbor Food Pantry
Megan Rilkoff, Development and Communications, Mount Desert Nursing Association
Tracy Shaffer, Board President, Loaves and Fishes
Michelle Smith, CFO, MDI Hospital
Shoshona Smith, Development Director, Healthy Acadia
Margaret Snell, Maine Seacoast Mission
Wendy Todd, Mount Desert Chamber of Commerce
Charlotte Winger, Director of Patient Services, MDI Hospital

Working Group Theme Members (in addition than those on the Steering
Committee)
Dr. Margaret Beaulac, Retired physician and community activist
Allie Bodge, MDI Housing Authority
Everal Eaton, Bar Harbor Chamber of Commerce
Dr. Julian Kuffler, MDIH
Paige Johnston, Healthy Acadia
Linda Lunt, MDI YWCA
Linda Napier, AMHC
Marla O’Byrne, Island Heritage Trust
Dr. Timothy Oh, Caring Hands of Maine Dental Center
Jennica Pieuch, MDIH Behavioral Health Center
Donna Wiegle, Retired, Swans Island health center

Report Coordinators and Writing Team
Leslie Goode, Caroline Bloss and Shoshona Smith



Appendix B - Community Themes and Strengths Survey instrument

2023 Community Health Survey Introduction

Do you live, work, go to school, or otherwise spend time in Bar Harbor, Cranberry Isles,
Frenchboro, Hancock, Lamoine, Mount Desert, Southwest Harbor, Swan’s Island,
Tremont, and Trenton?

Mount Desert Island Hospital (MDIH) and Healthy Acadia are
conducting a Community Health Needs Assessment. Your
feedback is important! Completing this survey means your
thoughts, experiences, and ideas will be included as we work to
meet the health needs of our area.

The survey should only take about 10 minutes to complete. It is
also available online - simply scan the QR code to the right - or via
in-person or phone interviews by contacting Leslie Goode at
leslie.goode@healthyacadia.org or by calling 460-3050.

We hope to hear from as many people as possible so that what we learn represents
the ideas, interests, and needs of everyone. Please help us understand our strengths,
what needs to be improved, and important issues. With your feedback and others in
the community, we will develop goals and strategies for a healthy, strong, community.

Our 2020 Community Health Needs Assessment and Action Plan is available on the
MDI Hospital website. A report including the results of this survey will be available in
May 2024.

For more information or to be part of this Community Health Needs Assessment in
other ways, please write your contact information on the last page or send an email to
leslie.goode@healthyacadia.org or call 460-3050.

Si gusta obtener una copia del cuestionario en español, por favor comuníquese
con Katia McClellan en katia.mcclellan@healthyacadia.org. Si prefiere hacer el
cuestionario vía llamada telefónica, por favor marque al +52 222 802 0489 por
Whatsapp.

Please return your completed survey to: the location where you received the
survey or mail to: Leslie Goode, Healthy Acadia, PO Box 1710, Ellsworth, ME 04605.

Thank you for sharing your valuable ideas!

mailto:leslie.goode@healthyacadia.org




2023 MDI Community Health Survey

Mount Desert Island Hospital and Healthy Acadia want your input to assess area
health needs. The information will be used to create a community health plan to
improve our overall health.

1. How healthy would you rate our community? Circle a number from 1-5.
Very Somewhat Neutral Somewhat Very
Unhealthy Unhealthy Healthy Healthy
1 2 3 4 5

2. I am satisfied with the quality of life in our community (considering my sense of
well-being and safety). Circle a number from 1-5.
Very Somewhat Neutral Somewhat Very
Unsatisfied Unsatisfied Satisfied Satisfied

1 2 3 4 5

3. I am satisfied with the health care system in our community (considering
organizations and providers offering physical, mental and dental health services).
Circle a number from 1-5.
Very Somewhat Neutral Somewhat Very
Unsatisfied Unsatisfied Satisfied Satisfied

1 2 3 4 5

4. What additional services, supports, and/or spaces could our community use to
better ensure health for all?

5a. Do you feel as though every community member has equal access to
high-quality health services, supports, and resources? (circle one)

Yes No Unsure



5b. If you answered "No”, who do you think faces the most significant
challenges?

6. This community is a good, safe place to raise children (considering schools,
child care, community activities and resources, housing, and employment
opportunities, etc.). Circle a number from 1-5.
Strongly Somewhat Neutral Somewhat Strongly
Disagree Disagree Agree Agree

1 2 3 4 5

7. This community is a good place to grow old (considering elder-friendly
housing, transportation, shopping, elder day care, community activities, social
supports for people living alone, meals on wheels, etc.). Circle a number from 1-5.
Strongly Somewhat Neutral Somewhat Strongly
Disagree Disagree Agree Agree

1 2 3 4 5

8a. What do you see as the most important “health concerns” in our community?
Please write in if unlisted, otherwise circle no more than five (5).

Acute or chronic health (allergies,
asthma, cancer, diabetes, heart disease, high
blood pressure, gastrointestinal disorders,
etc.)

Costs of care and/or prescriptions

Aging challenges

Bias, discrimination, and other factors
leading to health inequities

Bullying (in-person or online)

Chronic pain

Childhood trauma

COVID-19

Dental health/mouth pain

Domestic violence



Economic instability/limited employment and
opportunities for growth

Environmental health concerns (mold, other
toxins, clean air and water, etc.)

Health insurance accessibility/coverage

Infectious diseases (including Lyme and
excluding COVID-19)

Lack of awareness of existing health
services

LGBTQ health challenges

Limited access to healthy foods

Limited access to physical activity/
opportunities for recreation

8b. Comment on your responses
above:

Mental health challenges (including anxiety
and/or depression)

Motor vehicle crash injuries

Obesity

Rape/sexual assault

Reproductive, maternal, newborn,
and/or child health concerns

Safe and affordable housing

Sexual health concerns

Substance use (e.g. alcohol, opioids,
tobacco

Suicide

Transportation difficulties

9. What health issues do you feel are not being adequately addressed or you
would like to see more public discussion, education, and action around?



10a. What do you think are the most significant “health strengths” in our
community? Circle no more than five (5).

Access to healthy foods (including farm
stands, farmers markets, and gardens)

Awareness and/or accessibility of existing
health services

Close-knit communities

Dental services

Education offerings for all ages

Employment and growth opportunities

Food pantries and meal sites

Health care services and providers (including
outer island health care services)

Health education in schools and through
community groups

Housing - safe and affordable

Mental health services and providers

Natural beauty and outdoor sites (Acadia
National Park, other parks and open space)
Police and emergency services

Prevention programming

Recreation in schools and the community

Spiritual and religious community

Substance prevention, treatment and recovery
supports

Sustainability and energy-efficiency initiatives

Third-spaces (a safe space that is not
work/school or home)

Tobacco-free public areas

Volunteerism and civic engagement

Worksite wellness programs

10b. Comment on your response:

11. What programs or projects could make us a healthier community?



12. What were one or two major impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic on you and
your family?

Please tell us a bit about yourself. It will be used for demographic
purposes only. You will not be identified by your answers in any way.

13. What area(s) where you live, work, go to school, or think of as your
"community"? (please check all that apply)

❍ Bar Harbor
❍ Cranberry Isles
❍ Frenchboro
❍ Hancock
❍ Lamoine
❍ Mount Desert
❍ Northeast Harbor
❍ Southwest Harbor
❍ Swan's Island
❍ Tremont
❍ Trenton
❍ Other, please specify

14. Do you identify as: (please circle one)
Female Male non-binary

15. Age: (please circle one)
Under 18 18-25 26-40 41-55 56-70 71-85 Over 85



16. Race/Ethnicity:
❍ White

❍ Asian

❍ American Indian or Alaskan Native

❍ Black or African American

❍ Hispanic, Latino, or Spanish

❍ Middle Eastern or North African

❍ Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander

❍ Other

17. How do you pay for health care?
❍ Cash

❍ MaineCare (Medicaid)

❍ Private health insurance through employer, school or other established group plan

❍ Private health insurance purchased directly (individual or family plan)

❍ Medicare

❍ Department of Defense

❍ Veterans Administration

❍ Indian Health Services

❍ Other, please specify

18a. Annual household income in 2023:
❍ Under $15,000

❍ $15,000-45,000

❍ $45,001-$75,000

❍ $75,001-$100,000

❍ $100,001-$150,001

❍ above $150,001

18b. If you or your household faced difficulty paying for basic needs (such as
housing, food, or health care) in the past 3 years, please tell us about that.
How did you address those needs? How did it affect your health?



19. Is there any other information or input you would like to share?

Thank you!

Yes! I would like to be a part of this Community Health Needs Assessment in other
ways. If so, please share your name and preferred contact information. You may
tear off and separately submit this section from the survey you just completed for
privacy reasons.

Name:

Town:

Email or phone number:



Appendix C - Community Themes and Strengths data summary

2023/24 MDI Region Community Health Survey
Quantitative Data Summary

1=Very unhealthy
5= Very healthy

1= Very unsatisfied
5=Very satisfied

1



1= Very unsatisfied
5= Very satisfied

2



1=Strongly disagree
5= Strongly agree

1= Strongly disagree
5= Strongly agree

3



8a. What do you see as the most important “health concerns” in our community? Please
write in if unlisted, otherwise check no more than five (5).

408 responses
Top 3 are highlighted in yellow; categories related to top 3 are highlighted in red

Acute or chronic health concerns (e.g. allergies,
asthma, cancer, diabetes, heart disease, high blood
pressure, gastrointestinal disorders, etc.) 115 28.2%

Costs of care and/or prescriptions 205 50.2%

Aging challenges 158 38.7%

Bias, discrimination, and other factors contributing to
health inequity 44 10.8%

Bullying 15 3.7%

Chronic pain 43 10.5%

Childhood trauma 36 8.8%

Covid 19 30 7.4%

Dental challenges 112 27.5%

Domestic violence 50 12.3%

Economic instability / limited employment and
opportunities for growth 150 36.8%

Environmental health concerns (mold and other
toxins, air and water pollutants, etc.) 33 8.1%

Health insurance accessibility and coverage 152 37.3%

Infectious diseases (including Lyme Disease &
excluding Covid-19) 53 13.0%

Lack of awareness of existing health services 80 19.6%

LGBTQ health challenges 21 5.1%

Limited access to health food 41 10.0%

Limited access to physical activity/opportunities for
recreation 30 7.4%

Mental health challenges 191 46.8%

Motor vehicle crash injuries 15 3.7%

Obesity 94 23.0%

Rape/sexual assault 15 3.7%

Reproductive, maternal, newborn and/or child health
concerns 21 5.1%

4



Safe and affordable housing 247 60.5%

Sexual health concerns 4 1.0%

Substance use (e.g. alcohol, opioids, tobacco, etc.) 165 40.4%

Suicide 29 7.1%

Transportation difficulties 114 27.9%

10a. What do you think are the most significant “health strengths” in our community?
Check no more than five (5).

396 responses
Top 3 are highlighted

Access to healthy foods (including from
farm stands, farmers markets, and
community gardens) 192 48.50%

Awareness and/or accessibility of
existing health services 33 8.30%

Close-knit communities 194 49%

Dental services 11 2.80%

Education offerings for all ages 71 17.90%

Employment and growth opportunities 37 9.30%

Food pantries and meal sites 181 45.70%

Health care services and providers
(including outer island health care
services) 52 13.10%

Health education in schools and
through community groups 10 2.50%

Housing - safe and affordable 11 2.80%

Mental health services and providers 12 3%

Natural beauty and sites (Acadia
National Park, town parks, and green
spaces) 302 76.30%

Police and emergency services 99 25%

Prevention programming 13 3.30%

Recreation opportunities in schools
and community locations 112 28.30%

5



Spiritual and religious community 62 15.70%

Substance prevention, treatment and
recovery 16 4%

Sustainability and energy-efficiency
initiatives 49 12.40%

Third-spaces (a safe space that is not
work/school or home) 17 4.30%

Tobacco-free public areas 78 19.70%

Volunteerism and civic engagement 135 34.10%

Worksite wellness programs 25 6.30%

6



17. How do you pay for health care?

407 responses
Top 3 are highlighted

Cash 34 8.40%

MaineCare (Medicaid) 29 7.10%

Private health insurance through
employer, school or other
established group plan 233 57.20%

Private health insurance
purchased directly (individual or
family plan) 54 13.30%

Medicare 122 30%

Department of Defense 5 1.20%

Veterans Health Administration 1 0.2%

Indian Health Services 0 0%

7



8



4/25/24, 11:12 AM Community Partner Survey- 2023/2024 Community Health Needs Assessment

https://docs.google.com/forms/d/1MvKIj7zX7Ujo-xQ23IzryITC46gYHlqpudlE0R764AE/edit 1/14

Community Partner Survey Introduction

Thanks for taking our Community Partner Survey. 

Your organization—and you—are vital to our community’s local public health system, even if 
you do not work directly in public health or healthcare. Public health is more than 
healthcare. Health outcomes are shaped by people’s behaviors, ability to access healthcare, 
living and working conditions, and the institutions, policies, systems, cultural norms, social 
inequities, and environment that shape our community.  

This survey is part of our Community Partner Assessment, which helps us identify the 
organizations involved in supporting the health and well-being of our community, whom they 
serve, what they do, and their capacities and skills in building community health. Your input 
helps us name collective strengths and opportunities for greater impact.  

The responses to this survey will be used to inform a Community Health Needs Assessment 
and Action Plan, which will be shared in May 2024.

Things to Know...
• This survey should take about 15 minutes.  
• Your responses will not be used to publicly identify you or your organization. They will be 
combined and  summarized with all other responses in the report.  
• Submit only one completed survey per organization.  

Community Partner Survey- 2023/2024
Community Health Needs Assessment 
Mount Desert Island Hospital and Healthy Acadia are seeking input from our organizational 
partners Bar Harbor, Cranberry Isles, Frenchboro, Hancock, Lamoine, Mount Desert, 
Southwest Harbor, Swan’s Island, Tremont, and Trenton to assess community health needs 
and assets. The information from this survey will be added to the information we gather 
through the survey we are �elding to individuals. The overall process and combined data will 
be used to identify how to improve our community’s health together.  

Note: Please submit only one completed survey per organization.

This survey should only take about 15 minutes to complete. 

Questions or technical issues with this survey? Please contact Leslie Goode at 
leslie.goode@healthyacadia.org or by calling 460-3050.

Shoshona Smith

Shoshona Smith

Shoshona Smith

Shoshona Smith
Appendix D - Community Partner Assessment Survey instrument 



4/25/24, 11:12 AM Community Partner Survey- 2023/2024 Community Health Needs Assessment

https://docs.google.com/forms/d/1MvKIj7zX7Ujo-xQ23IzryITC46gYHlqpudlE0R764AE/edit 2/14

This Section Asks General Questions About Your Organization

1.

2.

3.

Other:

Check all that apply.

a. Administrative staff
b. Front line staff
c. Supervisor (not senior management)
d. Senior management level/unit or program lead
e. Leadership team
f. Community member
g. Community leader

1. What is the full name of your organization and where are you located?

2. What is your organization's service area?

3. What best describes your role in the organization?

Shoshona Smith

Shoshona Smith

Shoshona Smith



4/25/24, 11:12 AM Community Partner Survey- 2023/2024 Community Health Needs Assessment

https://docs.google.com/forms/d/1MvKIj7zX7Ujo-xQ23IzryITC46gYHlqpudlE0R764AE/edit 3/14

4.

Other:

Check all that apply.

a. State health department
b. Tribal health department
c. Other city government agency
d. Other county government agency
e. Other state government agency
f. Other Tribal government agency
g. Private hospital
h. Public hospital
i. Private clinic
j. Public clinic
k. Emergency response
l. Schools/education (PK–12)
m. College/university
n. Library
o. Non-pro�t organization
p Grassroots community organizing group/organization
q. Tenants’ association
r. Social service provider
s. Housing provider
t. Mental health provider
u. Neighborhood association
v. Foundation/philanthropy
w. For-pro�t organization/private business
x. Faith-based organization
aa. Center for Independent Living

 4. Which of the following best describe(s) your organization? (Check all that apply.) 

Shoshona Smith

Shoshona Smith

Shoshona Smith



4/25/24, 11:12 AM Community Partner Survey- 2023/2024 Community Health Needs Assessment

https://docs.google.com/forms/d/1MvKIj7zX7Ujo-xQ23IzryITC46gYHlqpudlE0R764AE/edit 4/14

5.

6.

7.

Other:

Check all that apply.

a. Black/African American
b. African
c. Native American/Indigenous/Alaska Native
d. Latinx/Hispanic
e. Asian
f. Asian American
g. Paci�c Islander/Native Hawaiian
h. Middle Eastern/North African
i. White/European

5. What are your agency’s 1–3 most valuable resources and strongest assets you
would like us and community members to know about and assure are well used? 

6. Who or how would you characterize the primary populations your organization
serves?

7.  What racial/ethnic populations does your organization work with or serve? (check
all that apply)

Shoshona Smith

Shoshona Smith

Shoshona Smith

Shoshona Smith



4/25/24, 11:12 AM Community Partner Survey- 2023/2024 Community Health Needs Assessment

https://docs.google.com/forms/d/1MvKIj7zX7Ujo-xQ23IzryITC46gYHlqpudlE0R764AE/edit 5/14

8.

Mark only one oval.

a. Yes—we provide services speci�cally for the LGBTQIA+ community

b. Somewhat—we provide general services and LGBTQIA+ individuals could use
those services

c. No—we do not have unique accommodations for LGBTQIA+ populations

d. Unsure

9.

Mark only one oval.

a. Yes—we provide services speci�cally for people with disabilities

b. Somewhat—we are wheelchair accessible and compliant with the American
Disabilities Act but are not speci�cally designed to serve people with disabilities

c. No—our organization is not speci�cally designed to serve people with disabilities

d. Unsure

10.

Mark only one oval.

a. Yes

b. No

c. Unsure

8. Does your organization offer services for transgender, nonbinary, and other
members of the LGBTQIA+  community?

9. Does your organization offer services specifically for people with disabilities?

10. Does your organization work with immigrants, refugees, asylum seekers, and
other populations who speak English as a second language?

Shoshona Smith

Shoshona Smith

Shoshona Smith



4/25/24, 11:12 AM Community Partner Survey- 2023/2024 Community Health Needs Assessment

https://docs.google.com/forms/d/1MvKIj7zX7Ujo-xQ23IzryITC46gYHlqpudlE0R764AE/edit 6/14

11.

Mark only one oval.

a. Yes

b. No

c. Unsure

d. Not applicable

12.

13.

10a. If your organization works with immigrants, refugees, asylum seekers, and
other populations who speak English as a second language or do not speak
English, do you offer translation or interpretation services?

10b. If yes, list what languages are offered?

11. What distinct groups does your organization serve? For example, women,
youth, elders, people with disabilities, people who have unstable housing, veterans,
people with specific religious practices, seasonal workers or residents, and/or
people involved in the criminal legal system.

Shoshona Smith

Shoshona Smith

Shoshona Smith



4/25/24, 11:12 AM Community Partner Survey- 2023/2024 Community Health Needs Assessment

https://docs.google.com/forms/d/1MvKIj7zX7Ujo-xQ23IzryITC46gYHlqpudlE0R764AE/edit 7/14

14.

Other:

Check all that apply.

a. We hire staff from speci�c groups that mirror the populations we serve
b. We hire staff/interpreters who speak the language/s of the populations we serve
c. We support leadership development in the populations we serve
d. Our organization is physically located in neighborhood/s of the populations we serve
e. We receive many referrals from the populations we serve
f. We work closely with community organizations that support the populations we

serve
g. We have done extensive outreach to the populations we serve

15.

Other:

Check all that apply.

a. Economic Stability: The connection between people’s �nancial resources—income,
cost of living, and socioeconomic status—and their health. This includes issues such as
poverty, employment, food security, and housing stability.

b. Education Access and Services: The connection of education to health and well-
being. This includes issues such as graduating from high school, educational attainment in
general, language and literacy, and early childhood education and development.

c. Healthcare Access and Quality: The connection between people’s access to and
understanding of health services and their own health. This includes issues such as access
to healthcare, access to primary care, health insurance coverage, and health literacy.

d. Neighborhood and Built Environment: The connection between where a person lives
—housing, neighborhood, and environment— and their health and well-being. This includes
topics like quality of housing, access to transportation, availability of healthy foods, air and
water quality, and public safety.

e. Social and Community Context: The connection between characteristics of the
contexts within which people live, learn, work, and play, and their health and well-being. This
includes topics like cohesion within a community, civic participation, discrimination,
conditions in the workplace, violence, and incarceration.

12. What do you do to reach/engage/work with your clientele or community? (Check
all that apply.)

13. Which of these topics is part of your organization's focus? (Check all that apply.)

Shoshona Smith

Shoshona Smith

Shoshona Smith



4/25/24, 11:12 AM Community Partner Survey- 2023/2024 Community Health Needs Assessment

https://docs.google.com/forms/d/1MvKIj7zX7Ujo-xQ23IzryITC46gYHlqpudlE0R764AE/edit 8/14

16.

Other:

Check all that apply.

a. Arts and culture
b. Businesses and for-pro�t organizations
c. Criminal legal system
d. Disability/independent living
e. Early childhood development/childcare
f. Education
g. Community economic development
h. Economic security
i. Environmental justice/climate change
j. Faith communities
k. Family well-being
l. Financial institutions (e.g., banks, credit unions)
m. Food access and affordability (e.g., food bank)
n. Food service/restaurants
o. Gender discrimination/equity
p. Government accountability
q. Healthcare access/utilization
r. Housing
s. Human services
t. Immigration
u. Jobs/labor conditions/wages and income
v. Land use planning/development
w. LGBTQIA+ discrimination/equity
x. Parks, recreation, and open space
y. Public health
z. Public safety/violence
aa. Racial justice
ab. Seniors/elder care
ac. Transportation
ad. Utilities
ae. Veterans’ issues
af. Violence
ag. Youth development and leadership

14. Which of the following categories does your organization work on/with? (Check
all that apply.)

Shoshona Smith

Shoshona Smith

Shoshona Smith



4/25/24, 11:12 AM Community Partner Survey- 2023/2024 Community Health Needs Assessment

https://docs.google.com/forms/d/1MvKIj7zX7Ujo-xQ23IzryITC46gYHlqpudlE0R764AE/edit 9/14

17.

Other:

Check all that apply.

a. Cancer
b. Chronic disease (e.g., asthma, diabetes/obesity, cardiovascular disease)
c. Family/maternal health
d. Immunizations and screenings
e. Infectious diseases, other than COVID
f. COVID-19
g. Injury and violence prevention
h. HIV/STD prevention
i. Healthcare access/utilization
j. Health equity
k. Health insurance/Medicare/Medicaid/MaineCare
l. Mental or behavioral health (e.g., PTSD, anxiety, trauma)
m. Physical activity
n. Tobacco and substance use and prevention
o. Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants, and Children

(WIC)/food stamps o. None of the above/Not applicable
Option 16

Organization's Capacities

A goal of this assessment is to better understand how partner organizations contribute to our 
local public health system. Your organization—and you—are vital to our community’s local 
public health system, even if you do not work in public health or healthcare. Public health is 
more than healthcare, and health outcomes are shaped by behaviors, ability to access care, 
living and working conditions, and the institutions, policies, systems, cultural norms, social 
inequities, and environment that shape our community. Organizations working to improve the 
well-being of individuals, families, and communities through improving  housing, education, 
childcare, workforce development, or other conditions impact the public’s health.  

One way to understand, assess, and improve our local public health system is to capture how 
your organization's capacities and activities align with essential services (activities identi�ed 
as "essential public health services" by the CDC).

15. Which of the following health topics does your organization work on? (check all
that apply)

Shoshona Smith

Shoshona Smith

Shoshona Smith



4/25/24, 11:12 AM Community Partner Survey- 2023/2024 Community Health Needs Assessment

https://docs.google.com/forms/d/1MvKIj7zX7Ujo-xQ23IzryITC46gYHlqpudlE0R764AE/edit 10/14

18.

Check all that apply.

a. Assessment: My organization conducts assessments of living and working
conditions and community needs and assets.

b. Investigation of Hazards: My organization investigates, diagnoses, and addresses
health problems and hazards affecting the population.

c. Communication and Education: My organization works to communicate effectively
to inform and educate people about health or well-being, factors that in�uence well-being,
and how to improve it.

d. Community Engagement and Partnerships: My organization works to strengthen,
support, and mobilize communities and partnerships to improve health and well-being.

e. Policies, Plans, Laws: My organization works to create, champion, and apply policies,
plans, and laws that impact health and well-being.

f. Legal and Regulatory Authority: My organization has legal or regulatory authority to
protect health and well-being and uses legal and regulatory actions to improve and protect
the public’s health and well-being.

g. Access to Care: My organization provides healthcare and social services to
individuals or works to ensure equitable access and an effective system of care and
services.

h. Workforce: My organization supports workforce development and can help build and
support a diverse, skilled workforce.

i. Evaluation And Research: My organization conducts evaluation, research, and
continuous quality improvement and can help improve or innovate functions.

j. Organizational Infrastructure: My organization is helping build and maintain a strong
organizational infrastructure for health and well-being.

19.

16. Please indicate whether your organization regularly does the following activities.
(Check all that apply.)

17. Please list any additional strengths of your organization that are not included
above.

Shoshona Smith

Shoshona Smith

Shoshona Smith



4/25/24, 11:12 AM Community Partner Survey- 2023/2024 Community Health Needs Assessment

https://docs.google.com/forms/d/1MvKIj7zX7Ujo-xQ23IzryITC46gYHlqpudlE0R764AE/edit 11/14

20.

21.

Mark only one oval.

a. Yes

b. No

c. Unsure

22.

18. Of the activities and strengths listed above (including any you added in 17),
which do you identify as your organization’s top 1–3 strengths?

19a. Does your organization have sufficient capacity to meet the needs of your
clients/members/service population? For example, do you have enough
staff/funding/support to do your work? 

19b. Please elaborate or add comments to your answer to question 19a.

Shoshona Smith

Shoshona Smith

Shoshona Smith



4/25/24, 11:12 AM Community Partner Survey- 2023/2024 Community Health Needs Assessment

https://docs.google.com/forms/d/1MvKIj7zX7Ujo-xQ23IzryITC46gYHlqpudlE0R764AE/edit 12/14

23.

Mark only one oval.

Yes

No

Not sure

24.

25.

Other:

Check all that apply.

a. Demographic information about clients or members
b. Access and utilization data about services provided and to whom
c. Evaluation, performance management, or quality improvement information about

services and programs offered
d. Data about health status
e. Data about health behaviors
f. Data about conditions and social determinants of health (e.g., housing, education, or

other)
g. Data about systems of power, privilege, and oppression
h. We don’t collect data

20a. Does your organization conduct assessments (e.g., of basic needs, community
health, neighborhood)?

20b. If yes, please describe what you assess and whether you are able to share the
assessments you describe.

21a. What data does your organization collect? (Check all that apply.)

Shoshona Smith

Shoshona Smith

Shoshona Smith



4/25/24, 11:12 AM Community Partner Survey- 2023/2024 Community Health Needs Assessment

https://docs.google.com/forms/d/1MvKIj7zX7Ujo-xQ23IzryITC46gYHlqpudlE0R764AE/edit 13/14

26.

Mark only one oval.

Other:

a. Yes, can share

b. No

c. Unsure

27.

28.

21b.  Can you share any of that data for purposes of this Community Health Needs
Assessment?

22. (Optional) Please comment about how your organization might contribute to this
Community Health Needs Assessment and follow-on planning and implementation.
Examples include but are not limited to: Helping to distribute surveys to individual
community members to learn about their health and community health
perspectives; participating in a phone call or meeting to share your expertise on
community health needs and opportunities; and using the Community Health Needs
Assessment and Action Plan final report to help inform your work/being part of a
network of organizations partnering on implementation.

23. Please add any questions, comments, or suggestions about our process and/or
how we might work together to improve community health.

Shoshona Smith

Shoshona Smith

Shoshona Smith



4/25/24, 11:12 AM Community Partner Survey- 2023/2024 Community Health Needs Assessment

https://docs.google.com/forms/d/1MvKIj7zX7Ujo-xQ23IzryITC46gYHlqpudlE0R764AE/edit 14/14

Thank You for Completing our Survey!

Your responses will be analyzed along with other data we collect and existing data we 
access. All of this information will be used to develop a Community Health Needs 
Assessment and Action Plan report aimed at collectively strengthening the health of our 
community. That report will be shared directly with Steering Committee members and be 
available publicly on the MDI Hospital website.

Thank your for your assistance!

This content is neither created nor endorsed by Google.

 Forms

https://www.google.com/forms/about/?utm_source=product&utm_medium=forms_logo&utm_campaign=forms
https://www.google.com/forms/about/?utm_source=product&utm_medium=forms_logo&utm_campaign=forms
https://www.google.com/forms/about/?utm_source=product&utm_medium=forms_logo&utm_campaign=forms
Shoshona Smith



Appendix E - Forces of Change summary

2024 Community Health Needs Assessment
FORCES OF CHANGE

Definitions
● “Trends” are patterns over time, such as migration in and out of a community or changes

in technology access.
● “Factors” are discrete elements, such as a community’s large ethnic population, a rural

setting, or proximity to a major waterway.
● “Events” are one-time occurrences, such as a hospital closure, a natural disaster, or

passage of new legislation.

Discussion Questions

1. What trends, factors, and/or events exist that may affect our community?

● Respiratory diseases, including COVID-19
● Workforce shortages, including primary care and specialist physicians
● Long wait times for appointments
● Environmental health issues including well water testing (arsenic), radon in indoor air

and water, mold exposures, PFAS
● Substance Use Disorders, including overdose
● Mental/Behavioral health
● Big weather events, including flooding
● Social disconnection
● Climate adaptations
● Housing shortages
● Persistent inflation and high cost of living
● Oral health care access
● Chronic disease rates, specifically diabetes, cancer, and Alzheimer's disease/dementia
● Seasonality of our community
● Influx of seasonal visitors and workforce (affects access to care)
● SNAP benefits do not keep pace with inflation
● Benefit levels more limited and inadequate since expiration of COVID supplemental

funds
● Access to affordable prescription medication



● Rural nature of our area, including (especially) the remote islands
● Uninsured (and underinsured) people (e.g. fishermen, seasonal workers)
● Transportation difficulties
● Lack of activities, third places, and things to do in general and especially youth
● MaineCare eligibility criteria changes
● Northern Light discontinuing home health services on MDI
● Closure of the last long term nursing facility; no nursing home in Hancock County
● Only limited assisted living or respite care

2. What populations may be disproportionately impacted (harmed or benefit) by these
forces of change?

● Transient and self-employed workforce
● Middle of the road group that makes too much money to receive assistance, but isn’t

keeping up with inflation
● Adults age 60 and over and living alone
● Vulnerable populations, including unhoused, insecurely housed (priced out of affordable

housing in the area)
● Speakers of other languages (ESL and ASL – American Sign Language)
● Non-lobster fisherman (clammers, wormers, other); people who rely on working

waterfront
● Working parents, requiring daycare, after school care
● Caregivers
● Young people (youth and young adults)
● People who have been receiving MaineCare benefits
● Aging population (and their caregivers)

3. What resources or strengths do we have to adapt to these changes?
● Mental Health and behavioral health services, including MDIH Behavioral Health Center
● Strong sense of community and goodwill to support one another
● School district and embedded school nurses, social workers, and counselors at each site
● Transportation - Downeast bus is underutilized and has more potential
● Picasso - Telehealth capabilities to provide access to specialists with a provider at an

appointment
● Oral health prevention is being expanded to all school sites with funding for it.
● Youth support examples- Neighborhood House doing cooking classes, libraries, Volta,

YMCA
● MDIH is working with Northern Light to take over home health patients and to eliminate

gaps
● High philanthropic assets in our community
● Unusually high concentration of nonprofits in our area



● Relationship with schools, universities, community colleges, and medical institutes to
train nurses, medical providers, and interns (MDIH Medical Education Center)

● Decrease in stigma around SUD and increasing awareness of narcan and how to
administer it

● Downeast Treatment Center, Healthy Acadia, AMHC, Groups, State of Maine Opiate
Task Force (with Gerdon Smith), and MDI Opioid Task Force (with John Lennon and
others)

● Public health education from research perspective: MDI Biological Lab and Jackson Lab
● Employers trying to address the workforce housing shortage

4. How can what we’ve learned through this exercise shape some final
recommendations for community health improvement?

● Need to find ways to get faster throughput to primary care (e.g. through telehealth
services)

● Identify ways to build and strengthen collaborations efficiently without
duplicating resources







 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
  

















































 

NEW BUSINESS 

  











































































































































 

Clerk Memo - Clerk's office hours.docx 

Town of Mount Desert 
Claire Woolfolk, Town Clerk 
21 Sea Street, P.O. Box 248 

Northeast Harbor, ME  04662-0248 
 

Telephone     207-276-5531 Fax     207-276-3232 
E-mail  townclerk@mtdesert.org  Web Address www.mtdesert.org 

 
 

MEMO 
 
DATE:  May 16, 2024 
 
TO:  Durlin Lunt, Town Manager, Selectboard 
 
FROM: Claire Woolfolk, Town Clerk  
 
RE:  Clerk’s Office Hours 
 
 
As you know, traveling on and off the island is getting increasingly difficult and stressful for our 
employees.  In an effort to improve the work/life balance of our employees without compromising 
the services to our community, I am proposing the change of our office hours.  The following 
schedule allows for extended times for public access M – Th and also provides for services on 
Friday mornings.  The facetime for the public does not change (37.5 hours each week, excepting 
holidays and elections).  
 

 Open Close Public Hours Empl Hours Arrive Leave 
M 8:30 AM 5:30 PM 9   9.5 8:15 AM 5:45 PM 
Tu 8:30 AM 4:30 PM 8   8.5 8:15 AM 4:45 PM 
W 8:30 AM 4:30 PM 8   8.5 8:15 AM 4:45 PM 
Th 8:30 AM 5:30 PM 9   9.5 8:15 AM 5:45 PM 
F 8:30 AM 12:00 PM 3.5   4 8:15 AM 12:15 PM 

   

        
37.50    40 

  

 
 
As such, I request authorization to amend the public office hours for the clerk’s to: 
 
Monday  8:30am – 5:30pm 
Tuesday  8:30am – 4:30pm 
Wednesday 8:30am – 4:30pm 
Thursday 8:30am – 5:30pm 
Friday  8:30am – 12 noon 
 
 
Claire Woolfolk 
Town Clerk 

mailto:townclerk@mtdesert.org
http://www.mtdesert.org/


 

C:\Users\cwoolfolk\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\3V5OO35C\2024 Marina pedestal replacement_.docx  5/9/2024 

Town of Mount Desert 
John Lemoine, Harbormaster 

40 Harbor Drive, P.O. Box 237 
Northeast Harbor, ME  04662-0248 

Telephone     207-276-5737 Fax     207-276-5741 
E-mail Address harbormaster@mtdesert.org 

Web Address www.mtdesert.org 

 
May 8, 2024 
 
 

MEMO 
 
To: Durlin Lunt-Town Manager, Board of Selectmen 
From: John Lemoine-Harbormaster 
Ref: Marina power pedestal replacement  
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
  
I am asking for authorization to pay MCM Electric $5,870.00 for replacement of two power 
pedestals out of the Northeast Harbor Marina power Pedestals CIP # 6410100-24680 has a 
balance of $76,860.64 This is to keep the infrastructure up to date and in good working order. I 
will be available for questions.  
 
 
John Lemoine 
Harbormaster 
 

mailto:harbormaster@mtdesert.org
http://www.mtdesert.org/


PROPOSAL
Date

5/8/2024
Proposal Number

2024-104
TO

Attn:  John LeMoine
Town of Mount Desert
PO Box 248
Northeast Harbor, ME 04662

MCM Electric, Inc.

Job Name / Location

NEH Marina

x

Sales Tax (6.0%)

Job Phone

276-5531
Customer Fax

276-3232

49 Hall Quarry Road
Mt. Desert, ME  04660

Tel: (207) 244-7454
Fax: (207) 244-0241

e-Mail: Mike@mcmelectric.com Send via:            U.S.Mail            e-Mail            Fax

 WE hereby submit specifications and estimates for:

The above prices, specifications and conditions are satisfactory and are hereby
accepted.  You are authorized to do the work as specified.  Payment will be as

outlined above.

Signature

Signature

All material is guaranteed to be as specified.  All work to be completed in a profes-
sional manner according to standard practices.  Any alterations or deviation from
the above specifications involving extra costs will be executed only upon written

orders, and will become an extra charge over and above the estimate.  All agree-
ments are contingent upon delays beyond our control.  Owner to carry fire and

other necessary insurance.  Our workers are fully covered by required insurance.

Date of Acceptance

Authorized
Signature

NOTE: This proposal may be withdrawn by us if not accepted within            days.

OFFER OF PROPOSAL ACCEPTANCE OF PROPOSAL

30

DescriptionItem Total

Proposal:  #2024-104 - (2) Shore power pedestals including installation 5,870.00

NOT INCLUDED:  wire

$5,870.00$0.00



 

C:\Users\cwoolfolk\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\3V5OO35C\Seal Harbor Temp Electrical hook up.docx  5/9/2024 

Town of Mount Desert 
John Lemoine, Harbormaster 

40 Harbor Drive, P.O. Box 237 
Northeast Harbor, ME  04662-0248 

Telephone     207-276-5737 Fax     207-276-5741 
E-mail Address harbormaster@mtdesert.org 

Web Address www.mtdesert.org 

 
May 8, 2024 
 
 

MEMO 
 
To: Durlin Lunt-Town Manager, Board of Selectmen 
From: John Lemoine-Harbormaster 
Ref: Seal Harbor temporary electrical hook up  
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
  
I am asking for authorization to pay for a temporary electrical hook up at the Seal Harbor Pier.  I 
received verbal approval from Durl Lunt to award the job to MCM Electric so we could get on 
their schedule. I am asking for your approval to pay MCM Electric $2,200.00 for the work out of 
the Seal Harbor CIP reserve #6410200-24600 the account has a balance of $78,960.82. I will be 
available for questions.  
 
 
John Lemoine 
Harbormaster 
 

mailto:harbormaster@mtdesert.org
http://www.mtdesert.org/


PROPOSAL
Date

5/8/2024
Proposal Number

2024-103
TO

Attn:  John LeMoine
Town of Mount Desert
PO Box 248
Northeast Harbor, ME 04662

MCM Electric, Inc.

Job Name / Location

Seal Harbor Dock

x

Sales Tax (6.0%)

Job Phone

276-5531
Customer Fax

276-3232

49 Hall Quarry Road
Mt. Desert, ME  04660

Tel: (207) 244-7454
Fax: (207) 244-0241

e-Mail: Mike@mcmelectric.com Send via:            U.S.Mail            e-Mail            Fax

 WE hereby submit specifications and estimates for:

The above prices, specifications and conditions are satisfactory and are hereby
accepted.  You are authorized to do the work as specified.  Payment will be as

outlined above.

Signature

Signature

All material is guaranteed to be as specified.  All work to be completed in a profes-
sional manner according to standard practices.  Any alterations or deviation from
the above specifications involving extra costs will be executed only upon written

orders, and will become an extra charge over and above the estimate.  All agree-
ments are contingent upon delays beyond our control.  Owner to carry fire and

other necessary insurance.  Our workers are fully covered by required insurance.

Date of Acceptance

Authorized
Signature

NOTE: This proposal may be withdrawn by us if not accepted within            days.

OFFER OF PROPOSAL ACCEPTANCE OF PROPOSAL

30

DescriptionItem Total

Install temp service, rerun winch and light powerA:
State permitB:

Proposal:  #2024-103 - Install temp service, rerun winch & light power 2,200.00
************************

NOTE:  Town to provide protection of equipment i.e. granite block, jersey barrier......

$2,200.00$0.00



 

Town of Mount Desert 
21 Sea Street, P.O. Box 248 

Northeast Harbor, ME  04662-0248 
Telephone 207-276-5744 Fax 207-276-5142 
www.mtdesert.org    highway@mtdesert.org 

 

MEMO   
  
To: Brian Henkel., Public Works Director     
From: Ben Jacobs, Public Works Superintendent 
Re:  Heil Refuse Packer Body & Equipment Recommendation              
Date: May 14, 2024            
 

As authorized by the Selectboard at their April 16, 2024, regular meeting, we recently solicited bids for 
a new Heil Refuse Packer Body and equipment to be installed on our new 2025 Western Star refuse 
truck cab and chassis that we have ordered.  

Refuse Packer Body & Equipment: We solicited pricing for a Refuse Packer Body and equipment 
which is to be installed on our new 2025 Western Star truck cab and chassis from three different sales 
companies, receiving one responsive bid from Maine Equipment from Hermon Miane. H.P Fairfield 
from Skowhegan Maine and Viking Cives from Lewiston Maine did not bid. The bid we received for 
the Refuse Packer Body & equipment met our required specifications.  
 
 
Recommendation: Based on the information presented above, I recommend we purchase:  

 
 A new Heil Refuse Packer Body & Equipment to be installed on our new 2025 Western Star 

cab & chassis from Maine Equipment located in Hermon Maine at their bid price of 
$113,218.00. 
 
 

As is typical for such purchases, I recommend we use funds from the Waste Management Truck 
Reserve account number 4051500-24581 with a current balance of $134,842.70. (After we purchase 
The Western Star Cab & Chassis) There will be $21,642.70 remaining in the account after we purchase 
the Heil Refuse Packer Body and equipment. Thank you for considering my recommendation. 
 
 
Cc. Claire Woolfolk, Town Clerk; Mae Wyler, Finance Director 
 



 

Date: May 14, 2024 

To: Selectboard 

From: Brian Henkel, Public Works Director 

Re: Bid for Services from MCM Electric 

Public Works solicited a bid for electrical work at the Northeast Harbor Wastewater Treatment Plant 

(WWTP) for connecting the Maintenance Garage to the primary electrical supply. Currently the 

Maintenance Garage has an independent, dedicated service and an 8 KW, independent, backup 

generator. The rest of the WWTP is connected to the primary service with backup by a 250 KW 

generator. The primary backup generator has more than enough power to also backup the Maintenance 

Garage. When the WWTP was upgraded in 2014, it was anticipated that the Maintenance Garage would 

be connected into the primary service and accommodations including service box and conduits were 

installed. The connection was not fully completed during the upgrade project as it was expected that it 

would be more economical to complete the work with an independent contractor outside of the project. 

The final connection has remained incomplete, requiring the additional mechanical systems and 

maintenance of an extra generator. Additionally, that extra generator could be repurposed to provide 

backup power to the Sargeant Drive Pump Station. 

Public Works recommends that Public Works Director, Brian Henkel be authorized to accept the 

proposal from MCM Electric to run service to the Maintenance Garage, remove the old service, and 

disconnect the backup generator. 

Cc: Durlin Lunt, Town Manager 

Claire Wolfolk, Town Clerk 

Ed Montague, Wastewater Superintendent 

Enclosures: 

Estimate 2024108 MCM Electric Inc. 

 

Memorandum 



PROPOSAL
Date

5/13/2024
Proposal Number

2024-108
TO

Attn:  Brian Henkel
Town of Mount Desert
PO Box 248
Northeast Harbor, ME 04662

MCM Electric, Inc.

Job Name / Location

Wastewater Dept.

x

Sales Tax (6.0%)

Job Phone

276-5531
Customer Fax

276-3232

49 Hall Quarry Road
Mt. Desert, ME  04660

Tel: (207) 244-7454
Fax: (207) 244-0241

e-Mail: Mike@mcmelectric.com Send via:            U.S.Mail            e-Mail            Fax

 WE hereby submit specifications and estimates for:

The above prices, specifications and conditions are satisfactory and are hereby
accepted.  You are authorized to do the work as specified.  Payment will be as

outlined above.

Signature

Signature

All material is guaranteed to be as specified.  All work to be completed in a profes-
sional manner according to standard practices.  Any alterations or deviation from
the above specifications involving extra costs will be executed only upon written

orders, and will become an extra charge over and above the estimate.  All agree-
ments are contingent upon delays beyond our control.  Owner to carry fire and

other necessary insurance.  Our workers are fully covered by required insurance.

Date of Acceptance

Authorized
Signature

NOTE: This proposal may be withdrawn by us if not accepted within            days.

OFFER OF PROPOSAL ACCEPTANCE OF PROPOSAL

30

DescriptionItem Total

Run service to garage from plant - $9,571.00A:

Remove old service and disconnect generator - $760.00B:

Proposal: #2024-108 10,331.00

$10,331.00$0.00



 

Town of Mount Desert 
Michael Bender, Fire Chief 
21 Sea Street, P.O. Box 248 

Northeast Harbor, ME  04662-0248 
 

Telephone 207-276-5111  Fax 207-276-5732 
Web Address www.mtdesert.org 

firechief@mtdesert.org 
  

Memo 
To: Durlin Lunt, Town Manager  
From: Mike Bender, Fire Chief 
CC: Tom Wallace, DC John Lennon  
Date: May 1, 2023 
Re: Acceptance of Gift from the NEHAS 

 

I would like to make a request that the Board of Selectman consider accepting a conditional gift 
from the Northeast Harbor Ambulance Service to the Mount Desert Fire Department in the way 
of a cash donation to use towards the purchase of Lund University Cardiopulmonary Assist 
System (LUCAS), with an approximate value of $21,000.00.  

A LUCAS chest compression system is a portable, mechanical device designed to assist first 
responders in administering automated chest compressions. The fire department currently has 
one LUCAS in service, which is normally kept at station #3 in Somesville. A second one will 
enable us to keep one on each of our two ambulances, located at the Somesville and Northeast 
Harbor stations. Sudden cardiac arrest is a medical emergency that demands immediate action 
and the importance of high-quality CPR within the first few minutes cannot be overstated. Having 
two of these devices in each of the described locations will allow for reduced response times for 
these types of calls.   

There will be routine maintenance or service costs associated with this gift, and I intend to 
purchase an extended warranty when the original one-year warranty expires.  I will also be 
adding the replacement costs of this to the fire department’s CIP. Expected service life is 
approximately 7years. 

We are grateful to the Northeast Harbor Ambulance Service for their continued support towards 
our EMS operations.     

   

Thank you.  

http://www.mtdesert.org/
mailto:manager@mtdesert.org


 
  

 
 

Memo 
 
To: Durlin Lunt, Town Manager  
From: Mike Bender, Fire Chief  
CC:  
Date: May 1, 2024 
Re: Sale of Surplus Equipment 
 
 
I would like to request authorization to sell some surplus equipment belonging to the 
Mount Desert Fire Department. The sale will be by the competitive bid process as 
described below. Items to be sold will be on an as-is, where-is, buyer picks up the item 
basis. I also request authorization to accept or reject the bids and dispose of the items 
that are not sold on behalf of the Town. 
 
The vehicle is the one that was recently replaced with the purchase and delivery of our 
2024 GMC Sierra pick-up. The air compressor was used to fill our breathing cylinders.  
It was purchased in 2002 and was replaced by the new compressor that was bought 
as part of the Northeast Harbor fire station expansion. The large air cylinders were also 
part of the compressor replacement. All of these should be considered surplus 
equipment.     
 
 
Newspaper Ad: 
 

Town of Mount Desert: Surplus Equipment for Sale 
 
 
The Town of Mount Desert has the following surplus equipment for sale by competitive 
bid on an as-is, where-is, buyer picks up the item, basis. Written bids in sealed 

Mount Desert Fire Department 
Michael Bender, Fire Chief 
21 Sea Street, P.O. Box 248 

Northeast Harbor, ME  04662-0248 
 

Telephone 207-276-5111 Fax 207-276-5732 
Web Address www.mtdesert.org 

firechief@mtdesert.org 

http://www.mtdesert.org/
mailto:manager@mtdesert.org


2 

envelopes must be received at the Town’s Municipal Office, no later than 1:00P.M.; 
Monday, June 10, 2024; bids will be opened at that time. Faxed and/or e-mailed bids 
will not be accepted. The sealed envelopes must have “Surplus FD Equipment Bid” 
clearly written on the outside of the envelope. Items being bid upon must be identified 
by the item number and description from below; multiple items can be included in the 
same envelope. The Town’s mailing address is P.O. Box 248, Northeast Harbor, 
Maine 04662; the physical address is 21 Sea Street, Northeast Harbor. Successful 
bidders are to make payment by check payable to the Town of Mount Desert by July 
14, 2023. If payment is not made by this date, the item(s) will be disposed determined 
best by the Fire Chief. Site visits to see the items or questions about them can be 
directed to the Fire Chief. The Town reserves the right to reject any or all bids and to 
again invite bids; to negotiate with any bidder it so desires; to waive such formalities or 
informalities as do not affect or alter the substantive provisions thereof; to reissue a 
request for bids and/or to accept any bid deemed advantageous to the Town. 
 
The items are as follows: 
 

1. One (1) 2011 Ford F-350 Super Duty Crew Cab w/ 6.7 Turbo Diesel, 
approximately 143,800 miles 

2. Two (2) 2007 Bauer 6000 PSIG Breathing Air Storage Bottles 
3. One (1) 2001 Bauer Hydraulic Breathing Air Compressor with 704 hours 

of operation  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Thank you 



 

Town of Mount Desert 
Michael Bender, Fire Chief, Emergency 

Management Director 
21 Sea Street, P.O. Box 248 

Northeast Harbor, ME  04662-0248 
Telephone 207-276-5111  Fax 207-276-5732 

Web Address www.mtdesert.org 
firechief@mtdesert.org 

  

Memo 
To: Durlin Lunt, Town Manager  
From: Mike Bender, Fire Chief 
CC:  
Date: May 15, 2024 
Re: Contract Authorization for Office Furniture Purchase 

 

Requesting that the Select Board consider authorizing the Fire Chief to enter into contract 
with Warren’s Office Supplies to purchase and install office furniture at the new Northeast 
Harbor fire station. The contract total is $14,805.95 and I will request an amount not to 
exceed $15,000.00. This will include delivery and setup. Funding for this purchase will be 
from the fire station project account. I originally budgeted $20,757.00 for office furnishings.  

To comply with our Purchase Policy, I have provided 2 additional cost proposals. It was 
difficult to locate area vendors who offered the same brands as Warren’s did, So, to be able 
to compare “apples to apples” I have put together a cost comparison of two other vendors 
selling the same product. One is purchasing direct from the manufacturer, and one is a 
national office supply chain. On a side note, I have enrolled the Town with Equalis Group, a 
cooperative purchasing organization that works with Warren’s Office Supplies in order to offer 
deeper discounts.  

This request includes tables and chairs for the department’s meeting room, 2 computer 
workstations for the meeting room, a lectern for the meeting room, 2 office desks for the day 
watch room, a small desk for the officer’s bunk room, several office chairs and filing cabinets. 

Below is a breakdown of office furniture quotes: 

Warren’s Office Supplies Office to Go Staples 

$14,805.96 $25,155.00 $18,208.77 

 

Thank you.   

http://www.mtdesert.org/
mailto:manager@mtdesert.org
















TREASURER’S 
WARRANTS 

 





 Warrants for  BOS Agenda: BOS Agenda: 5/20/2024

Description # Date Amount

A.  Warrants to be Approved and Signed: 
Town Invoices

AP#2471 05/21/24 411,841.13              

411,841.13$           
B. Authorized Warrants to be Signed: (Wendy needs to abstain)
         (Prior Electronic or Manual Authorization )

Town State Fees & P/R Benefits
AP#2469 05/08/24 56,569.19                
AP#2470 05/15/24 6,319.74                  

Town Payroll
PR#2426 05/10/24 158,930.38$           

221,819.31$           

C.  Warrants to be Acknowledged:
School Invoices

School Payroll
PR#23 05/10/24 114,131.81$           

Town Voids
V2406 05/21/24 (144.00)$                  

113,987.81$           

TOTAL WARRANTS FOR BOS MEETING 747,648.25$        

T:\TREASURER\SECURE FILES\1- FY 2024 Working Files\Select Board Meeting\2024.05.21 Selectboard Meeting -
\Exceptions Documents\0- Exception Report.xlsx######



To
w

n 
of

 M
ou

nt
 D

es
er

t

YE
A

R
-T

O
-D

A
TE

 B
U

D
G

ET
 R

EP
O

R
T

R
e
p
o
r
t
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
:
 
0
5
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
6
:
1
8

U
s
e
r
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u

P
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
I
D
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
g
l
y
t
d
b
u
d

P
a
g
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
F
O
R
 
2
0
2
4
 
1
3

A
C
C
O
U
N
T
S
 
F
O
R
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
R
I
G
I
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
T
R
A
N
F
R
S
/
 
 
 
 
 
R
E
V
I
S
E
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
V
A
I
L
A
B
L
E
 
 
 
 
P
C
T

1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
P
R
O
P
 
 
 
 
 
A
D
J
S
T
M
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
Y
T
D
 
E
X
P
E
N
D
E
D
 
 
 
E
N
C
U
M
B
R
A
N
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
S
E
D

2
0
0
 
G
o
v
e
r
n
i
n
g
 
B
o
d
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
,
7
7
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
,
7
7
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
,
5
1
5
.
5
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
,
2
5
4
.
4
7
 
 
 
3
9
.
5
%

2
0
1
 
M
u
n
i
c
i
p
a
l
 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
2
,
0
6
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
2
,
0
6
4
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
2
,
0
9
9
.
3
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
,
9
6
4
.
6
9
 
 
 
9
3
.
1
%

2
0
2
 
T
o
w
n
 
C
l
e
r
k
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
9
,
9
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
3
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
0
,
2
6
1
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
5
,
2
0
0
.
6
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
,
0
6
0
.
3
9
 
 
 
7
6
.
7
%

2
0
3
 
E
l
e
c
t
i
o
n
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
9
0
4
.
8
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
,
0
9
5
.
1
6
 
 
 
4
6
.
5
%

2
0
4
 
P
l
a
n
n
i
n
g
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
2
,
2
6
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
,
6
7
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
7
,
9
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
4
,
9
3
9
.
7
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
-
2
6
,
9
9
9
.
7
0
 
 
1
3
0
.
7
%

2
0
5
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
4
,
8
5
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
4
,
8
5
1
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
8
,
8
9
4
.
3
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
,
9
5
6
.
6
8
 
 
 
8
5
.
4
%

2
0
6
 
A
s
s
e
s
s
i
n
g
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
3
,
2
1
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
3
,
2
1
2
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
1
,
9
2
5
.
6
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
,
2
8
6
.
3
5
 
 
 
8
5
.
1
%

2
0
7
 
C
o
d
e
 
E
n
f
o
r
c
e
m
e
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
2
,
4
8
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
2
,
4
8
4
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
7
,
6
4
0
.
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
4
,
8
4
3
.
8
9
 
 
 
8
3
.
6
%

2
0
8
 
U
n
a
l
l
o
c
a
t
e
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
3
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
3
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
9
,
7
7
3
.
9
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
,
2
2
6
.
0
9
 
 
 
5
2
.
9
%

2
0
9
 
H
u
m
a
n
 
R
e
s
o
u
r
c
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
5
,
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
5
,
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
8
4
4
.
7
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
1
,
5
5
5
.
2
6
 
 
 
 
6
.
9
%

2
1
0
 
T
e
c
h
n
o
l
o
g
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
0
,
8
8
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
0
,
8
8
7
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
9
,
3
0
6
.
0
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
5
8
0
.
9
1
 
 
 
9
4
.
8
%

2
1
1
 
C
o
n
t
r
a
c
t
e
d
 
M
u
n
 
&
 
C
o
m
m
-
O
r
i
e
n
t
e
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
3
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
3
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
3
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
1
0
0
.
0
%

3
0
0
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
A
s
s
i
s
t
a
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
9
0
9
.
7
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
0
.
2
2
 
 
 
9
8
.
2
%

3
5
0
 
R
u
r
a
l
 
W
a
s
t
e
w
a
t
e
r
 
S
u
p
p
o
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
2
,
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
2
,
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
3
,
5
8
9
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
,
4
7
7
.
0
0
 
 
 
9
1
.
7
%

4
0
1
 
P
o
l
i
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
6
6
,
4
7
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
6
 
 
 
1
,
1
6
7
,
1
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
5
7
6
,
6
6
6
.
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
5
9
0
,
4
4
6
.
7
5
 
 
 
4
9
.
4
%

4
0
3
 
F
i
r
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
2
6
7
,
3
3
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
2
,
2
6
7
,
3
3
4
 
 
 
1
,
9
9
2
,
5
9
3
.
0
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
4
,
7
4
0
.
9
1
 
 
 
8
7
.
9
%

4
0
4
 
H
y
d
r
a
n
t
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
3
,
5
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
3
,
5
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
3
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
1
0
0
.
0
%

4
0
5
 
S
h
e
l
l
f
i
s
h
 
C
o
n
s
e
r
v
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
4
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
4
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
4
0
3
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
%

4
0
6
 
S
t
r
e
e
t
 
L
i
g
h
t
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
2
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
2
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
3
2
7
.
6
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
9
2
2
.
3
1
 
 
 
7
4
.
0
%

4
0
7
 
A
n
i
m
a
l
 
C
o
n
t
r
o
l
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
9
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
9
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
9
8
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
%

4
0
8
 
C
o
m
u
n
i
c
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
6
,
2
9
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
6
,
2
9
5
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
8
,
1
6
7
.
0
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
8
,
1
2
7
.
9
3
 
 
 
7
8
.
5
%

4
0
9
 
E
m
e
r
g
e
n
c
y
 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
%

5
0
1
 
H
i
g
h
w
a
y
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
0
0
4
,
0
6
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
2
,
0
0
4
,
0
6
8
 
 
 
1
,
8
2
1
,
4
7
8
.
1
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
2
,
5
8
9
.
8
2
 
 
 
9
0
.
9
%

5
0
5
 
W
a
s
t
e
w
a
t
e
r
 
O
p
e
r
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
4
5
,
1
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
7
4
5
,
1
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
6
1
1
,
8
6
6
.
4
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
3
,
2
9
0
.
5
1
 
 
 
8
2
.
1
%

5
0
6
 
W
a
s
t
e
 
W
a
t
e
r
 
T
r
e
a
t
m
e
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
6
4
,
6
0
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
4
6
4
,
6
0
8
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
5
,
1
0
5
.
9
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
9
,
5
0
2
.
0
1
 
 
 
7
8
.
6
%

5
1
5
 
W
a
s
t
e
 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
4
3
,
6
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
7
4
3
,
6
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
4
,
7
8
1
.
9
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
8
,
8
3
7
.
0
3
 
 
 
8
5
.
4
%

5
2
0
 
B
u
i
l
d
i
n
g
s
 
&
 
G
r
o
u
n
d
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
8
,
5
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
5
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
0
,
0
2
9
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
8
,
7
0
7
.
0
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
1
,
3
2
2
.
0
6
 
 
 
8
1
.
7
%

5
2
5
 
P
a
r
k
s
 
&
 
C
e
m
e
t
e
r
i
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
,
2
0
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
,
2
0
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
5
,
6
3
9
.
1
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
5
6
2
.
8
3
 
 
 
9
2
.
4
%

5
3
0
 
E
n
v
i
r
o
n
m
e
n
t
a
l
 
S
u
s
t
a
i
n
a
b
i
l
i
t
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
,
7
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
,
7
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
,
8
3
2
.
9
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
5
,
0
8
2
.
9
7
 
 
1
1
4
.
2
%

6
0
5
 
R
e
c
r
e
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
9
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
9
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
7
6
4
.
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
3
5
.
2
9
 
 
 
8
0
.
8
%

7
0
1
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
y
 
D
e
v
e
l
o
p
m
e
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
9
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
0
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
1
9
.
5
%

8
0
1
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
O
b
l
i
g
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
2
0
3
,
9
8
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
2
,
2
0
3
,
9
8
9
 
 
 
2
,
2
0
4
,
8
9
8
.
2
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
9
0
9
.
2
7
 
 
1
0
0
.
0
%

8
5
1
 
3
r
d
 
P
a
r
t
y
 
R
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
A
g
e
n
c
i
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
,
4
3
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
,
4
3
7
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
,
4
3
7
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
1
0
0
.
0
%

9
9
1
 
O
p
e
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
T
r
a
n
s
f
e
r
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
8
4
,
3
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
1
,
0
8
4
,
3
1
4
 
 
 
1
,
0
8
4
,
3
1
4
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
1
0
0
.
0
%

 
 
 
 
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
,
1
3
0
,
7
3
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
,
1
5
3
 
 
1
4
,
1
7
8
,
8
8
4
 
 
1
2
,
3
1
3
,
5
7
4
.
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
1
,
8
6
5
,
3
0
9
.
6
2
 
 
 
8
6
.
8
%



To
w

n 
of

 M
ou

nt
 D

es
er

t

YE
A

R
-T

O
-D

A
TE

 B
U

D
G

ET
 R

EP
O

R
T

R
e
p
o
r
t
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
:
 
0
5
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
6
:
1
8

U
s
e
r
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u

P
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
I
D
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
g
l
y
t
d
b
u
d

P
a
g
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
F
O
R
 
2
0
2
4
 
1
3

A
C
C
O
U
N
T
S
 
F
O
R
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
R
I
G
I
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
T
R
A
N
F
R
S
/
 
 
 
 
 
R
E
V
I
S
E
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
V
A
I
L
A
B
L
E
 
 
 
 
P
C
T

6
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
P
R
O
P
 
 
 
 
 
A
D
J
S
T
M
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
Y
T
D
 
E
X
P
E
N
D
E
D
 
 
 
E
N
C
U
M
B
R
A
N
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
S
E
D

1
0
1
 
N
o
r
t
h
e
a
s
t
 
H
a
r
b
o
r
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
6
4
,
3
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
6
6
4
,
3
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
5
8
8
,
5
0
2
.
9
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
,
8
1
8
.
0
5
 
 
 
8
8
.
6
%

1
0
2
 
S
e
a
l
 
H
a
r
b
o
r
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
1
8
4
.
2
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
6
1
5
.
7
1
 
 
 
4
8
.
3
%

1
0
3
 
B
a
r
t
l
e
t
t
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
3
4
.
6
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
0
6
5
.
3
6
 
 
 
1
5
.
3
%

1
0
4
 
S
o
m
e
s
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
7
.
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
2
.
5
0
 
 
 
6
5
.
0
%

8
0
1
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
O
b
l
i
g
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
,
0
3
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
,
0
3
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
,
0
1
0
.
0
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
.
9
4
 
 
 
9
9
.
9
%

9
9
1
 
O
p
e
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
T
r
a
n
s
f
e
r
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
7
,
3
7
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
7
,
3
7
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
,
1
0
8
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
4
,
2
6
9
.
0
0
 
 
 
4
5
.
9
%

 
 
 
 
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
5
2
,
0
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
8
5
2
,
0
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
6
9
1
,
0
2
7
.
4
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
1
,
0
5
2
.
5
6
 
 
 
8
1
.
1
%



To
w

n 
of

 M
ou

nt
 D

es
er

t

YE
A

R
-T

O
-D

A
TE

 B
U

D
G

ET
 R

EP
O

R
T

R
e
p
o
r
t
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
:
 
0
5
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
6
:
1
8

U
s
e
r
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u

P
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
I
D
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
g
l
y
t
d
b
u
d

P
a
g
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
F
O
R
 
2
0
2
4
 
1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
R
I
G
I
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
T
R
A
N
F
R
S
/
 
 
 
 
 
R
E
V
I
S
E
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
V
A
I
L
A
B
L
E
 
 
 
 
P
C
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
P
R
O
P
 
 
 
 
 
A
D
J
S
T
M
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
Y
T
D
 
E
X
P
E
N
D
E
D
 
 
 
E
N
C
U
M
B
R
A
N
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
S
E
D

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
R
A
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
1
4
,
9
8
2
,
8
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
,
1
5
3
 
 
1
5
,
0
3
0
,
9
6
4
 
 
1
3
,
0
0
4
,
6
0
1
.
5
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
2
,
0
2
6
,
3
6
2
.
1
8
 
 
 
8
6
.
5
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*
*
 
E
N
D
 
O
F
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
 
-
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
 
b
y
 
L
i
s
a
 
Y
o
u
n
g
 
*
*
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



24
71

CH
EC

K 
DA

TE
:  

 
M

ay
 2

1,
 2

02
4

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

32
05

21
th

ro
ug

h
32

05
69

26
4,

88
4.

38
$ 

   
   

Ch
ec

k 
pa

ym
en

ts

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

N
/A

an
d

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
El

ec
tr

on
ic

 p
ay

m
en

ts

 E
FT

 N
U

M
BE

R:
  

33
38

th
ro

ug
h

33
73

14
6,

95
6.

75
$ 

   
   

AC
H 

Pa
ym

en
ts

EF
T 

or
 C

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

N
/A

an
d

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
Vo

id
ed

 C
he

ck
s

TO
TA

L 
DI

SB
U

RS
EM

EN
TS

:
41

1,
84

1.
13

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   

Se
le

ct
m

en
:

Jo
hn

 B
 M

ac
au

le
y,

 C
ha

irm
an

M
ar

th
a 

T 
Du

dm
an

W
en

dy
 H

 L
itt

le
fie

ld
, V

ic
e 

Ch
ai

rm
an

Ge
of

fr
ey

 V
 W

oo
d,

 S
ec

re
ta

ry

Ja
m

es
 F

 M
oo

er
s

na
m

ed
 in

 th
is 

sc
he

du
le

.

TO
W

N
 O

F 
M

O
U

N
T 

DE
SE

RT
AC

CO
U

N
TS

 P
AY

AB
LE

 W
AR

RA
N

T

W
AR

RA
N

T 
AP

#

Th
is 

is 
to

 c
er

tif
y 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is 

du
e 

an
d 

ch
ar

ge
ab

le
 to

 th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

tio
ns

 li
st

ed
 a

bo
ve

th
e 

su
m

 se
t a

ga
in

st
 e

ac
h 

na
m

e 
an

d 
yo

u 
ar

e 
di

re
ct

ed
 to

 p
ay

 u
nt

o 
th

e 
pa

rt
ie

s



0
5
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
5
:
5
7
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
1

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
 
 
3
3
3
8
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
A
 
C
 
P
A
R
S
O
N
S
 
L
A
N
D
S
C
A
P
I
N
G
 
&
 
G
A
R
D
E
N
 
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
3
5
.
7
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
 
C
 
P
A
R
S
O
N
S
 
L
A
N
D
S
C
A
P
I
N
G
 
&
 
G
A
R
D
E
N
 
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
4
.
7
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
3
8
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
0
0
.
5
0

 
 
 
 
 
3
3
3
9
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
4
1
1
 
A
L
L
I
E
D
 
E
Q
U
I
P
M
E
N
T
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
9
0
4
.
3
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
3
9
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
9
0
4
.
3
8

 
 
 
 
 
3
3
4
0
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
4
6
2
 
A
M
E
R
I
C
A
N
 
M
E
S
S
A
G
I
N
G
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
.
6
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
4
0
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
.
6
8

 
 
 
 
 
3
3
4
1
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
0
9
7
 
T
O
W
N
 
O
F
 
B
A
R
 
H
A
R
B
O
R
 
T
W
N
R
0
 
F
D
R
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
1
9
0
.
4
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
O
W
N
 
O
F
 
B
A
R
 
H
A
R
B
O
R
 
T
W
N
R
0
 
F
D
R
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
8
3
2
.
3
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
4
1
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
0
2
2
.
7
8

 
 
 
 
 
3
3
4
2
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
6
 
B
R
O
W
N
S
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
C
A
T
I
O
N
S
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
3
6
0
.
4
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
O
W
N
S
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
C
A
T
I
O
N
S
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
2
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
0
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
4
2
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
0
6
0
.
4
0

 
 
 
 
 
3
3
4
3
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
7
9
2
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
2
.
5
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
8
.
0
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
5
.
5
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
0
.
5
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
6
.
1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
9
5
.
7
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
2
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
4
1
.
3
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
4
3
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
6
6
9
.
9
6

 
 
 
 
 
3
3
4
4
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
8
4
4
 
C
O
L
L
I
E
R
 
&
 
F
A
H
E
Y
,
 
P
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
2
5
3
.
4
6



0
5
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
5
:
5
7
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
2

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
4
4
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
2
5
3
.
4
6

 
 
 
 
 
3
3
4
5
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
4
 
C
O
L
W
E
L
L
 
D
I
E
S
E
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
 
&
 
G
A
R
A
G
E
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
3
5
8
.
1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
L
W
E
L
L
 
D
I
E
S
E
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
 
&
 
G
A
R
A
G
E
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
3
.
6
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
4
5
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
4
9
1
.
7
4

 
 
 
 
 
3
3
4
6
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
8
 
D
E
L
L
 
M
A
R
K
E
T
I
N
G
 
L
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
7
.
5
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
E
L
L
 
M
A
R
K
E
T
I
N
G
 
L
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
1
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
7
.
0
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
4
6
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
0
4
.
6
2

 
 
 
 
 
3
3
4
7
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
1
 
E
A
T
O
N
 
P
E
A
B
O
D
Y
 
A
T
T
O
R
N
E
Y
S
 
A
T
 
L
A
W
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
8
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
A
T
O
N
 
P
E
A
B
O
D
Y
 
A
T
T
O
R
N
E
Y
S
 
A
T
 
L
A
W
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
5
.
5
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
A
T
O
N
 
P
E
A
B
O
D
Y
 
A
T
T
O
R
N
E
Y
S
 
A
T
 
L
A
W
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
2
7
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
A
T
O
N
 
P
E
A
B
O
D
Y
 
A
T
T
O
R
N
E
Y
S
 
A
T
 
L
A
W
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
2
4
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
A
T
O
N
 
P
E
A
B
O
D
Y
 
A
T
T
O
R
N
E
Y
S
 
A
T
 
L
A
W
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
3
6
8
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
A
T
O
N
 
P
E
A
B
O
D
Y
 
A
T
T
O
R
N
E
Y
S
 
A
T
 
L
A
W
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
2
4
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
A
T
O
N
 
P
E
A
B
O
D
Y
 
A
T
T
O
R
N
E
Y
S
 
A
T
 
L
A
W
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
4
9
8
.
1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
A
T
O
N
 
P
E
A
B
O
D
Y
 
A
T
T
O
R
N
E
Y
S
 
A
T
 
L
A
W
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
,
8
4
7
.
5
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
4
7
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
,
7
8
8
.
1
2

 
 
 
 
 
3
3
4
8
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
5
 
E
M
R
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
,
8
6
1
.
7
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
4
8
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
,
8
6
1
.
7
3

 
 
 
 
 
3
3
4
9
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
7
5
0
 
E
Y
E
M
A
R
T
 
E
X
P
R
E
S
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
5
.
9
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
4
9
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
5
.
9
6

 
 
 
 
 
3
3
5
0
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
2
9
1
 
G
 
F
 
J
O
H
N
S
T
O
N
 
&
 
A
S
S
O
C
I
A
T
E
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
1
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
9
6
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
 
F
 
J
O
H
N
S
T
O
N
 
&
 
A
S
S
O
C
I
A
T
E
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
1
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
8
1
.
8
0



0
5
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
5
:
5
7
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
3

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
5
0
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
6
7
7
.
8
0

 
 
 
 
 
3
3
5
1
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
5
9
2
 
H
A
M
M
O
N
D
 
L
U
M
B
E
R
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
.
7
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
M
M
O
N
D
 
L
U
M
B
E
R
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
1
.
8
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
5
1
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
2
.
5
5

 
 
 
 
 
3
3
5
2
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
7
 
H
E
D
E
F
I
N
E
 
E
N
G
I
N
E
E
R
I
N
G
 
&
 
D
E
S
I
G
N
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
0
3
3
.
0
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
5
2
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
0
3
3
.
0
8

 
 
 
 
 
3
3
5
3
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
0
4
3
 
M
A
I
N
 
S
T
R
E
E
T
 
V
A
R
I
E
T
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
8
.
3
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
I
N
 
S
T
R
E
E
T
 
V
A
R
I
E
T
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
2
6
.
5
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
I
N
 
S
T
R
E
E
T
 
V
A
R
I
E
T
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
8
.
3
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
I
N
 
S
T
R
E
E
T
 
V
A
R
I
E
T
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
0
.
5
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
5
3
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
9
4
3
.
8
4

 
 
 
 
 
3
3
5
4
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
6
0
5
 
N
O
 
F
R
I
L
L
S
 
O
I
L
S
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
A
C
C
T
 
#
9
4
1
9
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
8
5
.
0
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
5
4
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
8
5
.
0
5

 
 
 
 
 
3
3
5
5
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
6
0
7
 
N
O
 
F
R
I
L
L
S
 
O
I
L
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
A
C
C
T
 
#
3
0
4
4
8
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
,
1
1
2
.
4
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
5
5
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
,
1
1
2
.
4
6

 
 
 
 
 
3
3
5
6
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
1
3
1
 
N
O
R
T
H
E
A
S
T
 
E
M
E
R
G
E
N
C
Y
 
A
P
P
A
R
A
T
U
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
7
1
0
.
7
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
5
6
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
7
1
0
.
7
3

 
 
 
 
 
3
3
5
7
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
7
1
5
 
P
O
R
T
L
A
N
D
 
G
L
A
S
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
7
4
.
9
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
5
7
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
7
4
.
9
3

 
 
 
 
 
3
3
5
8
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
6
9
3
 
C
H
A
R
T
E
R
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
C
A
T
I
O
N
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
9
.
9
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
5
8
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
9
.
9
8



0
5
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
5
:
5
7
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
4

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
 
 
3
3
5
9
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
8
3
1
 
C
H
A
R
T
E
R
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
C
A
T
I
O
N
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
.
9
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
5
9
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
.
9
9

 
 
 
 
 
3
3
6
0
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
7
3
7
 
C
H
A
R
T
E
R
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
C
A
T
I
O
N
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
9
.
9
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
6
0
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
9
.
9
8

 
 
 
 
 
3
3
6
1
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
6
1
6
 
C
H
A
R
T
E
R
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
C
A
T
I
O
N
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
8
.
3
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
6
1
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
8
.
3
8

 
 
 
 
 
3
3
6
2
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
8
3
2
 
C
H
A
R
T
E
R
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
C
A
T
I
O
N
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
9
.
9
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
6
2
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
9
.
9
6

 
 
 
 
 
3
3
6
3
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
7
7
3
 
C
H
A
R
T
E
R
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
C
A
T
I
O
N
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
9
.
9
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
6
3
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
9
.
9
8

 
 
 
 
 
3
3
6
4
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
3
7
0
 
C
H
A
R
T
E
R
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
C
A
T
I
O
N
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
.
9
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
6
4
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
.
9
9

 
 
 
 
 
3
3
6
5
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
5
1
0
 
C
H
A
R
T
E
R
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
C
A
T
I
O
N
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
5
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
6
5
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
5
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
3
3
6
6
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
5
1
1
 
C
H
A
R
T
E
R
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
C
A
T
I
O
N
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
6
6
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
3
3
6
7
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
5
1
2
 
C
H
A
R
T
E
R
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
C
A
T
I
O
N
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
R
T
E
R
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
C
A
T
I
O
N
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
6
7
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
3
3
6
8
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
7
7
0
 
C
H
A
R
T
E
R
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
C
A
T
I
O
N
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
1
9
3
.
5
2



0
5
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
5
:
5
7
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
5

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
6
8
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
1
9
3
.
5
2

 
 
 
 
 
3
3
6
9
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
5
5
3
 
U
L
I
N
E
,
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
2
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
2
2
2
.
1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
L
I
N
E
,
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
0
.
5
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
L
I
N
E
,
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
2
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
8
4
.
6
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
6
9
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
4
3
7
.
4
0

 
 
 
 
 
3
3
7
0
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
7
3
7
 
U
N
I
F
I
R
S
T
 
C
O
R
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
.
5
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
N
I
F
I
R
S
T
 
C
O
R
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
2
.
9
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
N
I
F
I
R
S
T
 
C
O
R
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
2
.
9
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
N
I
F
I
R
S
T
 
C
O
R
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
.
5
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
N
I
F
I
R
S
T
 
C
O
R
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
3
.
2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
7
0
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
5
0
.
2
4

 
 
 
 
 
3
3
7
1
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
8
4
2
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
4
.
1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
2
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
.
9
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
2
.
9
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
0
.
4
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
9
3
.
7
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
9
0
8
.
0
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
9
6
3
.
3
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
0
1
1
.
5
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
2
.
6
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
.
7
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
8
0
9
.
7
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
6
5
4
.
3
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
2
.
4
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
2
6
2
.
6
5



0
5
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
5
:
5
7
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
6

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
7
1
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
,
6
3
9
.
7
5

 
 
 
 
 
3
3
7
2
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
7
4
5
 
W
A
G
E
W
O
R
K
S
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
G
E
W
O
R
K
S
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
G
E
W
O
R
K
S
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
2
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
7
2
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
3
3
7
3
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
4
2
0
 
C
L
A
I
R
E
 
W
O
O
L
F
O
L
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
.
8
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
7
3
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
.
8
1

 
 
 
3
2
0
5
2
1
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
7
3
3
 
5
 
S
T
A
R
 
Y
A
C
H
T
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
5
2
1
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
5
2
2
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
5
5
0
 
B
E
N
 
C
 
W
O
R
C
E
S
T
E
R
,
 
I
I
I
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
7
0
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
5
2
2
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
7
0
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
5
2
3
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
7
7
2
 
A
L
V
A
H
 
B
.
 
B
A
R
G
E
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
,
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
5
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
L
V
A
H
 
B
.
 
B
A
R
G
E
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
,
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
1
7
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
,
3
0
6
.
1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
5
2
3
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
,
5
3
1
.
1
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
5
2
4
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
8
7
9
 
T
H
E
 
F
.
A
.
 
B
A
R
T
L
E
T
T
 
T
R
E
E
 
E
X
P
E
R
T
 
C
O
M
P
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
0
4
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
H
E
 
F
.
A
.
 
B
A
R
T
L
E
T
T
 
T
R
E
E
 
E
X
P
E
R
T
 
C
O
M
P
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
5
2
4
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
3
0
4
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
5
2
5
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
5
5
3
 
B
L
Y
T
H
E
 
C
O
N
S
T
R
U
C
T
I
O
N
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
7
9
.
4
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
L
Y
T
H
E
 
C
O
N
S
T
R
U
C
T
I
O
N
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
9
.
6
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
5
2
5
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
6
9
.
1
1

 
 
 
3
2
0
5
2
6
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
 
F
 
T
 
B
R
O
W
N
 
C
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
2
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
.
7
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
 
T
 
B
R
O
W
N
 
C
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
4
.
2
5



0
5
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
5
:
5
7
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
7

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
 
T
 
B
R
O
W
N
 
C
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
1
7
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
5
.
9
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
 
T
 
B
R
O
W
N
 
C
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
3
.
4
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
 
T
 
B
R
O
W
N
 
C
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
0
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
.
2
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
 
T
 
B
R
O
W
N
 
C
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
.
2
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
 
T
 
B
R
O
W
N
 
C
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
.
2
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
 
T
 
B
R
O
W
N
 
C
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
1
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
1
2
.
5
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
 
T
 
B
R
O
W
N
 
C
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
.
1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
 
T
 
B
R
O
W
N
 
C
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
7
.
1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
 
T
 
B
R
O
W
N
 
C
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
.
2
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
 
T
 
B
R
O
W
N
 
C
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
.
9
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
 
T
 
B
R
O
W
N
 
C
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
1
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
3
.
3
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
 
T
 
B
R
O
W
N
 
C
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
1
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
.
1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
 
T
 
B
R
O
W
N
 
C
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
.
3
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
 
T
 
B
R
O
W
N
 
C
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
0
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
.
2
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
 
T
 
B
R
O
W
N
 
C
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
.
3
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
 
T
 
B
R
O
W
N
 
C
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
.
1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
 
T
 
B
R
O
W
N
 
C
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
.
7
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
 
T
 
B
R
O
W
N
 
C
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
2
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
.
9
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
 
T
 
B
R
O
W
N
 
C
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
2
7
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
7
.
9
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
 
T
 
B
R
O
W
N
 
C
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
1
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
2
2
.
9
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
5
2
6
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
9
9
3
.
5
1

 
 
 
3
2
0
5
2
7
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
7
9
2
 
C
O
N
S
O
L
I
D
A
T
E
D
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
C
A
T
I
O
N
S
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
1
.
1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
5
2
7
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
1
.
1
7

 
 
 
3
2
0
5
2
8
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
7
9
4
 
C
O
N
S
O
L
I
D
A
T
E
D
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
C
A
T
I
O
N
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
2
7
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
1
.
1
7



0
5
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
5
:
5
7
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
8

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
5
2
8
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
1
.
1
7

 
 
 
3
2
0
5
2
9
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
7
9
6
 
C
O
N
S
O
L
I
D
A
T
E
D
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
C
A
T
I
O
N
S
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
2
7
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
9
.
5
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
5
2
9
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
9
.
5
2

 
 
 
3
2
0
5
3
0
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
7
9
7
 
C
O
N
S
O
L
I
D
A
T
E
D
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
C
A
T
I
O
N
S
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
2
7
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
7
3
.
6
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
5
3
0
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
7
3
.
6
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
5
3
1
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
8
0
1
 
C
O
N
S
O
L
I
D
A
T
E
D
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
C
I
A
T
I
O
N
S
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
3
.
1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
5
3
1
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
3
.
1
8

 
 
 
3
2
0
5
3
2
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
8
1
9
 
D
A
R
L
I
N
G
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
1
.
5
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
A
R
L
I
N
G
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
7
.
4
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
5
3
2
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
8
.
9
9

 
 
 
3
2
0
5
3
3
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
2
5
0
 
D
O
U
G
 
G
O
T
T
 
&
 
S
O
N
S
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
8
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
5
3
3
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
8
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
5
3
4
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
5
0
4
 
E
A
 
A
C
Q
U
I
S
T
I
O
N
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
3
5
9
.
2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
5
3
4
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
3
5
9
.
2
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
5
3
5
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
1
9
7
 
E
L
L
S
W
O
R
T
H
 
C
H
A
I
N
S
A
W
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
9
7
.
4
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
5
3
5
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
9
7
.
4
2

 
 
 
3
2
0
5
3
6
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
1
7
5
 
E
R
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
4
.
9
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
R
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
4
.
7
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
R
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
6
2
.
2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
5
3
6
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
2
9
1
.
9
2

 
 
 
3
2
0
5
3
7
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
9
8
2
 
F
I
R
S
T
N
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
6
.
5
0



0
5
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
5
:
5
7
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
9

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
5
3
7
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
6
.
5
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
5
3
8
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
6
6
9
 
F
I
R
S
T
N
E
T
-
 
H
O
T
S
P
O
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
6
.
1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
5
3
8
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
6
.
1
5

 
 
 
3
2
0
5
3
9
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
9
8
5
 
F
I
R
S
T
N
E
T
-
N
O
N
 
P
U
B
L
I
C
 
S
A
F
E
T
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
.
1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
5
3
9
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
.
1
4

 
 
 
3
2
0
5
4
0
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
2
2
2
 
R
 
H
 
F
O
S
T
E
R
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
0
8
7
.
7
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
5
4
0
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
0
8
7
.
7
8

 
 
 
3
2
0
5
4
1
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
1
1
0
 
G
O
N
E
T
S
P
E
E
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
1
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
0
.
3
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
5
4
1
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
0
.
3
5

 
 
 
3
2
0
5
4
2
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
3
0
0
1
 
J
&
L
 
S
A
U
N
D
E
R
S
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
1
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
6
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
&
L
 
S
A
U
N
D
E
R
S
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
1
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
8
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
&
L
 
S
A
U
N
D
E
R
S
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
1
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
5
4
2
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
1
4
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
5
4
3
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
2
9
6
 
H
O
M
E
 
D
E
P
O
T
 
C
R
E
D
I
T
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
.
9
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
O
M
E
 
D
E
P
O
T
 
C
R
E
D
I
T
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
7
.
8
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
5
4
3
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
7
.
8
6

 
 
 
3
2
0
5
4
4
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
3
0
0
7
 
I
M
A
G
E
T
R
E
N
D
,
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
/
2
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
5
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
5
4
4
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
5
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
5
4
5
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
4
1
7
 
R
 
F
 
 
J
O
R
D
A
N
 
&
 
S
O
N
S
 
C
O
N
S
T
R
U
C
T
I
O
N
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
/
2
4
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
2
,
3
3
5
.
0
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
5
4
5
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
2
,
3
3
5
.
0
2

 
 
 
3
2
0
5
4
6
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
9
9
8
 
A
L
I
S
I
O
N
 
K
I
E
F
F
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
1
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
2
5
.
0
0



0
5
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
5
:
5
7
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
0

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
5
4
6
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
2
5
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
5
4
7
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
4
1
4
 
H
A
R
O
L
D
 
M
A
C
Q
U
I
N
N
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
1
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
3
4
8
.
4
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
5
4
7
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
3
4
8
.
4
2

 
 
 
3
2
0
5
4
8
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
7
1
0
 
M
A
I
N
E
 
F
I
R
E
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
 
I
N
S
T
I
T
U
T
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
5
4
8
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
5
4
9
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
4
1
3
 
M
 
C
 
M
 
E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
9
7
2
.
4
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
 
C
 
M
 
E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
5
4
.
1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
 
C
 
M
 
E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
2
6
7
.
7
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
5
4
9
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
0
9
4
.
3
5

 
 
 
3
2
0
5
5
0
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
8
2
4
 
M
I
S
S
I
O
N
 
S
Q
U
A
R
E
 
R
E
T
I
R
E
M
E
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
2
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
5
5
0
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
5
5
1
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
5
3
3
 
M
O
T
I
O
N
 
I
N
D
U
S
T
R
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
4
.
0
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
5
5
1
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
4
.
0
3

 
 
 
3
2
0
5
5
2
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
4
6
8
 
M
O
U
N
T
 
D
E
S
E
R
T
 
I
S
L
A
N
D
 
H
O
S
P
I
T
A
L
 
&
 
H
E
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
2
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
2
.
5
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
5
5
2
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
2
.
5
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
5
5
3
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
9
5
5
 
M
U
N
I
C
I
P
A
L
 
W
A
S
T
E
 
S
O
L
U
T
I
O
N
S
,
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
3
3
4
.
2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
5
5
3
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
3
3
4
.
2
3

 
 
 
3
2
0
5
5
4
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
1
6
0
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
5
.
1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
8
.
2
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
7
7
8
.
0
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
2
.
8
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
1
.
3
6



0
5
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
5
:
5
7
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
1

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
.
3
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
.
6
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
.
9
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
.
9
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
3
.
9
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
4
2
2
.
1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
4
1
.
7
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
3
.
0
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
5
5
4
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
3
9
2
.
4
7

 
 
 
3
2
0
5
5
5
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
5
4
3
 
N
O
R
W
O
O
D
,
 
D
E
L
A
I
T
T
R
E
 
&
 
S
O
N
S
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
1
0
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
5
5
5
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
1
0
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
5
5
6
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
5
4
7
 
O
D
P
 
B
U
S
I
N
E
S
S
 
S
O
L
U
T
I
O
N
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
2
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
.
9
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
D
P
 
B
U
S
I
N
E
S
S
 
S
O
L
U
T
I
O
N
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
2
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
.
7
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
D
P
 
B
U
S
I
N
E
S
S
 
S
O
L
U
T
I
O
N
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
2
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
7
.
8
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
5
5
6
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
5
.
6
6

 
 
 
3
2
0
5
5
7
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
7
9
4
 
O
L
V
E
R
 
A
S
S
O
C
I
A
T
E
S
,
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
5
5
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
5
5
7
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
5
5
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
5
5
8
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
5
9
7
 
O
N
-
T
H
E
-
L
I
N
E
,
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
9
0
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
5
5
8
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
9
0
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
5
5
9
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
7
0
6
 
O
N
L
I
N
E
 
M
O
O
R
I
N
G
,
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
9
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
5
5
9
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
9
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
5
6
0
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
5
5
3
 
O
V
E
R
H
E
A
D
 
D
O
O
R
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
O
F
 
B
A
N
G
O
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
1
.
4
2



0
5
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
5
:
5
7
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
2

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
5
6
0
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
1
.
4
2

 
 
 
3
2
0
5
6
1
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
5
6
5
 
P
E
R
M
A
-
L
I
N
E
 
C
O
R
P
 
O
F
 
N
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
9
.
5
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
E
R
M
A
-
L
I
N
E
 
C
O
R
P
 
O
F
 
N
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
1
.
8
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
5
6
1
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
1
.
3
5

 
 
 
3
2
0
5
6
2
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
4
9
0
 
R
E
V
I
S
I
O
N
 
S
O
L
A
R
 
I
M
P
A
C
T
 
P
A
R
T
N
E
R
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
8
6
2
.
3
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
5
6
2
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
8
6
2
.
3
3

 
 
 
3
2
0
5
6
3
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
7
8
4
 
S
E
A
C
O
A
S
T
 
S
E
C
U
R
I
T
Y
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
3
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
5
6
3
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
3
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
5
6
4
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
6
6
3
 
S
H
E
R
W
I
N
 
W
I
L
L
I
A
M
S
 
C
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
2
.
7
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
5
6
4
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
2
.
7
3

 
 
 
3
2
0
5
6
5
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
6
7
2
 
S
N
O
W
M
A
N
 
P
R
I
N
T
I
N
G
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
5
3
0
.
2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
5
6
5
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
5
3
0
.
2
1

 
 
 
3
2
0
5
6
6
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
7
7
1
 
T
R
I
D
E
N
T
 
A
R
M
O
R
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
1
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
5
6
6
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
5
6
7
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
5
7
1
 
J
A
S
O
N
 
R
O
B
E
R
T
 
M
C
C
A
B
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
6
2
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
5
6
7
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
6
2
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
5
6
8
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
7
4
2
 
U
S
A
 
B
L
U
E
B
O
O
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
6
.
4
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
5
6
8
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
6
.
4
9

 
 
 
3
2
0
5
6
9
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
7
5
3
 
J
A
M
E
S
 
W
 
W
A
D
M
A
N
 
C
P
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
6
6
0
.
5
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
5
6
9
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
6
6
0
.
5
0



0
5
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
5
:
5
7
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
3

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
U
M
B
E
R
 
O
F
 
C
H
E
C
K
S
 
 
 
8
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*
*
*
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
*
*
*
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
1
,
8
4
1
.
1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
U
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
M
O
U
N
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
P
R
I
N
T
E
D
 
C
H
E
C
K
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
4
,
8
8
4
.
3
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
E
F
T
'
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
6
,
9
5
6
.
7
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*
*
*
 
G
R
A
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
*
*
*
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
1
,
8
4
1
.
1
3



0
5
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
5
:
5
7
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
4

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
E
N
T
R
I
E
S
 
T
O
 
B
E
 
C
R
E
A
T
E
D

C
L
E
R
K
:
 
6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Y
E
A
R
 
P
E
R
 
 
 
 
J
N
L

S
R
C
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
D
E
S
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
 
O
B
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
E
B
I
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
R
E
D
I
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
E
F
F
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
J
N
L
 
D
E
S
C
 
 
 
R
E
F
 
1
 
 
R
E
F
 
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
E
F
 
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
I
N
E
 
D
E
S
C

2
0
2
4
 
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
4

A
P
P
 
1
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
3
,
4
2
6
.
9
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 

A
P
P
 
1
0
0
-
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
1
,
8
4
1
.
1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 

A
P
P
 
4
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
0
6
0
.
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 

A
P
P
 
6
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
,
6
5
3
.
8
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 

A
P
P
 
3
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
8
,
6
9
9
.
9
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
E
N
E
R
A
L
 
L
E
D
G
E
R
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
1
,
8
4
1
.
1
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
1
,
8
4
1
.
1
3

A
P
P
 
1
0
0
-
3
5
0
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
-
T
R
U
S
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
0
6
0
.
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
P
P
 
4
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
0
6
0
.
4
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
P
P
 
1
0
0
-
3
5
0
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
-
M
A
R
I
N
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
,
6
5
3
.
8
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
P
P
 
6
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
,
6
5
3
.
8
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
P
P
 
1
0
0
-
3
5
0
3
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
F
-
C
A
P
 
I
M
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
8
,
6
9
9
.
9
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
P
P
 
3
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
8
,
6
9
9
.
9
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
Y
S
T
E
M
 
G
E
N
E
R
A
T
E
D
 
E
N
T
R
I
E
S
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
8
,
4
1
4
.
1
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
8
,
4
1
4
.
1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
2
0
2
4
/
1
1
/
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
2
0
,
2
5
5
.
3
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
2
0
,
2
5
5
.
3
1



0
5
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
5
:
5
7
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
5

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
E
N
T
R
I
E
S
 
T
O
 
B
E
 
C
R
E
A
T
E
D

F
U
N
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Y
E
A
R
 
P
E
R
 
 
 
 
J
N
L
 
 
E
F
F
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
E
B
I
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
R
E
D
I
T

 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
D
E
S
C
R
I
P
T
I
O
N

1
0
0
 
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
4
 
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
4
 
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4

 
 
 
 
1
0
0
-
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
1
,
8
4
1
.
1
3

 
 
 
 
1
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
3
,
4
2
6
.
9
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
1
0
0
-
3
5
0
3
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
F
-
C
A
P
 
I
M
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
8
,
6
9
9
.
9
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
1
0
0
-
3
5
0
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
-
T
R
U
S
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
0
6
0
.
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
1
0
0
-
3
5
0
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
-
M
A
R
I
N
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
,
6
5
3
.
8
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
U
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
1
,
8
4
1
.
1
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
1
,
8
4
1
.
1
3

3
0
0
 
 
C
a
p
i
t
a
l
 
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
4
 
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
4
 
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4

 
 
 
 
3
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
8
,
6
9
9
.
9
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
3
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
8
,
6
9
9
.
9
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
U
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
8
,
6
9
9
.
9
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
8
,
6
9
9
.
9
0

4
0
0
 
 
I
n
v
e
s
t
m
e
n
t
 
T
r
u
s
t
s
-
R
e
s
e
r
v
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
4
 
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
4
 
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4

 
 
 
 
4
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
0
6
0
.
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
4
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
0
6
0
.
4
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
U
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
0
6
0
.
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
0
6
0
.
4
0

6
0
0
 
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
4
 
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
4
 
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4

 
 
 
 
6
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
,
6
5
3
.
8
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
6
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
,
6
5
3
.
8
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
U
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
,
6
5
3
.
8
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
,
6
5
3
.
8
8



0
5
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
5
:
5
7
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
6

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
E
N
T
R
I
E
S
 
T
O
 
B
E
 
C
R
E
A
T
E
D

F
U
N
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
U
E
 
T
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
U
E
 
F
R

1
0
0
 
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
8
,
4
1
4
.
1
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3
0
0
 
 
C
a
p
i
t
a
l
 
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
8
,
6
9
9
.
9
0

4
0
0
 
 
I
n
v
e
s
t
m
e
n
t
 
T
r
u
s
t
s
-
R
e
s
e
r
v
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
0
6
0
.
4
0

6
0
0
 
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
,
6
5
3
.
8
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
8
,
4
1
4
.
1
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
8
,
4
1
4
.
1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*
*
 
E
N
D
 
O
F
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
 
-
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
 
b
y
 
L
i
s
a
 
Y
o
u
n
g
 
*
*
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



24
69

CH
EC

K 
DA

TE
:  

 
M

ay
 8

, 2
02

4

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

32
05

16
th

ro
ug

h
32

05
18

11
,3

95
.4

3
$ 

   
   

  
Ch

ec
k 

pa
ym

en
ts

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

59
78

6
an

d
59

78
7

45
,1

73
.7

6
$ 

   
   

  
El

ec
tr

on
ic

 p
ay

m
en

ts

 E
FT

 N
U

M
BE

R:
  

N
/A

th
ro

ug
h

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
AC

H 
Pa

ym
en

ts

EF
T 

or
 C

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

N
/A

an
d

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
Vo

id
ed

 C
he

ck
s

TO
TA

L 
DI

SB
U

RS
EM

EN
TS

:
56

,5
69

.1
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  

Se
le

ct
m

en
:

Jo
hn

 B
 M

ac
au

le
y,

 C
ha

irm
an

M
ar

th
a 

T 
Du

dm
an

Ja
m

es
 F

 M
oo

er
s

Ge
of

fr
ey

 V
 W

oo
d,

 S
ec

re
ta

ry

na
m

ed
 in

 th
is 

sc
he

du
le

.

TO
W

N
 O

F 
M

O
U

N
T 

DE
SE

RT
BM

V,
 S

TA
TE

 &
 P

R 
AC

CO
U

N
TS

 P
AY

AB
LE

 W
AR

RA
N

T

W
AR

RA
N

T 
AP

#

Th
is 

is 
to

 c
er

tif
y 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is 

du
e 

an
d 

ch
ar

ge
ab

le
 to

 th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

tio
ns

 li
st

ed
 a

bo
ve

th
e 

su
m

 se
t a

ga
in

st
 e

ac
h 

na
m

e 
an

d 
yo

u 
ar

e 
di

re
ct

ed
 to

 p
ay

 u
nt

o 
th

e 
pa

rt
ie

s



From: John Macauley
To: Lisa Young
Subject: Re: Warrant AP#2469 State Fees/Payroll Benefits
Date: Monday, May 6, 2024 6:52:08 PM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Yes, I approve.

On Mon, May 6, 2024 at 4:02 PM Lisa Young <financeclerk@mtdesert.org> wrote:

 

Greetings,

 Attached is Accounts Payable Warrant #2469 (for Payroll and/or State Fees) in the amount
of $56,569.19 for your approval.                      

Please indicate your authorization to release the funds for this warrant by approving or
rejecting. 

I will “reply to all” when the first approval comes in so that you know that we have the
one required email approval.

Thank you!

Lisa Young,

Deputy Treasurer, Tax Collector

Town of Mount Desert

(207) 276-5531 (T)   (207) 276-3232 (F)                                                                                                

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~FOIA NOTICE~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Under Maine's Freedom of Access ("Right to Know") law, all e-mail and e-mail attachments received or prepared for use in matters
concerning Town business or containing information relating to Town business are likely to be regarded as public records which may be
inspected by any person upon request, unless otherwise made confidential by law.

 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~PRIVACY NOTICE~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

 The information in this email is an official Town of Mount Desert communication and is private and/or privileged. This email
is intended to be reviewed by only the individual or organization named above. If you are not the intended recipient or an
authorized representative of the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any review, dissemination or copying of this
email and its attachments, if any, or the information contained herein is prohibited. If you have received this email in error,
please immediately notify the sender by return email and delete this email from your system.

 

mailto:jbmacauley3@gmail.com
mailto:financeclerk@mtdesert.org
mailto:financeclerk@mtdesert.org


 

 



24
70

CH
EC

K 
DA

TE
:  

 
M

ay
 1

5,
 2

02
4

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

32
05

19
th

ro
ug

h
32

05
20

6,
31

9.
74

$ 
   

   
   

  
Ch

ec
k 

pa
ym

en
ts

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

N
/A

an
d

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
El

ec
tr

on
ic

 p
ay

m
en

ts

 E
FT

 N
U

M
BE

R:
  

N
/A

th
ro

ug
h

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
AC

H 
Pa

ym
en

ts

EF
T 

or
 C

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

N
/A

an
d

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
Vo

id
ed

 C
he

ck
s

TO
TA

L 
DI

SB
U

RS
EM

EN
TS

:
6,

31
9.

74
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

Se
le

ct
m

en
:

Jo
hn

 B
 M

ac
au

le
y,

 C
ha

irm
an

M
ar

th
a 

T 
Du

dm
an

Ja
m

es
 F

 M
oo

er
s

Ge
of

fr
ey

 V
 W

oo
d,

 S
ec

re
ta

ry

na
m

ed
 in

 th
is 

sc
he

du
le

.

TO
W

N
 O

F 
M

O
U

N
T 

DE
SE

RT
BM

V,
 S

TA
TE

 &
 P

R 
AC

CO
U

N
TS

 P
AY

AB
LE

 W
AR

RA
N

T

W
AR

RA
N

T 
AP

#

Th
is 

is 
to

 c
er

tif
y 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is 

du
e 

an
d 

ch
ar

ge
ab

le
 to

 th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

tio
ns

 li
st

ed
 a

bo
ve

th
e 

su
m

 se
t a

ga
in

st
 e

ac
h 

na
m

e 
an

d 
yo

u 
ar

e 
di

re
ct

ed
 to

 p
ay

 u
nt

o 
th

e 
pa

rt
ie

s



From: Rick Mooers
To: Lisa Young
Subject: Re: Warrant AP#2470 State Fees/Payroll Benefits
Date: Thursday, May 16, 2024 4:30:18 AM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Approved
Sent from my iPhone

On May 15, 2024, at 1:07 PM, Lisa Young <financeclerk@mtdesert.org> wrote:


 
Greetings,
 Attached is Accounts Payable Warrant #2470 (for Payroll and/or State Fees) in the
amount of $6,319.74 for your approval.                      
Please indicate your authorization to release the funds for this warrant by approving or
rejecting. 
I will “reply to all” when the first approval comes in so that you know that we have
the one required email approval.
Thank you!
Lisa Young,
Deputy Treasurer, Tax Collector
Town of Mount Desert
(207) 276-5531 (T)   (207) 276-3232 (F)                                                                                                
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~FOIA NOTICE~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
Under Maine's Freedom of Access ("Right to Know") law, all e-mail and e-mail attachments received or prepared for use in
matters concerning Town business or containing information relating to Town business are likely to be regarded as public
records which may be inspected by any person upon request, unless otherwise made confidential by law.
 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~PRIVACY NOTICE~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
 The information in this email is an official Town of Mount Desert communication and is private and/or
privileged. This email is intended to be reviewed by only the individual or organization named above. If you are
not the intended recipient or an authorized representative of the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that
any review, dissemination or copying of this email and its attachments, if any, or the information contained
herein is prohibited. If you have received this email in error, please immediately notify the sender by return
email and delete this email from your system.
 
 
 
<4- AP2470.pdf>

mailto:rickmooers@gmail.com
mailto:financeclerk@mtdesert.org


24
26

CH
EC

K 
DA

TE
:  

 
M

ay
 1

0,
 2

02
4

AD
VI

CE
 N

U
M

BE
RS

:
16

67
2

th
ro

ug
h

16
72

6

 C
HE

CK
 N

U
M

BE
RS

:  
66

52
0

th
ro

ug
h

66
53

2

TO
TA

L 
DI

SB
U

RS
EM

EN
TS

:
15

8,
93

0.
38

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

 

Se
le

ct
m

en
:

Jo
hn

 B
 M

ac
au

le
y,

 C
ha

irm
an

M
ar

th
a 

T 
Du

dm
an

Ja
m

es
 F

 M
oo

er
s

Ge
of

fr
ey

 V
 W

oo
d,

 S
ec

re
ta

ry

na
m

ed
 in

 th
is 

sc
he

du
le

.

TO
W

N
 O

F 
M

O
U

N
T 

DE
SE

RT
PA

YR
O

LL
 W

AR
RA

N
T

Th
is 

is 
to

 c
er

tif
y 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is 

du
e 

an
d 

ch
ar

ge
ab

le
 to

 th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

tio
ns

 li
st

ed
 a

bo
ve

th
e 

su
m

 se
t a

ga
in

st
 e

ac
h 

na
m

e 
an

d 
yo

u 
ar

e 
di

re
ct

ed
 to

 p
ay

 u
nt

o 
th

e 
pa

rt
ie

s

W
AR

RA
N

T 
PR

# 



From: Mae Wyler
To: Lisa Young
Subject: FW: Warrant PR#2426 Approval Request
Date: Thursday, May 16, 2024 4:23:06 PM

 
 
From: Rick Mooers <rickmooers@gmail.com> 
Sent: Thursday, May 9, 2024 7:09 PM
To: Mae Wyler <financedirector@mtdesert.org>
Subject: Re: Warrant PR#2426 Approval Request

 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

 
Approved
Sent from my iPhone

On May 9, 2024, at 9:25 AM, Mae Wyler <financedirector@mtdesert.org> wrote:


Good morning!
Attached are the following warrants for approval:
                                    Payroll                                   #2426     total of          $158,930.38
Please indicate your authorization to release the funds for these warrants by approving
or rejecting.
 
I will “will reply to all” when the first approval comes in so that you know that we have
the one required email approval.
Thank you!
 
Mae Wyler
 
Finance Director
Town of Mount Desert, ME
207-276-5531 ext. 115
financedirector@mtdesert.org
 
<11. PR2426.pdf>

mailto:financedirector@mtdesert.org
mailto:financeclerk@mtdesert.org
mailto:financedirector@mtdesert.org
mailto:financedirector@mtdesert.org






23



24
06

CH
EC

K 
DA

TE
:  

 
M

ay
 2

1,
 2

02
4

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

32
05

06
an

d
32

05
06

(1
44

.0
0)

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

Ch
ec

k 
pa

ym
en

ts

 E
FT

 N
U

M
BE

R:
  

N
/A

th
ro

ug
h

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
AC

H 
Pa

ym
en

ts

TO
TA

L 
DI

SB
U

RS
EM

EN
TS

:
(1

44
.0

0)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   

Vo
id

ed
 d

isb
ur

se
m

en
ts

 to
 b

e 
ac

kn
ow

le
dg

ed
 d

es
cr

ib
ed

 a
bo

ve

TO
W

N
 O

F 
M

O
U

N
T 

DE
SE

RT
VO

ID
S

W
AR

RA
N

T 
V#



0
5
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
4
:
4
9
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
1

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
3
2
0
5
0
6
 
0
5
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
V
O
I
D
 
 
 
 
8
5
6
 
T
R
E
A
S
U
R
E
R
,
 
S
T
A
T
E
 
O
F
 
M
A
I
N
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
1
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
1
4
4
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
5
0
6
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
1
4
4
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
U
M
B
E
R
 
O
F
 
C
H
E
C
K
S
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*
*
*
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
*
*
*
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
1
4
4
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
U
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
M
O
U
N
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
V
O
I
D
E
D
 
C
H
E
C
K
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
4
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*
*
*
 
G
R
A
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
*
*
*
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
1
4
4
.
0
0



0
5
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
4
:
4
9
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
2

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
E
N
T
R
I
E
S
 
T
O
 
B
E
 
C
R
E
A
T
E
D

C
L
E
R
K
:
 
6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Y
E
A
R
 
P
E
R
 
 
 
 
J
N
L

S
R
C
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
D
E
S
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
 
O
B
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
E
B
I
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
R
E
D
I
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
E
F
F
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
J
N
L
 
D
E
S
C
 
 
 
R
E
F
 
1
 
 
R
E
F
 
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
E
F
 
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
I
N
E
 
D
E
S
C

2
0
2
4
 
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3

A
P
P
 
6
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
4
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
3
2
0
5
0
6
 
 
 
V
2
4
0
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 

A
P
P
 
1
0
0
-
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
4
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
3
2
0
5
0
6
 
 
 
V
2
4
0
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
E
N
E
R
A
L
 
L
E
D
G
E
R
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
4
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
4
.
0
0

A
P
P
 
1
0
0
-
3
5
0
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
-
M
A
R
I
N
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
4
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
6
8
 
 
 
 
 
V
2
4
0
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
P
P
 
6
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
4
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
6
8
 
 
 
 
 
V
2
4
0
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
Y
S
T
E
M
 
G
E
N
E
R
A
T
E
D
 
E
N
T
R
I
E
S
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
4
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
4
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
2
0
2
4
/
1
1
/
5
3
 
 
 
 
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
8
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
8
.
0
0



0
5
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
4
:
4
9
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
3

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
E
N
T
R
I
E
S
 
T
O
 
B
E
 
C
R
E
A
T
E
D

F
U
N
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Y
E
A
R
 
P
E
R
 
 
 
 
J
N
L
 
 
E
F
F
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
E
B
I
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
R
E
D
I
T

 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
D
E
S
C
R
I
P
T
I
O
N

1
0
0
 
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
4
 
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
 
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4

 
 
 
 
1
0
0
-
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
4
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
1
0
0
-
3
5
0
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
-
M
A
R
I
N
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
4
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
U
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
4
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
4
.
0
0

6
0
0
 
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
4
 
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
 
 
0
5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4

 
 
 
 
6
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
4
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
6
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
4
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
U
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
4
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
4
.
0
0



0
5
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
4
:
4
9
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
4

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
E
N
T
R
I
E
S
 
T
O
 
B
E
 
C
R
E
A
T
E
D

F
U
N
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
U
E
 
T
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
U
E
 
F
R

1
0
0
 
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
4
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6
0
0
 
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
4
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
4
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
4
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*
*
 
E
N
D
 
O
F
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
 
-
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
 
b
y
 
L
i
s
a
 
Y
o
u
n
g
 
*
*
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


	Selectboard Meeting Agenda 2024-05-20 
	Regular Meeting
	Monday, May 20, 2024

	Public Hearing
	PUBLIC HEARING Packet Divider Pages 
	Blank Page

	Salt Market LL
	Islander Ad
	public hearing ad 5-20-24

	Minutes
	MINUTES Packet Scanned Packet Divider Pages -2
	Blank Page

	Selectboard Minutes 2024-05-01 
	Selectboard Meeting Minutes  2024-05-07 POST ATM 

	Appointments
	APPOINTMENTS ETC Packet Scanned Packet Divider Pages -3
	Blank Page

	APPOINTMENTS - Employee
	Name   Position    Term

	Marina Seasonal Employee_
	MEMO
	To: Durlin Lunt, Town Manager and Board of Selectmen
	Re: Summer Launch Captains


	BOS warden approval memo
	Letter of Consideration MtD HA Board

	Consent
	CONSENT AGENDA Packet Scanned Packet Divider Pages -4
	Blank Page

	Dept Report MarchApril-2024-monthly
	FD non-transport EMS services
	Families First thank you
	2024 MDI Region CHNA Action Plan

	Unfinished
	UNFINISHED BUSINESS Packet Scanned Packet Divider Pages -5
	Blank Page

	CDBG HAGP FY24 MDHA Fire Safety Upgrades
	Spectrum broadband memo and contract

	New
	NEW BUSINESS Packet Scanned Packet Divider Pages -6
	Blank Page

	Seasonal Holding Tank
	5-2024 Public Space  Sassaman
	8-2024 Public Space Edith Mann
	Jordan Pond House Liquor License
	Colonels Restaurant liquor license
	Docksider 2024 Liquor License
	Abels Liquor License
	Clerk Memo - Clerk's office hours
	2024 Marina pedestal replacement_
	Seal Harbor Temp Electrical hook up
	Public Works Refuse Packer 5-14-2024-RefuseB&E-R to BOS (002)
	PW MCM Electrical Bid 2024.05.14
	FD Gift from NEHAS
	FD Sale of surplus eqp
	FD Warren Office Supplies

	Treasurer's Warrant
	0- Exception Report.pdf
	######

	1a- YTD Budget Report.pdf
	1- AP2471 WARRANT WKSHTS.pdf
	AP Cover Sheet

	2- AP2471 GL Distribution journal.pdf
	3- AP2469 WARRANT WKSHTS.pdf
	AP 921 WARRANT Cover Sheet

	4- Re_ Warrant AP#2469 State Fees_Payroll Benefits.pdf
	5- AP2470 WARRANT WKSHTS.pdf
	AP 921 WARRANT Cover Sheet

	6- Re_ Warrant AP#2470 State Fees_Payroll Benefits.pdf
	7- PR2426 WARRANT WKSHTS.pdf
	pr cover  

	8- FW_ Warrant PR#2426 Approval Request.pdf
	14- MDES PR23 BOS & Upload.pdf
	15- V2406 WARRANT COVER SHEET.pdf
	Void Cover Sheet

	16- V2406 GL Distribution Journal.pdf
	TREASURERS WARRANTS Packet Scanned Packet Divider Pages -7.pdf
	Blank Page


	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Selectboard Meeting Agenda 2024-05-20 .pdf
	Regular Meeting
	Monday, May 20, 2024

	Selectboard Meeting Agenda 2024-05-20 .pdf
	Regular Meeting
	Monday, May 20, 2024

	Blank Page



